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CORPORATE INFORMATION A S)&#

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

KWEK Leng Hai (Chairman)

LEUNG Wai Fung (Group Managing Director)
WHANG Sun Tze, Ph.D.

LO Kwong Chi, Clement
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STOCK CODE

411

SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Hongkong Managers and Secretaries Limited

Unit 3401-2, 34th Floor, AIA Tower, 183 Electric Road,

North Point, Hong Kong

INTERNET WEBSITES

Lam Soon Hong Kong Group

http://www.lamsoon.com

Haomama.com

Hong Kong
http://www.haomama.com
Mainland China

http://www.haomama.com.cn

Detergent Products
http://www.love2clean.com

Edible Oil Products

http://www.lamsoonoil.com

Flour Products
http://www.hkflourmills.com

Lam Soon e-Bidding
http://ebidding.lamsoon.com

Hong Leong Group
http://www.hongleong.com
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS BB E

Turnover (continuing operations) (HK$ million)
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Consolidated Results

s 3

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGH

TS ﬁ#?ﬁ

- »

Year ended 30 June

BESA=+HHILEEE

(Note 1)
(BtaE1)

(HK$ million) 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
(B EET) =L e T ERENF —EELFE ZZEARFE ZETHEF
Continuing operations {$@EEE £
Turnover R 2,072 2,094 1,569 1,507 1,478
GP% ERZE 20% 16% 19% 20% 18%
Profit before taxation RRB1 A E A 97 112 93 72 53
Taxation (charges)/credit FIE(ZH)/ WA (18) (1) 9 (7) (37)
Profit for the year from REEFERE

continuing operations ERELENER 79 101 102 65 16
Discontinued operation B#& 1L £F&E %5
Profit for the year froma ZANEEDKILEE

discontinued operation  EFELEKER - 6 8 46 54
Net gain on disposal of a HEBKILEE

discontinued operation EER - 9 — — —
Profit for the year REEGF 79 116 110 111 70
Minority interests DERRESR - 2 — (8) (%)
Profit attributable to & 2T

shareholders of the R AE

Company it Fll 79 118 110 103 65

TTENFEFR
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS BB E

Consolidated Assets and Liabilities

GEEERERE
At 30 June
~A=+H
(Note 1)
(Mt 1)
(HK$ million) 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
(B EHET) =bcby el — 2R N\FE —ERLF —TBEXRE —EZTIF
Total assets HEE 1,682 1,738 1,712 1,734 1,756
Total liabilities AR (375) (466) (514) (623) (737)
Minority interests DB E#ER (11) (17) (86) (85) (79)
Equity attributable to ZA 24T
shareholders of the IR ES
Company HEx 1,296 1,255 1,112 1,026 940
&
ﬁ Key Financial Indicators
2 TEMBER
[
e
I Year ended 30 June
BEAA=T+HILEE
(Note 1)
(Htzt 1)
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
=t LY —EE)\F —EELFE —ETEREFE —ETHF
Earnings per share (HK$) SRER(GET) 0.32 0.49 0.45 0.42 0.27
Dividend per share (HK$) SRRE(GET) 0.15 0.15 014 0.13 013
Net Debt to Equity EXRGMELE 0% 0% 0% 0% 3%
Note 1 The Company changed its financial year end from 31 a1 AL BREEAEABE ST NFEH
December to 30 June with effect from 2004. Accordingly, +ZA=+—HA%XASA=Zt+H Bt =
the financial period ended 30 June 2005 was in respect of EERFARA=ZTHZUBEEABZE-Z
the eighteen months ended 30 June 2005. ERFAA=+HIE+TNEA

a Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2009 FiliE (F#) BRAS



Overview

During the period under review, the global financial system
came close to the brink of systemic failure. It was averted only
by unprecedented US government rescue actions and massive
interventions into the capital markets. This was followed by
other major European and Asian countries taking similar strong
measures to restore confidence and trust in the financial and
banking systems. Nonetheless, the world went into recession
with only China standing out, showing growth, urged upon by
the Chinese government huge spending and large stimulus
economic programmes to pump up local consumption. This
had helped to keep our China flour, edible oil and detergent
businesses on an even keel in a challenging environment and
is especially important to us since our Mainland China turnover
accounted for close to 80% of our total turnover.

Financial Results

For the financial year ended 30 June 2009, the Group had
turnover and net profit amounted to HK$2,072 million and
HK$79 million respectively. Basic earnings per share was
HK$0.32.

Business Review

There was a marked difference in our operating environment
between first half and second half year period. In the first half,
fuel and raw material costs rose sharply with global commodity
price inflation. This put pressure on our margins. The rising cost
trend was reversed in the second half when global recession set

in.

During this difficult economic period, we have implemented
cost reduction and optimisation programmes to mitigate against
changing regulatory requirements and structural cost increases.
These proved successful for us to combat the effects of VAT
refund cancellation for the export of our food products from
Mainland China to Hong Kong, the increase in delivery cost,
and higher labour cost in China due to new Labour Laws. Our
brand value and our attention to productivity have enabled our
core businesses in food and detergent to meet competition and
to generate higher recurring earnings. Despite tough operating
environment during the year, we were able to register double-
digit increase in our gross profit margin of continuing operations

[E1 &

REESHA  2RERERBEHRASERE
12 /R A 2 B RS S22 B0 I 4 Hh O R RO AR
BRI AXBTREATS  THUERNE -
HE  BNRENEMEEEARTFHHEKRIE
BRIEF2#EE  UREHESRBKRBTER
ZEL AT 2RELARRE  ERRHE—
KBS EHRFRARX - RERHEELR
HEFTBEMHET  IRERES - LA
BARPER2EN  RMRBFEARERED
ERBTREBERES K HAKERREER
AEREMAZPEBARERBERERELD
80% °

CREEE

BE-ZThAEANA=ZTHLYREE  &&
Bz EBERAF 2D B A B 2,072,000,000
JC R B 79,000,000 7T - BRERER A B
0.327¢ °

FEF5m R

AEERELF¥FETHYFHEZEEREEAR
TE - EL¥F  2RERERBERSBRHR
EMBEARE L SEAEBZFBZRE -
RETHF  2REARRAUSHAE LR ZE

RESERSRE BB AEERN— R
HEMAREBLER  UENREMRELD
REBURARERZZE - KERBERDSH
SEEEATEAMEORE 2 RMAIEERR
HRBL ~ B KA R IR B B R E RS
IRALFZEE - BEAG 2mEEELE
BHHBLEEN  AREZERREZAR
BOEBRINRBERTF  WRALELER -
BEFANCSLERBRN  FEEFESEX
BN G A BERE R EE% 413,000,000
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT EE &1 Eige=

Business Review (continued)

to HK$413 million and produce a significant increase in recurring
EBIT. Our profit after tax of continuing operations slipped 22%
mainly due to foreign exchange valuation losses arising from
our multicurrency deposit of our near HK$600 million cash
balances.

Brand Value

The current global recessionary environment has slowed the
growth rate of China to a target 8%. However, we remain
convinced we should stay on track with our strategy to focus
on the higher quality branded food segment by leveraging on
several of our Group’s prestigious brands.

Qur brand value and China market are becoming more
important to our overall business. Turnover of our six premium
core brands namely Golden Statue bread flour, American Roses
cake flour, Knife edible oil, Red Lantern edible oil, AXE and
Labour detergent had further increased to about 60% of the

Group’s total turnover.

We had also capitalized on our long time well-known household
detergent brands AXE and Labour. With greater awareness
in the market for trusted quality goods, our AXE and Labour
brands are receiving larger and growing consumer support in
Hong Kong and Mainland China. On top of this, we introduced
a new detergent product line for commercial and industrial use
under the Procleanic brand. It was very well received when
launched in Hong Kong and Macau. Procleanic hands sterilizing
liguid dispensers are now used widely in many food retail
outlets, all the more timely in the recent HIN1 flu outbreak.

ZEF5m A=)

7T REMBRRENEAERNTRAEEERE o 4
EEMNBESEEL 2 BRBBRFIRMD 22%
FEHRNEE LB 600,000,000 TH & 48k
PN EIMNEIFRATSIBNE R I8k o

o M {E E

BAl 2RREBRECHEETHEZIBERERE
E8% o A - ARBENHEEREELASTZE
HEmE BIFAEEETEERERERTS
B 2 KEE

FEEzRBEERTETSHAEE  EE
EBAREE - AEEANERERUDEERE
(& BB [ ZEERERR [ D8 &
RAM AR MR Rm  [FHEIERIET ]
BERRAMmERBCE-—PREEREER
EREE60% °

AEETZERTFEERETIERMEARER
BeRBEEE2AMMBZER BEMHEE
ENEEZBEER  FAEECFEERET
MEEARTEABESEEECERZX
Fo b REEUEZR IREEDL 25
ERAREBERTIXRAZZEEZARERE &
BERBEMEHURTRZED o [BLRRIF I
HERMBEACERZSRERA  LHEHREH
HINT R EEEHAA -
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT EETEFRES

Business Review (continued)
Brand Value (continued)

Our detergent business had taken a significant positive turn
during the year. Operating profit increased 1.6 times to HK$25
million on the back of an 18% sales growth to HK$276 million.
This has resulted from heightened awareness to our AXE and
Labour brands, better outlet management in the southern region
as well as making penetration into the major supermarket chains
in Beijing and Shanghai.

We value highly our more than 50 years of heritage and our
established reputation for high quality food products as
epitomized in our core brands Golden Statue bread flour,
American Roses cake flour, Knife and Red Lantern edible oil,
AXE and Labour detergent, and our new Procleanic brand
for commercial/industrial detergent. Through enhancement of
R&D, product safety and quality control system and planning,
we aim to make our brands even more desirable to consumers
and thereby further increase our market share in the premium
segment. We had set up regional offices in Eastern and
Northern China regions to position our branded products for
distribution more efficaciously on a national basis as well as
provide better services to our regional customers. In this way,
we aim to have our brands recognized progressively on a

national country-wide basis.

SFEEE
mhBEEE)

AEBZERZAREBENEALRARBEBH o
EHEER18% E B % 276,000,000 7T Z %
BT - KRR I1.645E 581 25,000,000
T RREEAEEZZEIBRIEGTI BN
FERS EHHEASHEEBREE UK
B2 ELL R LT BEEHBRTERE -

AEBERHEBS0FEREE K& & @M
Y 2RERFE  BE&IBEEEY -
[REREREER ~ [0 R AE R R A H
ZEERmER  UARIFHEIBMIET ME
BRmBEZNRRAR IREEE TEERZA
e BRMBHE ERZEZEERAAR
B AEEBORAET REHEEE RS
H RME-SERAREET S 208 - A&
EERERRELRIMEBRSEE - USHET
MEERERMOHEZEASN  BREAER
EFRHEBRLLRE FEBEEEELES
ERAEEEREZEMZHNEE -




HAIRMAN’S STATEMENT EES X FERESE

Major Milestones — Planning Ahead

We had renewed our Hong Kong joint-venture business with
Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited in edible oil for another 15

years.

We had extended our Shekou land-use rights for flour and oil
production for another 20 years up to 2040. In July 2009 we
acquired a flour mill in Jiangsu province which was built in
2008. This new acquisition will provide the Group with a more
competitive platform in Eastern China. In addition, our newly
constructed flour mill in Shandong will commence production in
September 2009. Our total flour milling capacity will be doubled
to 1.2 million metric tons a year. This will rank us one of the top

flour milling companies in China in terms of production capacity.

Outlook

Expansion in Scale and Scope

While the global financial upheavals are now beginning to settle
down and economic recession is receding, the year ahead
remains challenging. As oil price is creeping up from its lows
and other commodity prices are kicking up, we will continue
with our ongoing productivity programmes to expand our market
penetration and win bigger market share for our premium
branded food and detergent.

EXEEE — HEIRK

FEBESESEZERARQIDANEBZEA
HEEXBCEBI5F -

AEBNREOZESERREABEERE 2L
WEAECEER20FZE_ENEF - R-F
EAFLA FEEWREB-—RUKNIHER=
ST N\FREZERER  ATREERERE
RUBERFHZFE o I ZEERILRE
FEZECHEBBEERA-—SSAFAARE &
B AEEZENERSEEESEF1208L
W UERISSAEEESPEERE —ER
BRElZz— o

RE

TR - AT

MABMERERBDBLELHETE AR
RZELGER  AR—FNEEERE - BRH
BORE¥D L AttEREREEEA - &
SEBEBEBRIT2EENRATE > MATS
BEN RETEEREERREZARFN
EAmHEEREER -
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT EE &3 [EiR&=

Outlook (continued)
Expansion in Scale and Scope (continued)

Even though the return to double-digit GDP growth for China
may be some distance away, we remain cautiously optimistic
that the accumulated wealth of Chinese consumers and the
rising standard of living in China will provide a conducive
business environment for a Group like ours to expand our
quality and safe branded products into a growing market. With
our strong cash position, we are on the look-out for acquisition
opportunities to expand the scale of our existing business, and
to broaden our scope of business into downstream food-related
products to capture better-margin business. We are confident
that with our past efforts and strong business base foundation
we can move forward in the year ahead and in the new decade
to realise our vision to be a premier food and consumer product

company.

Appreciation

We have gone through a tumultuous and challenging year
when global financial systems were brought down to its kneels
and pushed the world into recession. We were fortunate to be
operating in Hong Kong and China where Central government
initiatives had kept the Chinese economy moving. It was a
difficult period and | sincerely thank our fellow directors for
their contribution and support throughout the year. To our
management and staff, | express my appreciation for their
dedication and hard work to keep our company profitable and
improve our operating parameters. | would also like to thank
our customers, bankers and shareholders for their confidence
and support to enable our Group to grow further our premium
branded products and expand our market coverage and market

share in an increasingly affluent China consumer sector.

KWEK Leng Hai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 August 2009
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Corporate Event $£B;EE)

8 = 9 August - September
] 2009

Set up “Jiangsu Lam Soon Food Company Limited” .
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS £E4E

Corporate Event £ E;EE)

August

July
J 2009

Acquisition of assets for flour mill operations in Jiangsu, PRC

IS — B IEHENER R 2 EE

A programme of “Treasure
Hunting Activity of Knife
Brand” in Beijing
RACEERTIE BB MRS
B2k SEE




CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS %l..ﬂ% ' &

Corporate Event £ E;&E)

“The 12th China International Trade Fair for Bakery and Confectionery”

M ay held in Shanghai
H 2009 REEETIE+ _EHTEEREERES ]

i i 75 16 S

LAM SN lfn‘-ﬁ RIEME GROouR

Qil division held a programme of [ BRE/:E » TJBERLE & |for mothers’ day in Shenzhen and Guangzhou
HIES R SRR REMNEBRREOT  TEREEE 58
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS %£E

Corporate Event B ;EE)

August
H 2008

“Golden Statue” and “American Roses”
flour were nominated as official flour for 2008
Beijing Olympic Game

[EGE IRIEZBE I EBRES-SZT/N\Fi
TRESETERY

1 2 December
H 2008

“Hong Kong Brands and Products Expo 2008" held in

Victoria Park, Hong Kong
REBESRERERT2008FEERBIRE ]
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HIGHLI

We have participated in the Walk for Millions

organised by The Community Chest of Hong
Kong for many years.

HMBERFH2EBTBLARSEMNEET -

Sponsored Programs

BEZEE

Hong Kong Storytelling Competition
(2009) and Fortune Bags Charity-Selling
Project (2008) organized by The Boys’ &
Girls” Clubs Association of Hong Kong
ERNERGEINN2BRENEER
EEFE 2009 IR REER 2008 1= E T &) -

mlE (F#) BRAF

Sponsorship to The Better Hong Sponsored Knife

Kong Foundation products for the
B B & programme of [ {§E A & 3
s B X BEEEN 5
L MEIBE g
& RFEE
The Better Hong Kong BA2EEE g
Foundation £ |5 cg
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS B4 ZE

“Caring Company and Caring Organization 2007/08 & 2008/09” Award
[2007-08 K 2008-09 /& 5 R B 1% |58

caringcompan .

Awvarded oy The Hong Komg Coundil of Social Service

FEUEREREER2

“Web Care Award” by Internet Professional Association

EMEEEASHE R EERERF PR

Our group’s websites
have been supporting
the idea of building
“no barrier websites”
throughout the years.
BEMEBOEESF
R—BEXHFRIE
PETEE A UL IHYIE R o

* Not enrolled for the year. ttEFRE R EH
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS E4E

Honour and Awards &2 BiA8 ]

#AEZN
HONG KONG
TOP BRAND

2004 to 2010 “Golden Statue” was
awarded “The China Top Brands”

August 2008
2008 8 A
by General Administration of Quality
Supervision, Inspection and Quarantine of
the PRC

2004 FE2010F[ £ 58 BEREEEE
BRREAREE PEEE]

“Knife” was awarded “Hong Kong Premier
Brand” by The Chinese Manufacturers’
Association of Hong Kong and Hong Kong
Brand Development Council jointly in 2008
z 7@ 2008 [ NE EERTEREHABRES FHSHLM
et i PR R BB SR oroecf oS

Quality Certification B& %25

ISO 9001:2000 Certification ISO 22000:2005 Certificate in Food
ISO 9001:2000 §& R 5258 Safety Management System
ISO 22000:2005 R =2 EHE R 28

ISO 9001:2008 Certification HACCP Food Safety Certification
ISO 9001:2008 B8 %238 HACCP R RREEEERIDE

ISO 14001:2004 Certification in
Environmental Management

China Environment Labelling

ISO 14001:2004 BH TR 24T Seficaton
et +EREESERDEEE

TTNEFR
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FOOD €&
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GOLDEN STATUE
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Food Segment

The total turnover of the food segment was affected by the 50%
decline in commodity prices for edible oil during the first half of
the financial year. As anticipated in our last interim report, the
price movements had smaller fluctuation following the Chinese
New Year in February 2009, and the market trading activities
gradually returned to a normal condition.

The Group continued to practice in a prudent manner on
purchasing and inventory holding. We managed to secure our
operating margins by leveraging our premium brand positioning
and cost reduction programmes under such unprecedented
market volatility.

During the year, our productivity programmes were successfully
implemented. The saving arising therefrom cushioned the
adverse impact due to the cancellation of VAT refund for the
export of our food products from Mainland China to Hong
Kong, the increase of delivery costs following the increase of
petroleum costs, and the additional staff costs in China resulting
from the new Labour Laws.

The strengths of our core brands had given us the edge to
confront the unfavorable market conditions. The food segment
had set up regional offices in the Eastern and Northern China
regions to position its products on a national basis and to
provide better services to regional customers as well as the
major national business partners.

Turnover — Food segment (HK$ million)

EBEE —AROBOEHEET)

R EB

RAFERFEL¥F RABMERT K
50% @ M BRMOMIBEEE - EUA
SERBIHRTHREZEY  ROZBNAF
—REEWFER ERREVRE  THESE
BEHLEELES -

AEEREA-EES  RRFEEERERE
REESH AEEEREAGZEEREE
fi > ERMETREKATE - EAAREHNT
BEMRT - DRERISELEF -

REAR > AEERDETEEDREATSE - &
BTERHFHATEENRmER B ZBERERR
BE  AHMEAEMSTEERAENM UK
SEEEPTSI 2B E THAFERNTE -

REEZROBEENEE - SR LRSS
BRZTANHR - AEECRERIMBERER
RELZVHEREE  BUEEEREESR
Bhi% AHEEFRIZZEMERRHR
HEBER -

Profit from operation — Food segment (HK$ million)
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS #7%5 Ol

Detergent Segment

Detergent segment achieved an encouraging performance
during the financial year under review. Its operating profit
reported a 1.6 times increase from last year to HK$25 million
with an 18% sales growth to HK$276 million.

household brands AXE and Labour continued to receive growing

Its flag-ship

consumer supports in both Hong Kong and Mainland China.

To strengthen our detergent business, we are continuing to
invest in new markets and product categories despite the
challenging economic conditions and the increasing raw material
costs. The segment expanded its distribution networks from the
Southern China region to the other parts of China. Its products
started to penetrate into the major supermarket chains in Beijing
and Shanghai during this financial year.

The segment also launched a new product line branded
Procleanic for the commercial and industrial applications. The
products were designed with outstanding features and benefits
to meet the unique requirements of food manufacturing plants,
hotels, central kitchens, fast-food and restaurant chains.
Procleanic was launched in Hong Kong and Macau and was
well received. Its water-free hand cleansing dispensers had
been installed in many food retail outlets when the H1N1 virus

was developing in the regions.

Turnover — Detergent segment (HK$ million)
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS ##%5[Ol

Human Resources and Training

As at 30 June 2009, there were approximately 1,300 employees
in the Group. Annual increment and year-end performance
bonus mechanism were incorporated in the Group’s
remuneration policy to retain, reward and motivate individuals
for their contributions to the Group. The Company also operates
a Share Option Scheme for granting of options to eligible
employees. During the year, 3,700,000 options granted to a
director and other employees of the Group were lapsed as the
vesting conditions had not been met.

Relation with Shareholders and
Investors

The Company encourages two-way communication with its
stakeholders. Extensive information about the Group’s activities
is provided in the Annual and Interim Reports, which are sent to
shareholders. The Group also maintains a number of websites
to provide a wide range of information on the Group and its
businesses.

Relation with Community

During the year, the Group continued to support a wide
spectrum of community services targeting the needy in Hong
Kong, the PRC and beyond. The Group had supported the
activities organised by The Better Hong Kong Foundation and
had participated in the Community Chest Walk for Millions.
The Group was recently presented with the Caring Company
2008-2009 Award by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service
for fostering good corporate citizenship in both public and
private sectors.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Financial Review
Group Results

For the year ended 30 June 2009, the Group’s turnover from
the continuing operations decreased by HK$22 million, or 1%,
to HK$2,072 million. The decrease primarily reflected the 50%
decline in commodity prices for edible oil during the first half of
the financial year.

The gross profit ratio of the Group improved to 19.9% from
15.6% last year, mainly due to improvement in product mixes in
both Food and Detergent segments.

While the reportable segment profit from operations increased
by 8% to HK$148 million, the profit before taxation decreased
by HK$15 million, or 13%, to HK$97 million due to the exchange
loss on foreign currency deposits realised during the financial
year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

At 30 June 2009, the Group had cash balance of HK$640
million (30 June 2008: HK$532 million). About 40% of these
funds are denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), 21% in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), 32% in United States dollars (“USD”), 6% in
Malaysia Ringgits (“MYR”) and 1% in Macau Pataca (“MOP”).

At 30 June 2009, the Group had HK$278 million committed
bank facilities (30 June 2008: HK$325 million) of which HK$41
million (30 June 2008: HK$212 million) was utilised. All bank
borrowings carry interest at floating rates and are repayable
within 1 year.

The Group centralises all the financing and treasury activities
at the corporate level. There are stringent controls over the
application of financial and hedging instruments which can
only be employed to manage and mitigate the exposure of
interest rate risk attributable to bank borrowings, the exposure
of foreign currency risk arising from trade and other receivables
denominated in foreign currencies, and the price risk of

commodities for trade purposes.
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Financial Review (continued)
Liquidity and Financial Resources (continued)

As 30 June 2009, the inventory turnover days were 40 days (30
June 2008: 57 days). A lower inventory level of raw materials
was kept for the Food Segment to reduce inventory risk in view
of the volatile commodity market. The trade receivable turnover
days remained at a healthy level of 24 days (30 June 2008: 25
days).

In view of the strong liquidity with a current ratio exceeding two
as well as sufficient banking facilities, the management believes
the Group has sufficient resources to fund its daily operating
activities and possible investment opportunities.

Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group has operations in Mainland China and Hong Kong.
Local costs and revenue are primarily denominated in Renminbi
and Hong Kong dollars. All the Group’s borrowings were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales,
purchases and deposits that are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the entity to which they
relate.

Capital Expenditure

During the year, the Group invested approximately HK$7 million
on plant and equipment to further upgrade its manufacturing
capabilities and HK$45 million on the construction of the
Qingzhou flour mill plant and purchases of the related
equipment.

Contingent Liabilities

Details of the contingent liabilities are set out in note 36 to the

financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

Kwek Leng Hai

Aged 56, Chairman of the Company since 12 October 2006
and has been a Non-Executive Director of the Company
since appointment to the Board in 1997. Mr. Kwek is also the
Chairman of Board Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Kwek is a director and shareholder of Hong Leong Company
(Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM”), the ultimate holding company of
the Company. He is the President and CEO of Guoco Group
Limited (“GGL”), a Hong Kong listed subsidiary of HLCM. He
holds directorships in key listed subsidiaries and associated
companies of GGL including GuocolLand Limited and
Guocoleisure Limited, both listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited, and Hong Leong Bank Berhad listed
on Bursa Malaysia. He is also a director of Bank of Chengdu
Co., Ltd.

Mr. Kwek qualified as a chartered accountant of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He is the brother-
in-law of Dr. Whang Sun Tze, a Non-Executive Director of the
Company.

Leung Wai Fung

Aged 53, Executive Director of the Company since 11 July 2005.
Mr. Leung has been designated as the Group Managing Director
with effect from 1 September 2006.

Mr. Leung joined the Company in 1997 and had assumed the
positions of Group Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating
Officer of the Group’s Distribution Segment in Hong Kong. He
was appointed as Executive Director of the Board in June 2002.
Mr. Leung left the Company and assumed a senior management
position with a Hong Leong Group company in March 2004 and
rejoined the Company in July 2005.

Mr. Leung holds a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration
from Simon Fraser University and an Executive Master’s Degree
in Business Administration (EMBA) from Fudan University School
of Management. He has over 20 years experience in the areas
of business management, strategic planning and development
as well as acquisitions and mergers.

He had worked in Hong Kong and overseas with multinationals,
including The East Asiatic (EAC), British Petroleum (BP),
Inchcape Pacific, Hiram Walker-Allied Vintners in the U.S.A. and
Canada, and Hostess Frito-Lay (snack food division of Pepsi-
Cola) in Canada. Before joining the Company in 1997, Mr. Leung

was the General Manager of Guoco Investments (China) Limited.
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Whang Sun Tze

Ph.D.

Aged 65, Non-Executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in 1984.

Dr. Whang holds a Doctorate Degree in Chemical Engineering.
He is the brother-in-law of Mr. Kwek Leng Hai.

Lo Kwong Chi, Clement

Aged 64, Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
since 1993 and Non-Executive Director of the Company
since appointment to the Board in 1975. He is the Chairman
of the Board Audit Committee and a member of the Board
Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Lo is a solicitor by profession and was admitted to practice
both in Hong Kong and England in 1970.

Tan Lim Heng

Aged 61, Non-Executive Director of the Company since

appointment to the Board in 1997.

Mr. Tan is an Executive Director of GGL and is the Managing
Director of GuocoCapital Limited (formerly known as Dao Heng
Securities Limited) and GuocoCommodities Limited (formerly
known as Dao Heng Commodities Limited). Mr. Tan holds a
Bachelor of Science first class honours degree in engineering
from University of Surrey and a Master of Science degree in
management from Massachusetts Institute of Technology.
He had previously worked in Geneva in 1974 with the United
Nations Conference on Trade and Development. He had also
served in the Singapore Civil Service as a Colombo Plan
Scholar 1975-1978 before coming to work in Hong Kong with
a financial services company and a major U.S. bank. Mr. Tan
has extensive experience in property investment, financial and

investment management services.
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Tsang Cho Tai

Aged 59, Non-Executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in 1997. Mr. Tsang is also a member
of Board Audit Committee of the Company.

Mr. Tsang was appointed as Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in 1999 and re-designated as Non-
Executive Director in 2004.

Mr. Tsang joined GGL in 1989 and is the chief financial officer
of the GGL group. Prior to that, he was an associate of an
international firm of accountants. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants as well as an
associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales.

Ding Wai Chuen

Aged 49, Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
since appointment to the Board in 2004. Mr. Ding is the member
of the Board Audit Committee and Board Remuneration
Committee of the Company. He also serves as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of GGL.

Mr. Ding is a Partner of Grant Thornton, Certified Public
Accountants. He is an associate member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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Dlng Wai Chuen (continued)

Mr. Ding has over 25 years of experience as a professional
accountant with international firms of accountants in England
and in Hong Kong and with the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). In 2007, Mr. Ding was
appointed by the Hong Kong SAR Government as a member
of the Financial Reporting Review Panel of the Financial
Reporting Council. Since 2002, Mr. Ding has been appointed
by the PRC Ministry of Finance as a member of the Advisory
Group of Foreign Experts for the development of PRC’s
Independent Auditing Standards. Since the beginning of 2007,
he has been involved, as an advisor to the HKICPA, in the joint
projects between HKICPA and PRC Ministry of Finance for the
comparison of Hong Kong and PRC accounting and auditing
standards. Mr. Ding was a member of the Commission on
Strategic Development between November 2005 and June 2007
and is a member of Pan-Pearl River Delta Panel of the Central
Policy Unit of the Hong Kong SAR Government. Mr. Ding is
currently a council member of the HKICPA.

Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony

Aged 60, Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
since appointment to the Board in December 2008.

Mr. Lo is qualified as a chartered accountant with the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Ontario, Canada and a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Lo has over 28 years of experience in banking, finance and
investments. He worked for a number of well-known financial

institutions as managing director.

Mr. Lo is an independent non-executive director and members
of the audit and nomination committees of the Taiwan Fund Inc,
which is listed on the New York Stock Exchange.
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Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony (continued)

He also holds other directorships in a number of listed
companies in Hong Kong including independent non-
executive director and the audit committee chairman of IDT
International Limited; independent non-executive director, the
audit committee chairman and members of the remuneration
and nomination committees of Playmates Holdings Limited;
independent non-executive director, audit committee chairman
and member of the remuneration committee of Tristate Holdings
Limited; and independent non-executive director and member
of the audit committee of Convenient Retail Asia Limited.

Mr. Lo was a member of the Listing Committee of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited from 1998 to 2006.

Au Chee Ming

Aged 58, Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
since appointment to the Board in August 2009.

Mr. Au holds a Bachelor Degree in Commerce and Finance from
The University of Calgary, Canada. Mr. Au has over 30 years
of experience in banking and finance sectors. He worked for a
number of world-wide banks and financial institutions.

ERROWE =)

BTETEAESRALT AR ZHEMESEE
B$EIDT International Limited (B BB AR
RANZBUFHTEEREREESERE
Playmates Holdings Limited (EE2&BHERA
A 2B FHITEEREREEEERURF
MEEERIEREEEMKE ; Tristate Holdings
Limited 2B FHITEERERZEEETER
FHEEENE RAIEZEBRATZEL
FHTEEREREEEHE °

BREH-NWNAWNFEZZENFRHAESTE
FERZIERRAA LHEEGZES °

[E2 J2k BA

BEA+ N\ BZZEZAFNABHESRR
ABVIEHTES -

BAEHENEAFAMEASHERSME
+E BAEERATREMABEA=TF
TER RENSHERRTRSBRET
o

TENEER

E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2009 & (F#) HRAT



TTNEFR

E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2009 FiliE (F#) BRAS

o~
Fig i

.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board has adopted a Code of Corporate Governance
Practices (the “CGP Code”), which is based on the principles
set out in Appendix 14 (the “HKEx Code”) to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). Continuous efforts are
made to review and enhance the Group’s internal controls and
procedures in light of changes in regulations and developments
in best practices.

The Company had complied throughout the financial year ended
30 June 2009 with the HKEx Code, save that non-executive
directors were not appointed for a specific term. However,
they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting pursuant to the articles of association
of the Company and the CGP Code. As such, the Company
considers that such provisions are sufficient to meet the intent

of the relevant provisions of the HKEx Code.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company had adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the
code of conduct governing directors’ securities transactions.

All directors of the Company, following specific enquiry by the
Company, have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the

year.
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Board of Directors
Composition of the Board

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date hereof are set out in the Directors’ Report on page 41.

Board Meetings and Attendance

During the year, four board meetings were held. All directors,
except Mr. IRIE Yasuaki and Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony,
attended all four meetings. Mr. IRIE Yasuaki who resigned
on 12 December 2008 attended one meeting (personally or
represented by his alternate director, Mr. IKEDA Hiromi). Mr. LO
Kai Yiu, Anthony who was appointed on 12 December 2008
attended two meetings.

Operations of the Board

The Board determines the corporate mission and broad
strategies, monitors and controls operating and financial
performance and sets appropriate policies to manage risks in
pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives. Decisions involving
financial statements, dividend policy, material contracts and
major investments and divestments are reviewed and subject
to approval by the Board. Other main roles of the Board are to
ensure that adequate internal control systems and management
information systems are in place, including being in compliance
with every aspect of the provisions of applicable laws,
regulations, rules, directives and guidelines to create value for
its shareholders and to ensure that the Company has adequate
management to achieve the Company’s strategic objectives.

Independence of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors

The Company received confirmation of independence from each
of the independent non-executive directors for the year pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Up to and as at the date of this
report, the Company still considers that the independent non-
executive directors continue to be independent.
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Board of Directors (continued)
Relationship among the Members of the Board

The family relationships among the members of the Board are
disclosed under “Directors’ Profile” on pages 27 to 31 of this
annual report.

Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) are
segregated and are not held by the same person. Currently Mr.
KWEK Leng Hai is the Chairman and Mr. LEUNG Wai Fung is
the CEO of the Company.

The primary responsibility of the Chairman is to ensure effective
functioning of the Board, which focuses on the Group’s broad
strategic direction and macro oversight of the management.
The CEO is responsible for the management of the Company
in accordance with the strategies approved by the Board of
Directors.

Non-executive Directors

The non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific
term but they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meetings in accordance with the
Company'’s articles of association.

Remuneration of Directors

The Board Remuneration Committee (“BRC”) was established
on 1 July 2005 with written terms of reference made pursuant
to the relevant provisions of the CGP Code. The terms of
reference of the BRC adopted by the Board are available on the

Company’s website (www.lamsoon.com).

The BRC comprises Messrs. KWEK Leng Hai (Chairman of the
Company and the BRC), LO Kwong Chi, Clement and DING Wai
Chuen. The latter two are independent non-executive directors
of the Company.
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Remuneration of Directors (continueq)

During the year, two BRC meetings were held, which were
attended by all members. At these meetings, the remuneration
packages of the executive director and senior management for

the year were reviewed.

The principal role of the BRC is to make recommendations to
the Board on the policy and structure for all remuneration of
directors and senior management, and to determine the specific
remuneration packages of the executive director and all senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payment, including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment, and making
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of non-
executive directors. The BRC would also consider factors such
as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the directors, employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-based

remuneration.

Nomination of Directors

The Board is responsible for the selection and recommendation
of candidates for directorship of the Company. Reference would
be made to the skills, experience, professional integrity and time
commitments of the proposed candidate, the Company’s needs
and other applicable statutory requirements. The Board would
also review the size, structure and composition of the Board.

During the year, at one of the meetings of the board of
directors, nomination of director to the Board was reviewed and
discussed.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 30 June 2009, the external auditors of the
Group charged approximately HK$821,000 for annual audit
service and there was no non-audit service rendered by the

external auditors.
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Board Audit Committee

The Board Audit Committee (“BAC”) was established in
December 1998 with written terms of reference which were
revised on 1 July 2005 and 18 February 2009 to align with the
provisions under the CGP Code. The terms of reference of the
BAC are available on the Company’s website (www.lamsoon.
com).

The BAC comprises Messrs. LO Kwong Chi, Clement (Chairman
of the BAC), TSANG Cho Tai and DING Wai Chuen. Messrs.
LO Kwong Chi, Clement and DING Wai Chuen are independent
non-executive directors of the Company.

The BAC oversees the financial processes and the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Company’s system of internal control.
The BAC meets with the Company’s external auditors and the
internal auditors for their evaluations of the internal control
system. It also reviews interests in contracts and connected
transactions. The BAC reviews the financial statements of the
Company and the consolidated financial statements of the
Group and the auditors’ report thereon and submits its views to
the Board.

During the year, five BAC meetings were held. Messrs. LO
Kwong Chi, Clement, TSANG Cho Tai and DING Wai Chuen
attended all five meetings. The following is a summary of the
work performed by the BAC during the year:

— reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s systems of internal control and enterprise risk
management;

— reviewed the consolidated financial statements and
results of the Group;

— reviewed the external auditors’ report thereon;

— reviewed the appropriateness of the Group’s accounting
policies;

— reviewed at various times the potential impact of the
generally accepted accounting principles in Hong Kong
on the Company’s accounts; and

— reviewed the nature and scope of external audit and
approved the external audit fee.
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Board Audit Committee (continueq)

A statement by the external auditors on their reporting
responsibilities is set out on page 55 to 56 of the annual report.

The directors of the Company have acknowledged their
responsibility for preparing the financial statements for the year.

Internal Control

The internal control system is designed to facilitate the
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, safeguard assets
against unauthorised use and disposition, ensure the
maintenance of proper accounting records and the truth and
fairness of the financial statements, and ensure compliance with
relevant legislation and regulations. It provides reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss
and manages rather than eliminates risks associated with its
business activities.

The Board, recognising its responsibilities in ensuring sound
internal controls, has developed a risk management framework
for the Group to assist in:

— identifying the significant risks faced by the Group in the
operating environment as well as evaluating the impact of
such risks identified;

— developing the necessary measures for managing these
risks; and

— monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of such
measures.

The Board has entrusted the BAC with the responsibility to
oversee the implementation of the risk management framework
of the Group. In discharging this responsibility, the BAC,
assisted by the Group Internal Audit Department:

— periodically evaluates identified risks for their continuing
relevance in the operating environment and inclusion in
the risk management framework;

— assesses adequacy of action plans and control systems
developed to manage these risks; and

— monitors the implementation of the action plans and the
effectiveness of the control systems.
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Internal Control (continued)

These on-going processes have been in place, and reviewed
periodically by the BAC.

The controls built into the risk management framework are
intended to manage and not expected to eliminate all risks of
failure to achieve business objectives but to provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement of
management and financial information or against financial losses
and fraud.

In the associated companies and jointly controlled companies,
the Board nominates representatives to sit as directors and
take a proactive stance in assessing the performance of the
entity with the goal of safeguarding the investment of the Group.
Where practical, the Group may request functional, financial and
operating information as well as assurance that such information
have been prepared in accordance with reporting standards and
have been derived from control environments acceptable to the
Group.

The Board, through the BAC, has conducted an annual review
on the Group’s internal control system and considers that it is
adequate and effective. The Board is satisfied that the Group
has fully complied with the provisions on internal controls as set
out in the CGP Code.
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The directors submit their annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 30 June 2009.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out on pages 169
to 175.

Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out on pages 169
to 175.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year, the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 30 June 2009 and the Group’s
cash flows and statement of changes in equity for the year
ended are set out in the financial statements on pages 57 to
168.

Dividends

The Directors will recommend to the shareholders for approval
at the forthcoming annual general meeting a final dividend of
HK$0.09 per share. This, together with the interim dividend of
HK$0.06 per share paid on Wednesday, 18 March 2009, will
amount to a total dividend of HK$0.15 per share for the year
(HK$0.15 per share for the year ended 30 June 2008). Subject
to shareholders’ approval, the final dividend will be payable on
Wednesday, 25 November 2009 to the shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members on Wednesday, 18
November 2009.
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Closure of Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 13 November 2009 to Wednesday, 18 November
2009, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the final
dividend, all transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Share
Registrars and Transfer Office — Hongkong Managers and
Secretaries Limited at Unit 3401-2, 34th Floor, AIA Tower, 183
Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong not later than 4:00 p.m.
on Thursday, 12 November 2009.

Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group amounted to
HK$500,000 during the year (2008: HK$645,309).

Share Capital

As set out in Note 32 to the financial statements, there were no
movements in share capital during the year.

Reserves

Movements in reserves during the year are set out in Note 34 to
the financial statements.

Fixed Assets

Movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in Note
18 to the financial statements.
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Directors

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report
are:

KWEK Leng Hai, Chairman*
LEUNG Wai Fung, Group Managing Director**
WHANG Sun Tze*
LO Kwong Chi, Clement”
TAN Lim Heng*
TSANG Cho Tai*
DING Wai Chuen®
LO Kai Yiu, Anthony?*
— appointed on 12 December 2008
AU Chee Ming*
— appointed on 26 August 2009
IRIE Yasuaki®
— resigned on 12 December 2008
IKEDA Hiromi
— ceased to be alternate director to IRIE Yasuaki
on 12 December 2008

**  Executive director
*  Non-executive director
Independent non-executive director

#
In accordance with Article 78 of the Company’s articles of
association, Messrs. WHANG Sun Tze, TAN Lim Heng and
TSANG Cho Tai shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with Article 79 of the Company’s articles of
association, Messrs. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony and AU Chee Ming
shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, within one year without payment of

compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, holding company
or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

Connected Transactions
Master Services Agreement

A master services agreement (the “Master Services Agreement”)
was entered into by the Company (together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”) with Guoline Group Management Co. Limited
(“GGMC”) and GOMC Limited (“GOMC”) on 30 June 2008
for provision of services by GGMC or GOMC (the “Service
Provider”) to the Company and/or its subsidiaries, which
include, among other things, overview of businesses and
operations, investment management and financial management
disciplines, treasury and risk management, key managerial
recruitment and retention, productivity and quality programmes
and other operating practices and procedures as well as
planning and development of management information systems
(the “Services”).

The Master Services Agreement is for a term of three financial
years from 1 July 2008 to 30 June 2011.

The fees payable under the Master Services Agreement
comprise a monthly fee (the “Monthly Fee”) of HK$50,000 (or
such other amount as may be agreed from time to time between
the Service Providers and the Company) and an annual fee
(the “Annual Fee”) equal to 3 per cent. of the annual profits
before tax of the Company and the subsidiaries as shown in the
audited profit and loss accounts of the individual companies for
the relevant financial year, subject to appropriate adjustments,
if any. The total fee, being the sum of the Monthly Fee and the
Annual Fee, is subject to an annual cap of HK$13,000,000 (the
“Annual Cap”) for each of the three financial years ending 30
June 2011.
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Connected Transactions (continueq)

Master Services Agreement (continued)

GGMC and GOMC are indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of
Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM”), the ultimate
holding company of the Company, are connected persons,
which is deemed to be interested in the shareholding of 77.51%
in the Company. The transactions to be contemplated under the
Master Services Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company
reviewed the transactions under the Master Services Agreement
during the year and confirmed that:

(1) the transactions under the Master Services Agreement
for the year was entered into:

— in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

— on terms no less favourable to the Company than
the respective terms available from independent
third parties; and

— in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole;

2) the aggregate service fees paid and payable by the
Group under the Master Services Agreement for the year
amounted to approximately HK$3.5 million which did not
exceed the Annual Cap of HK$13 million as disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 4 July 2008.
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Connected Transactions (continueq)
Share Option Scheme

The Company obtained shareholders’ approval on 18 April 2006
to modify the share option scheme of the Company (the “Share
Option Scheme”) to provide for the satisfaction of the exercise of
options through issue of new shares of the Company or transfer
of existing issued shares of the Company (“Existing Shares”) or
a combination of both. A trust for the Share Option Scheme (the
“Trust”) was established in July 2006 pursuant to a trust deed
(the “Trust Deed”) between the Company and a trustee of the
Trust (the “Trustee”) to acquire Existing Shares for the purpose
of the Share Option Scheme. The Company or its subsidiaries
will provide finances to the Trust from time to time to enable the
Trust to acquire the Existing Shares for the purpose of the Trust.

The grant of options to the directors of the Company or its
subsidiaries (who are connected persons of the Company
under the Listing Rules) pursuant to the Share Option Scheme
and the grant of loans to the Trust, the beneficiaries of which
include directors and chief executive of the Group, from time to
time constitute continuing connected and possible discloseable
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company had
reviewed and confirmed that:

(1) no option was granted under the Share Option Scheme
for the year; and
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Connected Transactions (continueq)
Share Option Scheme (continued)

(2) during the year, the maximum subsisting amount of the
finances provided by the Group for the purchases of
Existing Shares are approximately HK$6,829,000 which
did not exceed the cap amount of HK$90 million as
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 10
March 2006. The provisions of such finances were made:

— in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company;

— on normal commercial terms; and

— in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

Management Contracts

Except the Master Services Agreement disclosed in the section
of “Connected Transactions” above, no contract concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Group was entered into or subsisted
during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing
Business

None of the directors is interested in any business apart from
the Group’s business, which is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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Directors’ Interests in Shares, EENRKR
Underlying Shares and Debentures #H2Z##s

As at 30 June 2009, the directors of the Company have the REZBZENERNAZTH FSEEREAAQATHR
following interests or short positions in the shares, underlying HEMBE AT (EERESRAEGKL([#E
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated RHE®RA DEXVEEEERERZSRBE
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities 1RBIEE 352 IR E T 88 2 B 5 B M A Fr sl = B
and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) as recorded in the register 7 EEREAFZRERND - HERORES
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of ZEZRBRELTHRAZ LT ARESETH
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the SR FWEESA([ZBESFH DEANEARQT
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities REBHERZMERLT(HRAT]) 2
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model T

Code”) contained in the Listing Rules:

(A) The Company (A) EAT
Approximate
percentage of
. total issued
ﬁt Number of share capital
H shares/ of the Company
@ underlying EEAT
2% Nature of shares held BT
I Name of director interest BERG  Notes Total RE@Ez
Iy BEEpz e RS E Jiopz3 st Bmaaatt
g
J'E KWEK Leng Hai Personal 2,300,000 2,300,000 0.95%
# SISy A
o
% LEUNG Wai Fung Personal 200,000 200,000 0.08%
RRE A
[<2]
]
o WHANG Sun Tze Personal 27,123,743
’8'_ g A
O
(v
§ Corporate 19,326 (a)
g A
<
o Persons acting 150,790,035 (b) & (c) 177,933,104 73.12%
'E in concert
= —HTBAt
°
G
2 LO Kwong Chi, Clement  Personal 403,754 403,754 0.17%
g BES BA
<
5 TAN Lim Heng Personal 274,000 274,000 0.11%
@ B fBA
&
- DING Wai Chuen Personal 10,000 10,000 0.00%
TE# A
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Directors’ Interests in Shares,
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Underlying Shares and Debentures (4)
Associated corporations (B) HEtEAT
Approximate
percentage
of total
issued
share
capital of
Number of associated
shares/ corporation
Name of underlying EBE AT
associated Name of Nature of shares held ERITHRE
corporation director interest BERB  Notes Total il
BEASEE EEnE 35303 HERBEE Wiz @t BoEalt
Hong Leong Company KWEK Leng Hai Personal 420,500 420,500 2.62%
(Malaysia) Berhad LISy A
Guoco Group Limited KWEK Leng Hai Personal 3,800,775 3,800,775 1.16%
EEEEERLA 28 A
TAN Lim Heng Personal 566,230 566,230 0.17%
Bk EPN
TSANG Cho Tai Personal 1,000 1,000 0.00%
B8R A
DING Wai Chuen Personal 5,000 5,000 0.00%
TR EPN
LO Kai Yiu, Anthony ~ Personal 6,067 6,067 0.00%
BERUR A
Guocoland Limited KWEK Leng Hai Personal 26,468,186 26,468,186 2.98%
SRt ERRAH #28 EDN
WHANG Sun Tze Family 66,600 66,600 0.01%
BELE Rk
TAN Lim Heng Personal 1,333,333 1,333,333 0.15%
Bk A
TSANG Cho Tai Personal 268,000 268,000 0.03%
8% EPN
Hong Leong Bank KWEK Leng Hai Personal 3,955,700 3,955,700 0.26%
Berhad HSE A
WHANG Sun Tze Family 129,000 129,000 0.01%
ErE eV
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Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

(continued)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT EE&iR&E

EENRKG  HERKRDRE
HF 2R =

Associated corporations (continued) (B) H=ZEAT(#E)
Approximate
percentage
of total
issued
share
capital of
Number of associated
shares/ corporation
Name of underlying EBE AT
associated Name of Nature of shares held ERITRE
corporation director interest BERB  Notes Total ol
BEASEHE EEnz 353031 HERGBEE Wiz @ BeEslt
Hong Leong Financial KWEK Leng Hai Personal 2,316,800 2,316,800 0.22%
Group Berhad HSE {EDN
WHANG Sun Tze Family 534,092 534,092 0.05%
ErE eV
TAN Lim Heng Personal 245,700 245,700 0.02%
Bk E 5PN
Hong Leong Industries KWEK Leng Hai Personal 189,812 189,812 0.07%
Berhad LIy A
WHANG Sun Tze Family 105,600 105,600 0.05%
ErE eV
GuocolLand (Malaysia) KWEK Leng Hai Personal 226,800 226,800 0.03%
Berhad LISy A
TAN Lim Heng Personal 326,010 326,010 0.05%
Bk A
Hume Industries WHANG Sun Tze Family 12,667 12,667 0.01%
(Malaysia) Berhad BEE Rik
HLG Capital Berhad KWEK Leng Hai Personal 500,000 500,000 0.41%
#28 5PN
GuocoLeisure Limited TAN Lim Heng Personal 650,000 650,000 0.05%
B A
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Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

(continued)

(B) Associated corporations (continued)
Notes:

(a) The interests disclosed represent the corporate interests
of Dr. WHANG Sun Tze in 18,457 ordinary shares and
869 ordinary shares in the Company held by SGR
Investment Company, Limited (“SGR”) and T.C. Whang &
Company (Private) Limited (“T.C. & Co.”) respectively. Dr.
WHANG Sun Tze holds 95.41% and 59.52% interests in
SGR and T.C. & Co. respectively.

(b) The total interests disclosed herein represent the
interests in 177,914,647 ordinary shares of the Company
which the respective parties held by virtue of Section 317
of the SFO in relation to the interests in shares pursuant
to the shareholders’ agreement and the supplemental
agreement both dated 27 May 1997 entered into by
Guoinvest International Limited (“Guoinvest”) and, inter
alia, Dr. WHANG Sun Tze (alias: WHANG Siong Tiat), the
late Mr. WHANG Tar Choung, Madam TEO Joo Yee, T.C.
& Co. and Raven Investment Company, Limited (“Raven”)
and the Novation Agreement dated 5 September
2003 entered into by Guoinvest, Guoline International
Limited (“GuoLine”, a sister subsidiary of Guoinvest), Dr.
WHANG Sun Tze (alias: WHANG Siong Tiat), the late Mr.
WHANG Tar Choung, Madam TEO Joo Yee, T.C. & Co.
and Raven.

(c) The interests of persons acting in concert disclosed
represent the deemed interests of Dr. WHANG Sun Tze
in 150,790,035 ordinary shares in the Company referred
to in Note (b) above.

All the interests disclosed in sections (A) and (B) above
represent long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company
or its associated corporations save as otherwise specified in the
notes above.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the director of the Company
had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

(@) B RELERLER
SGR Investment Company, Limited
(TSGR) & T.C. Whang & Company
(Private) Limited ([T.C. & Co.1) 7 Bl
BAEARRQT 18,457 R B R & 869
REBER 2ER -

(o) AXFBEEZEZRRETAA
177,914647TREBER 2ERZ B
BETHAEBHEIREESRBE
& Bl £3171% 2 # E > Guoinvest
International Limited ([ Guoinvest |)
RELEEL CHERBLE
RMELZL - T.C. & Co. RFERE
ERLATATRMEZDRER-A AL
FEA-T LRSI ZREHER
# & 1% % K Guoinvest » Guoline
International Limited ([ Guoline]
Guoinvest Z IR B AR ) » E L
Tt  EMEABEE ROEX
+ - T.C. & Co. RAEREBE_TZ=
FRAEAMBIZHARERERA
BEZRMOER -

() Bz —BITBATEERERLEX
M) fiimE LtEBLEEAR
150,790,035 REBR 2R HE
B2 -

AR LM A) R B) R FAKE 2 B ERRE
EARRBREBERRAZ2HFAEERRS - ®
EXEMERR -

BRAFIREEN  BEETARQIBESHA
AAFAEABEQRAREEARBEESRHE
RPIEB2RMEMR 2 BT BMPAE 2R
7 BERARPZXERS - HERORES
EREEETUAAMEA DRI 2E

ﬁﬁo
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Share Options

As at 1 July 2008, the following options granted to a director
and other employees pursuant to the current share option
scheme approved by the shareholders on 23 May 2003 and
subsequently amended and approved by the shareholders on
18 April 2006 (the “Share Option Scheme”) of the Company
were outstanding. During the year, these options lapsed as the
vesting conditions in accordance with the terms of grant had
not been met:

Bzt

R-ZZEENFLtAE—B RER-ZTZ=FH
A-T+=ZHERFAERHEER-ZZREN
BTN\BERRMEBIT2REERESTE
(TEREE D TIHRTFESRAMESEZ
BIREEARITHE - RN BLEBRERERRE
RERBRTIRRAZEBIRET AR

No. of options Number of
Outstanding at options
1/7/2008 & lapsed outstanding at
during the period 30/6/2009
R-FFTNE R-ZZEE
+tA—BERITE ~A=+H Exercise price
Date of grant Grantees TRBARRZZ i RATIE per share
i ds =B BRA fERxER R ZBRERE BRITEE
HK$
B
25 July 2006 LEUNG Wai Fung (director) 2,200,000 — 4.50
—EBEXRE R (EFE)
+BA=+HH
Other employees of the Group 1,500,000 — 4.50
EEHEMES
Total: #5t : 3,700,000

In addition, no options were granted pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme during the year. Accordingly, there were no
outstanding options as at 30 June 2009.

Save as disclosed herein, no other options were vested,
exercised, lapsed or cancelled during the year.

Certain subsidiaries of Hong Leong Company (Malaysia)
Berhad, the Company’s ultimate holding company have made
arrangements under which eligible directors of the Company
may acquire shares in the respective companies concerned. No
directors of the Company have acquired shares in pursuance of
the arrangements.

Apart from the foregoing, there was no arrangement to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, holding company or
fellow subsidiaries was a party to enable the directors to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate.

o REATEREERESIREBR
e Hit REZEZANFAB=ZTHIEERK
TEZBRE -

BRAXFKREEN  RAFERNLEHBIER
EERARE - 1T/ - KRMHEUH °

RN T Z B #AIERR A T Hong Leong Company
(Malaysia) Berhad (£ (ERfo)BRLEF)
ZETHEBARCHRAQAGAECERESIESR
BARZROELZH  RAFEEARRD
W BEAARESREZHESRY -

BRACPE SN A DB HEEMME AR
ZERABDRENE AL EBFFTEMME - £
EEVEBBEARAREMEMIT ZRMH
HEHFMESHE
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Substantial Shareholders’ and
Other Persons’ Interests in Shares

As at 30 June 2009, the following persons (other than directors
of the Company) have interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

FEREREMEAZ R
HE2x

REZZZAFAB=1TH REBHZRPER
PIE 336 HRREMR 2B AMPFAE - T3
AT (RRBFEERMNFEROREERAF
ZRBRBRHRERER M 2 s

Approximate
Number of percentage

shares held Notes of interest

FAZiRHEE Kt HEEmZBERE

The estate of the late WHANG Tar Choung
EMEABZEE

Raven Investment Company, Limited (“Raven”)

NEREARAR(HED

T.C. Whang & Company (Private) Limited (“T.C. & Co.”)

TEO Joo Yee

RIE

Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM”)

QUEK Leng Chan

BLIR

HL Holdings Sdn Bhd (“HLH")

Hong Leong Investment Holdings Pte Limited (“HLIH”")

Davos Investment Holdings Private Limited (“Davos”)

KWEK Leng Kee

177,914,647  (A)+(B) 73.11%
177,914,647  (A)+(C) 73.11%
177,914,647  (A)+(D) 73.11%
177,914,647  (A)+(E) 73.11%
188,632,647  (A)+(F)+(G) 77.51%
188,632,647  (A)+(F)+(G) 77.51%
188,632,647  (A)+(F)+(G) 77.51%
188,632,647  (A)+(F)+(G) 77.51%
188,632,647  (A)+(F)+(G) 77.51%
188,632,647  (A)+(F)+(G) 77.51%
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DIRECTORS'’

Substantial Shareholders’ and
Other Persons’ Interests in Shares

(continued)

Notes:

(A)

The total interests disclosed herein represent the interests
in 177,914,647 ordinary shares of the Company which the
respective parties held by virtue of Section 317 of the SFO in
relation to the interests in shares pursuant to the shareholders’
agreement and the supplemental agreement both dated 27
May 1997 entered into by Guoinvest International Limited
(“Guoinvest”) and, inter alia, Dr. WHANG Sun Tze (alias: WONG
Siong Tiat), the late Mr. WHANG Tar Choung, Madam TEO
Joo Yee, T.C. & Co. and Raven and the Novation Agreement
dated 5 September 2003 entered into by Guoinvest, GuoLine
International Limited (“GIL", a sister subsidiary of Guoinvest), Dr.
WHANG Sun Tze (alias: WONG Siong Tiat), the late Mr. WHANG
Tar Choung, Madam TEO Joo Yee, T.C. & Co. and Raven.

The interests disclosed comprise (i) own interest of the late
Mr. WHANG Tar Choung in 5,337,637 ordinary shares in the
Company; and (ii) the deemed interest in 172,577,010 ordinary
shares in the Company held by other parties referred to in Note
(A) above.

The interests disclosed comprise (i) own interest of Raven in
1,221,205 ordinary shares in the Company; and (ii) the deemed
interest in 176,693,442 ordinary shares in the Company held by
other parties referred to in Note (A) above.

The interests disclosed comprise (i) own interest of T.C. & Co.
in 869 ordinary shares in the Company; and (ii) the deemed
interest in 177,913,778 ordinary shares in the Company held by
other parties referred to in Note (A) above.

The interests disclosed comprise (i) own interest of Madam
TEO Joo Yee in 4,222,534 ordinary shares in the Company; and
(i) the deemed interest in 173,692,113 ordinary shares in the
Company held by other parties referred to in Note (A) above.

The interests disclosed comprise (i) the corporate interests in
140,008,659 ordinary shares in the Company held through GIL;
(i) the deemed interest in 37,905,988 ordinary shares in the
Company held by other parties referred to in Note (A) above;
(iii) own interest of Richly Choice Development (PTC) Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in 1,393,000 ordinary
shares in the Company; and (iv) own interest of Oceanease
Limited in 9,325,000 underlying shares of other unlisted
derivatives of the Company.

FERREEMEANZFIR

i

(#)

AXFHEREZEAEZAERE QA
177914647TREBR 2 BFE T
ERSITREZFFIRBERMNEINTIH
2 | E » Guoinvest International Limited
(TGuoinvest ) R ELETHE L EWHEK
BEE - RUBLZL TC & CoRAME
BER-—AAEtETEA=-+LAFTZR
Wi & & 7 & & Guoinvest » Guoline
International Limited ([ GIL % Guoinvest Ik
EWEAT) ELEEL - EWMERBL
£ RMELZL T.C. & Co. RAERE=
EE=FNAEAMBEIZNBERESRF
BEZER -

B EZER(ICHREABLELERS
RARAQAFS3B76I7TREBRZ2ER: &
() EXMZFA)FMBAEMALTEEZAR
FA72,577,010REBR 2 ERAEE 2 &

éo

FHRBEZEBERENINERSZRAERF
1221206 R BB R < E&H . R()E X
MEAREREMMALTHEEZARAF
17669342 R ERBR 2B AEB 2 &

éo

B EEEE()T.C. & Co. AFRART
869 RELBAR A2 » ] (i) LT EE (A) Bt
BHEMALTEEZERQAT177,913,778 B
BARZERBEE 2R -

FHECEZERE()RUBELLTARERE
NF4222534BEBR 2 k)L
XHFARABEMALEEZADQT
173,692, 11 EBER 2 ERABEE 2 &

éo

I BECERBEE)EBGILEERAAQT
140,008,659 B & @I 2 #E & ; (i) L XM=
(A) Frii g B Ath A 3558 2 42§ 37,905,988
BREBR2HEEAERZ#ESR (i) Richly
Choice Development (PTC) Limited » A< 5]
ZEEMBLT - HERA2AT1,393,000
BB K =2 F, K(v) Oceanease
Limited R B RAQAREMIF LHLTETR
9,325,000 R AEREMR 17 2 R ©
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Substantial Shareholders’ and
Other Persons’ Interests in Shares

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(G) GIL is a wholly-owned subsidiaries of GuoLine Capital Assets
Limited (“GCA”) which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
HLCM. Oceanease Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
GuocoEquity Assets Limited which in turn is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Guoco Group Limited which in turn is 71.48%
owned by GuolLine Overseas Limited (“GOL”). GOL is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of GCA. By virtue of Section 316(2) of the
SFO, HLCM was 49.11% owned by Mr. QUEK Leng Chan
(2.43%) and HLH (46.68%) which was in turn wholly-owned by
Mr. QUEK Leng Chan. HLCM is held as to 34.49% by HLIH. Mr.
KWEK Leng Kee holds 41.92% interest in Davos which in turn
holds 33.59% interest in HLIH.

All the interests disclosed under this section represent long
positions in the ordinary shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, no other person (other than directors
of the Company) has an interest or a short position in the shares
and underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of
the Company’s Listed Shares

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
shares.

Major Customers and Suppliers

Total sales to the Group’s 5 largest customers accounted for
less than 30% of the Group’s turnover for the year.

Total purchases from the Group’s 5 largest suppliers accounted
for less than 30% of the Group’s purchases for the year.

At no time during the year have the directors or their associates
or any shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

T ERE R MEN 2R

HEZR @)

BisE - (&)

(@) GIL & GuoLine Capital Assets Limited ([ GCA )
ZEEMBAR #&FABHLCMZEEH
B A T  Oceanease Limited BBIEREAE
EERARZZEMBAR  #EABESE
EERARZZEME DR I H GuoLine
Overseas Limited ([GOLJ) # B71.48% °
GOLBGCAZEEMBAR - RIEFZRH
B &P 31621 2 E - HLCM 249.11%
i B SIR % & (2.43%) R HLH(46.68%)
FEE #ERBSBEEZEBEAT -
HLIH¥: BHLCM 34.49% 2 # # o KWEK
Leng KeeSL43#H Davos 41.92% Z BHEM
Davos Bl HLIH 33.59% Z IR #& ©

LA BEMAREEARBEALTHFR
EERKRAD

BRANFIBEEN  REEFSZRMERHNE
336 MRMEMR 2B CMER - WEAMAL
(RRBESHRMFERORBBERAH 2%
RROMABERD 2 #H o

BE HESBOEATZ
EHEES

RAFER  A2FREEMHEQBAHER
B HEFBEAQ T ZEMEHES -

FEERRUERN

FEEETHRANBLUTFNWHERLESR
SEAFEHEEIMNI0% e

AEBBEAESRANBELUHERNBERGE
SEARFEBEREILNI0% °

REAFERARNRARZES - HBBATHEM
BRRAESHANERBBSR A RARMD ZA
DRREZSTERFREREREEEME

H o
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Sufficiency of Public Float

At all times during the year, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors.

Auditors

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring auditors, Messrs.
PKF, Certified Public Accountants, is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board
KWEK Leng Hai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 August 2009

DIRECTORS’ REPORT EE&iR&E

RIAZADFHIKE

ERAMRAQAEHNZERRBESHA
BoEAFEAR ARE-BEHEFEHRAR
ARAZARIERE -
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EMEARZRRAFES  BRIRER
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DA HV L BED
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PKF

Accountants &
business advisers

26/F, Citicorp Centre
18 Whitfield Road
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF LAM SOON (HONG KONG) LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lam
Soon (Hong Kong) Limited set out on pages 57 to 168, which
comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as
at 30 June 2009, and the consolidated income statement,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and
fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an independent opinion on
these consolidated financial statements based on our audit and
to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

RERBR(EB)SrTAIEHA

w5t
i
BLIEBRIE T \5%

BEEBT LT /E

BIZMERENEIR(EFE)BRATZE
B3R
(REBEMELZBREE])

A BED (LA T R A ) B ERFIERNE 57
Z168EHIR(EB)ERABELTINGES
BHHmE LEAMBRREBER-ZZNF
AAZtTHENGREEABERRAFGEESR
REBEZHLEFENGERER  KEER
ZBHRNGERENER  URFTBESHEE
PR K 2R o

ESFMBRTRAREN
B

EXARERBEEEEHMOSEMNETEY
BHRELARBBLAMRIEREEEN QY
WIRZEFEMBRE - EEEBERG
B R ERRERREEM QT i 5 R0 K&
RAEBOARMES  UEREUBERRIEFE
HREFFRERME MW E NFERRA ; B2
MEABENSITEER REBEATHFHERE
B EFHhET o

ZE AT B T

EMANEEERBEMCERTEEREZE
REVBBRREZR » WREEE DL TKA
BN IRERNZBRRERS - Rt 25 - T8
ST EEMAR - EMTERABRE AR
EEAEM AT E ERAIEEATEE -
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INDEPENDENT

AUDITOR’S REPORT

Auditor’s Responsibility (continueq)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 30 June 2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared

in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PKF

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 August 2009
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RIETER BLEEAZRAMBITERR
g WRBRHMITER  UESEBRELERS
MHBRERE B EMERERBRAL

ERSRPTRFUENEBGEWBRERAN
HEBERBEEHNNERRR - TEENERF
HUR AR BLEM B9 # B - B 5T R EKEF SR
RMEHGEMBRREFBENFERRMNE
b o EAMEZEERE  ZBMEZEEZER
RRREBMQTHIRERSWBEHRREEN
REBES - LR EENERRF  BXER
HEBNAREFNORERRER - ERTE
EHEESRANSHBRENSE R AE
HENETAFTHEEN - URFESFSHBR
REOBEIIHAR -

BFERGE HFAMESHNEREERAZNE
EMARMNNELSREHER -

BR

BMRB  ZEREVBRRCOCRETBUK
BRELXNEEMATHRR EAAR EKE
REZZBZEAFAA=THENBBERRRBEZ
ALFENEESEARRESRE  XOERRE
BARRGIZRER

KIERBR(FE)SHEER
BIFEE A

B5 BBAF/ A=A



CONSOLIDATED IN

For the year ended 30 June 2009

B Z 2009 6 530 HIEFE
2009 2008
—EBEAE —EENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
izt BT BT
Continuing operations HEEEER
Turnover =2 7 2,072,448 2,094,370
Cost of sales SHERKA (1,659,834) (1,767,532)
Gross profit EF 412,614 326,838
Other income Ha A 8 24,654 61,703
Selling and distribution expenses  $HERDHE A (207,037) (181,359)
Administrative expenses THER (101,260) (91,118)
Other operating expenses Hih L& EH (31,658) (1,042)
Operating profit R 97,313 115,022
Finance costs L& RN 9 (3,339) (5,885)
Share of profit of a jointly PG HE R EERE R
controlled entity e A 23 3,344 3,347
Profit before taxation RRBE AE A 10 97,318 112,484
Taxation B X 12(b) (18,799) (11,220)
Profit for the year from continuing A EEREKIL LR >
operations e A 78,519 101,264
Discontinued operation ERIEEEER 14
Profit for the year from a AEECRIEEER -
discontinued operation s A - 5,685
Net gain on disposal of a HEBR G ETE
discontinued operation EF - 8,803
Total profit from a discontinued DRIEREER S
operation R A - 14,488
Profit for the year IR R F 78,519 115,752
Attributable to: HERN
Shareholders of the Company ¥ NS 15 78,519 118,099
Minority interests DR RER = (2,347)
Profit for the year IR B F 78,519 115,752
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT Z&li&z®:

For the year ended 30 June 2009

B Z 2009 6 530 HIEFE
2009 2008
—EBTAE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT BT T
Appropriations: Wi 16
Final dividend paid in respect of LUl £ E B AR
prior year KRE 21,777 19,357
Interim dividend paid in respect REFEAHHE
of current year BRE 14,517 14,517
36,294 33,874
Earnings per share (HK$) FREF(ET) 17
Basic E=9:N 0.32 0.49
Diluted e N/A 0.49
For profit from continuing FEREER
operations (HK$) ZmMGET)
. Basic LN 0.32 0.42
i Diluted e N/A 0.42
i For profit from a discontinued BRIEREER
@ operation (HK$) ZaRl (&)
h?e'l’ Basic HAR - 0.07
Diluted e N/A 0.07
Proposed final dividend BIRERIRE 16 21,902 21,902

The notes on pages 67 to 168 form part of these financial FIRETE 168 B2 EEMIT AR KRR 2
statements. — &R o

E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2009 lE (F#) HRAT
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CONSOLIDATED B

ALANCE SHEET &8 &E8ER

At 30 June 2009
20096 530H
2009 2008
—EThE —EENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
it BETIT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Fixed assets BE&E 18(a) 501,308 496,494
Leasehold land HE L 19 45,125 48,402
Intangible assets BREE 20 2,175 2,175
Interests in associates BE N TRER 22 24,581 24,581
Interest in a jointly controlled F [5) 32 41 {E g2
entity = 23 58,313 63,268
Available-for-sale financial assets At HENMBEE 24 654 757
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 13(a) 1,523 8,935
633,679 644,612
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories 7E 25 183,731 273,625
Debtors, deposits and BWER - Ze R
prepayments AR 26 214,600 236,769
Amount due from a jointly FE U E R I {E A2
controlled entity FRIE 23 10,461 50,575
Cash and cash equivalents BHeERBEESEH 27 639,844 532,081
1,048,636 1,093,050
CURRENT LIABILITIES nBARE
Bank loans RITER 28 40,500 212,000
Creditors, deposits received and EAERR  EWEER
accruals EstE A 29 294,083 217,148
Tax payable iAREEN 11,070 7,029
Other current liabilities HitRBa s 30 29,254 28,132
374,907 464,309
NET CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE 673,729 628,741
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT @& ERRE
LIABILITIES Bf& 1,307,408 1,273,353
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHE

ET

.‘Q"

ey r

EAGEGER

At 30 June 2009
200946 F30H
2009 2008
—EBEAE —EENE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BtsE BEFir BT T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBER
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHREEE 13(a) - 1,044
Other non-current liabilities HiFERBER 31 309 509
309 1,553
NET ASSETS FEE 1,307,099 1,271,800
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEERHE
Share capital i &N 32(a) 243,354 243,354
Reserves fEE 34(a) 1,052,894 1,011,558
Equity attributable to shareholders AR BRREK
of the Company FEfhRER 1,296,248 1,254,912
Minority interests VYR RER 10,851 16,888
TOTAL EQUITY HEsmeE 1,307,099 1,271,800

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

26 August 2009.

LEUNG Wai Fung R{gl%
DIRECTOR EE

The notes on pages 67 to 168 form part of these financial

statements.

o SE

WHANG Sun Tze &EL#¥
DIRECTOR EE

— &7 o
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¥

N

P> ==
SHEET SE&ETR
At 30 June 2009
200946 530 A
2009 2008
—EBTAE —EENE
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
BtsE BETFr BB T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Fixed assets BEEEE 18(b) 1,157 1,054
Investments in subsidiaries MEBARRE 21 1,253,796 1,253,796
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR Y B 2~ B FRIE 21 1,248,728 1,171,594
Available-for-sale financial assets THEENBKEE 24 147 250
2,503,828 2,426,694
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Debtors, deposits and AR - REeRTE
prepayments INE 26 935 872
Cash and cash equivalents HERRLZHE 27 283,632 354,935
284,567 355,807
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENERE
Bank loans IRITER 28 12,500 30,000
Creditors, deposits received and AR - EWEER
accruals EFEA 29 13,876 9,724
Other current liabilities HibRBEE 30 - 54
26,376 39,778
NET CURRENT ASSETS FREEE 258,191 316,029
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT A& &ERRE
LIABILITIES =1 2,762,019 2,742,723
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kREBERE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAT B N R RIE 21 1,641,459 1,562,024
Other non-current liabilities HibEREBEE 31 = 45
1,641,459 1,562,069
NET ASSETS BEEFHE 1,120,560 1,180,654
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B2 KRG
Share capital &N 32(a) 243,354 243,354
Reserves & 34(b) 877,206 937,300
TOTAL EQUITY LS 1,120,560 1,180,654

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

26 August 2009.

LEUNG Wai Fung &{&lg
EZ

DIRECTOR

The notes on pages 67 to 168 form part of these financial

statements.

KABEEER-_ZZAFNA-+T A BHRER

BT -

WHANG Sun Tze &L#H
DIRECTOR EE

FIRE 67T E168 A2 HEMERAMBHRER 2
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For the year ended 30 June 2009

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQ

UITY &4

EnsaE

B Z 2009 6 530 HIEFE
Equity
attributable
to shareholders
of the Company Minority
RATBRE interests Total
EiEERE DERERER A%
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT BETFIT
Total equity at R-ZBZENELA—-BZ
1 July 2008 e 1,254,912 16,888 1,271,800
Change in fair value of available-for- Tt HEMMKEE
sale financial assets AREBEZEE (103) - (103)
Exchange differences arising on FEBINETH
translation of financial statements B mERMEEZ
of foreign operations ELZEZE (786) - (786)
Net expenses recognised directly in ~ fEAER HIERA >
equity EXH (889) - (889)
Profit for the year KEERA 78,519 - 78,519
Total recognised income for the year ZREEHRL 2L WA 77,630 - 77,630
Acquisition of additional equity BE-SWELAT
interest in a subsidiary s - (6,037) (6,037)
Dvidendspad BNRE = G624 ol BB
Total equity at “ETRFERA=ZTHRZ
30 June 2009 AL 1,296,248 10,851 1,307,099

The notes on pages 67 to 168 form part of these financial

statements.

— &2 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY &GA## &%
For the year ended 30 June 2009
B Z 2009 6 530 HIEFE
Equity
attributable
to shareholders
of the Company Minority
P NNET) interests Total
EhER DERRER a5
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT T BT
Total equity at R-EZELtFLA—HZ
1 July 2007 R 1,111,710 85,517 1,197,227
Change in fair value of available-for- At HENYTHEEE
sale financial assets DREBEEZED 16 - 16
Exchange differences arising on WERINERD
translation of financial statements MBHREMEEZ
of foreign operations EREE 44,957 2,044 47,001
Net income recognised directly in ERREERRZ
equity FUWA 44,973 2,044 47,017
Disposal of a discontinued operation HEC &K IEEH 14,698 (68,326) (53,628)
Liquidation of a subsidiary EE—XRMEBATR (1,052) - (1,052)
Profit/(loss) for the year REERR(FE) 118,099 (2,347) 115,752
Total recognised income/(expenses) AEEERZLBAWA
_fortheyear () 178718 (68,629) 108,089
Dividends paid  BfRE (3874 - (33,874)
Equity settled share-based LR ARBEEN
_fansaction 2% 38 —. I 358
Total equity at —EENFEXRA=Z+HZ
30 June 2008 fERAAEE 1,254,912 16,888 1,271,800

The notes on pages 67 to 168 form part of these financial

statements.

FIRE67 E168 2 S EMERRUBRER 2
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For the year ended 30 June 2009

&

e
a

s '.Z"
RER

e

B Z 2009 6 530 HIEFE
2009 2008
—EBTAE —ZTENFE
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
et BETIT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM RN
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RERE
Operating profit KRR
From continuing operations BEREE 97,313 115,022
From a discontinued operation BRIEEEER - 7,410
97,313 122,432
Adjustments for: F
Depreciation and amortisation ERE#HE 47,262 59,242
Provision for doubtful debts RIFREME 9,127 891
Write-down of inventories FERE 1,385 1,076
Interest income FIE WA (11,198) (6,932)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries EEMBLTWE - (2,009)
Gain on disposal of fixed assets HEBTEERR (4,287) (8,108)
Negative goodwill recognised on B —RHE QT
acquisition of additional equity R RN
interest in a subsidiary amE (2,968) -
Increase in liability for defined EFEMNBRAGEEEN
benefit retirement plans )i - 658
Increase/(decrease) in short-term  EHI{EERF AL M,
employee benefit ) 1,221 (65)
Equity settled share-based URMARREES
transactions X5 — 358
Operating profit before working EESSHEANLE
capital changes e A 137,855 167,543
Decrease/(increase) in inventories &R (#0) 87,750 (60,474)
Decrease/(increase) in amount due & U 3t [5]45 i {7 82 FR 1B /Y
from a jointly controlled entity WA, ($E ) 40,114 (42,708)
Decrease/(increase) in debtors, BEWERR - ReRFENRN
deposits and prepayments WA, (1) 12,204 (72,188)
Decrease in bills receivable FEWE I AR 2 = 830
Decrease in financial assets at fair  &E&F R D A BEHIRA
value through profit or loss MBEENRD - 2,922
Decrease in pledged deposits with 43 B # #AB/E IR R 172 3R AN
financial institutions L - 51
Increase/(decrease) in creditors, BAERR - CliRE KRBT
deposits received and accruals BRMIEM CREL) 79,129 (75,166)
Decrease in bills payable AT EE R = (5,388)
Cash generated from/(used in) R EE, (AW
operations He 357,052 (84,578)
Tax paid 2HIE
Hong Kong profits tax paid EEBREH (2,564) (3,207)
Overseas tax paid 2fEIEIE (5,826) (10,077)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ &%
(USED IN) OPERATING HERB
ACTIVITIES (FRiR) %8 348,662 (97,862)




For the year ended 30 June 2009

B Z 2009 6 530 HIEFE
2009 2008
—EBTAE —ZTENFE
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
et BETIT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM REFHM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RERE
Interest received BUWFE 11,198 6,932
Proceeds from disposal of HEWNB QTS
subsidiaries FIE (a) = 314,223
Purchase of fixed assets BEEREEE (52,370) (42,438)
Acquisition of additional equity BE—-XHEBLQT
interest in a subsidiary EZE (2,440) -
Dividend income from a jointly Uiy £ =) 422 14 B
controlled entity B2 8,299 —
Net proceeds from disposal of HEEEEENFE
fixed assets FIEFRE 6,817 11,189
NET CASH (USED IN)/ REFHM
GENERATED FROM H& (A,
INVESTING ACTIVITIES Fiig %8 (28,496) 289,906
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING Ri&;EEH
ACTIVITIES RERE
(Repayment)/drawdown of bank RITERHORD)
loans En (171,500) 69,896
(Decrease)/increase in RMEHRE
obligations under finance BEN RS,/
leases En (299) 439
Interest paid FHEFIE (3,722) (8,370)
Dividends paid FTHRE (36,294) (33,874)
NET CASH (USED IN)/ S EEN
GENERATED FROM W& (FRA)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES Fiig %8 (211,815) 28,091
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH IR2RRL&%iEM
EQUIVALENTS HEhn 108,351 220,135
CASH AND CASH FEMRE
EQUIVALENTS AT THE RESEHE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR #hes 532,081 293,083
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EREHN
EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES BE (588) 18,863
CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AT THE END EREER
OF THE YEAR RMeFREH 639,844 532,081

The notes on pages 67 to 168 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FL

For the year ended 30 June 2009
BiFE 2009 6 A 30 H1LFZF

Note to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

(a)

Disposal of principal subsidiaries

During the financial year ended 30 June 2009, the Group
did not dispose of any of its operations.

The Company disposed of its packaging business for a
consideration of US$53.5 million (approximately HK$417
million) in February 2008.

The cash flow and the net assets in respect of the
disposal were as follows:

3 \L » :t.'.. :‘ - . .-:‘ : j L .
OW STATEMENT Z8IREKRER

FEBSRERME

(a)

HEXEMBAT

BE-ZEZhFAA=THLEEFER

REBIRE HEEMEK -

E=ZZEZENEFEZR AR

AU E T

53,500,000 Jt (#) 78 # 417,000,000 7t )

NRELEABEERER -

FREENREREREEFENT :

2008

—EBEN\E

HK$’000

BEFT

Non-current assets FREBEE 234,758

Current assets REEE 329,527

Current liabilities REBEE (94,088)

Non-current liabilities FREBAE (9,920)

Minority interests DERRER (68,326)

Release of reserve R 14,698

Net assets disposed of HEREE 406,649

Provision and transaction costs EERXZEAR 1,875

Net gain on disposal HEEKFR 8,803

Cash received B3RS 417,327

Less: Cash and cash equivalents disposed of it - HEMNBRERREZEEH (103,104)
Net cash inflow in respect of the principal HEXTEMBLATZRESME

subsidiaries disposed of EBEE 314,223




1.

&

Moot i

TES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BT R FRMisE

General Information

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The
registered office and the principal place of business of the
Company is located at 21 Dai Fu Street, Tai Po Industrial
Estate, Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong. During the
year, the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred
to as the “Group”) were principally engaged in the
manufacturing and sales of flour products, edible oil and
household and institutional cleaning products.

Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group and the Company. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.

—BER

MIE(ERB)ERAT[TARFTNH—
BREBEMRLNERAT - NAF
MEMBHEER TELEBHUNEE
HAXBABIRENAREH =T -5 -
FR - ARARAREMBLR(SBIAE
EDHNERXEBARERIHEEY R
Al RARTERBTLZMAM -

EEEEE
(a) WFEH

B"EHBHBECRIETBSE
rE(EBEHEAE ) A
iz BEREBMBERERER
((EBMBHREERD ] - HHE
BEMEERZENE B BER
HER - FREFEN(ERS
SPEADRRE - BREEEAR
S RARE B QMRS 2 W E
REMBER - LEMBRE T
BEBMEREZMARAARES
ErRR( EwRR ) 2 B AR
BRI - TXIEAEERA 2
TEETBERME -

EBEMASCEMETRAE
EERADBDAETFEERS
AHRERRAHREBR 2E
B BREER - BRAYARME
WERAMRRNERRBESF
HEERERZEHNREETH
BRVBHEEAMEHNE T
BRBBNER  SEMEIRE
o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEM

‘.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2009 comprise the Group and
the Group’s interest in associates and a jointly
controlled entity.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that the following assets are stated at their
fair value as explained in the accounting policies
set out below:

— Available-for-sale financial assets (see note

2(1));

— Certain fixed assets (see note 2(f)).

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects

both current and future periods.

) 1y
ENTS BAF5ERRMIcE

2. EEEHHER®

(b)

MR ERREE

BE-_ZEZhFAA=THLE
EZHGREMBREEBFEAEEN
REAEEEBHEQAAR —RLR
ZHIERE s o

RS BRETRAZAE
BEEDBELRAE  MEUTUH
DRABEFEZEERI :

— AHEENEEERMKN
Z20));

—  ATEEEE(RMEE20).

RREEEBUBRELER 28
BHrFEEEEREFELHE - &
ARBREFESTHENER
MEE B WARBAXZHE
EEHE - ZE M REBRRU
BESRREETERTERE
ZZEAMERERE - EE
RBBEREREMRRESHZE
ENEERAEZHBEE - &
BERREERINZE M -

R REABBRREEERS - W
BRI FBEBR - MZRIEFT
REeyE8EHERETNEHE
B EEEZMEAER BN
EITHERMRRNEHHES
g MEEFETABERT
HYER R R R R RERR o
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2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Basis of preparation of financial
statements (continued)

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and estimates with a
significant risk of material adjustment in the next
year are discussed in note 4.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when
the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
goods have been transferred to the buyer.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the terms of the
respective leases.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

Income from management services is recognised
at the time when the services are provided.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates the fair value was determined.

NTS BATSSREMIEE

2. EEEHER®

(b)

(c)

(d)

MBmERRERE®E)

FHREERERAT RN BRSE
ZARAEHHEMBHRERBE
SR ZFE - URERBTRE
ETFEBRERARERAR 2
&t CRMEE 4R -

L O

HEERBAREREZEXRR
ba R W B TRAR R R o

RELEHEZHEWATIRE
FEENHERUERER
e

FE WA RBERFRERER

REEERSE WA T ERHR
KR -

EIRE

FRZINERGEBI S A2
ERGHE - LUNEREMZER
EERBEREERZIBER
BE ERBEEWSEKRER -

BEERAGRBZIEFERE
EREEERS HZMEERR
B UMERBENIUAREE
IRz HEREERBBERERE
DNRBEERZIINEERBRE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCI

M S
AL STATEM

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(d)

(e)

Translation of foreign currencies
(continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) at the average
exchange rates for the year. Balance sheet items,
including goodwill arising on consolidation of
foreign operations acquired on or after 1 January
2005, are translated into HK$ at the closing
foreign exchange rates at the balance sheet date.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised
directly in a separate component of equity.
Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before 1 January 2005 is
translated at the foreign exchange rate that applied
at the date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to
that foreign operation is classified from equity
to income statement when the profit or loss on
disposal is recognised.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s chief operating
decision makers for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

&)

ENTS BITSERRMmIEE

2. EEEHHER®

(d)

(e)

IVEEIRE (F)

BN EB RERZFETIIE
REREBT - BEERERER
(BEZZEZRF-A—-HHEX
BUB BN EBRATERE
ECEB)AREERZIEE
RBERBL - IEEZERE
HEERR TR 2B AN
o - RZBZRF-A—HZ
RIWiE 2 B EBGETERE
E2EBRARBEERIIERE R
ZHNEERBE -

HEFIEBIREZEEER
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E)
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2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(e)

(f)

Segment reporting (continued)

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet at
cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses. The cost of an asset
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
present working condition and location for its
intended use. Expenditure incurred after a fixed
asset has been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to income
statement in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditure has resulted in an increase
in the future economic benefits expected to be
obtained from the use of the fixed asset, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of

the fixed asset.

NTS BATSSREMIEE

2. EEEHER®

(e)

(f)

SERERE ()

RUBHREMS - FREREE
DEMIEFE 2], BRFELED
BABELUEBEEBHEUREER
ERBEME - LERFMHE &
FEARER - 2 HERIEM
BRBEAFEAZAAREEREN
BREEB - B M S L IEE
BERCEBEIMARER LMK

BB ATHRE2H -
EE&E
B & E IR R AN G ER R T
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BABEEEBANKE  mLHE
ZHEEEXRZEFHMRESR
BREREAZRHMREMIAHNE
M- EEEEERABHFRNX
o MEBRRE - IBEME
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEM

‘.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(f)

Fixed assets (continued)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less
impairment losses (See note 2(p)). Cost comprises
direct costs of construction and exchange
differences capitalised during the periods of
construction and installation. Capitalisation of
these costs ceases and the construction in
progress is transferred to fixed assets when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the assets for their intended use are completed.
No depreciation is provided for in respect of
construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
or valuation of items of fixed assets, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Buildings and leasehold 1%/,% — 33'/:,%

improvements
Plant, equipment, furniture 5% — 33'/,%

and motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of fixed assets have
different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual

value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of fixed assets are determined
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and
are recognised in income statement on the date of
retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF$R Rz

'y

2. Significant Accounting Policies 2. EE&HB¥ @

(continued)

(g) Leased assets (9) THEESE
An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a MRAEELE-—BEBZHE(EE—
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the B -RIRZ)VBERE—R
Group determines that the arrangement conveys HEPEEE—EH—EEEE
a right to use a specific asset or assets for an ENGEHE BB —ER2E
agreed period of time in return for a payment or N7 BIEEZHEaESHE -
a series of payments. Such a determination is BEREUEBENEEZHEY
made based on an evaluation of the substance of i MAEEERERBIR
the arrangement and is regardless of whether the HENEEER -

arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)  Classification of assets leased to the () FEEHEBSEZAHE

Group

Assets that are held by the Group under HRAKEUEEREZ o
leases which transfer to the Group EE WMBEEFEmEEZ o
substantially all the risks and rewards of BRI B R B HRER ﬂ‘-
ownership are classified as being held EREE FBZEEE ﬁ
under finance leases. Leases which do ENEAURENER I
not transfer substantially all the risks and B, MEETEFEHEEE
rewards of ownership to the Group are Z 8B R ER o BB A [B] 3R 5
classified as operating leases. BELREE BoEAYE

BHEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCI

.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(9)

Leased assets (continued)

(ii)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of
assets under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments, of such
assets are included in fixed assets and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance
charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at
rates which write off the cost or valuation
of the assets over the term of the relevant
lease or, where it is likely the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the
asset, as set out in note 2(f). Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy as set out in note
2(p). Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments are charged to income statement
over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of
the obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to income
statement in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(9)

(h)

Leased assets (continued)

(iii)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to
income statement in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by
the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in income statement as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to income statement in the
accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease term.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to

the acquisition, construction or production of an

asset which necessarily takes a substantial period

of time to get ready for its intended use or sale

are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in income

statement in the period in which they are incurred.
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.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(h)

(i)

Borrowing costs (continued)

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part
of the cost of a qualifying asset commences
when expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in process. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.
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'NOTES TO THE FIN

e ’ .
Nl st 2 acs

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(i)

Subsidiaries and minority interests

(continued)

Minority interests represent the portion of the net
assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests
that are not owned by the Company, whether
directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, and
in respect of which the Group has not agreed
any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meet the definition of a
financial liability. Minority interests are presented
in the consolidated balance sheet within equity,
separately from equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. Minority interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the
face of the consolidated income statement as
an allocation of the total profit or loss for the
year between minority interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the
minority’s interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the
excess, and any further losses applicable to the
minority, are charged against the Group’s interest
except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation to, and is able to, make additional
investment to cover the losses. If the subsidiary
subsequently reports profits, the Group’s interest
is allocated all such profits until the minority’s
share of losses previously absorbed by the Group
has been recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(p)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCI

.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(i)

Associates and jointly controlled entities

An associate is an entity in which the Group
has significant influence, but not control or
joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which
operates under a contractual arrangement
between the Group and other parties, where the
contractual arrangement establishes that the
Group and one or more of the other parties share
joint control over the economic activity of the
entity.

An investment in an associate or a jointly
controlled entity is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the
equity method and is initially recorded at cost
and adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition
change in the Group’s share of the associate’s
or the jointly controlled entity’s net assets. The
consolidated income statement includes the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the associates and jointly controlled
entities for the year, including any impairment loss
on goodwill relating to the investment in associates
and jointly controlled entities recognised for the
year (see notes 2(0) and 2(p)).
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-NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#$3RRMisE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(i)

(k)

Associates and jointly controlled entities
(continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate or the jointly controlled
entity, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate or the jointly controlled
entity. For this purpose, the Group’s interest in
the associate or the jointly controlled entity is
the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate or the
jointly controlled entity.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
and jointly controlled entities are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the associate or
jointly controlled entity, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred, in which case they are

recognised immediately in income statement.

Debtors, deposits and prepayments

Debtors, deposits and prepayments are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 2(p)), except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting will be immatieral. In such
cases, the debtors, deposits and prepayments are
stated at cost less impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debts (see note 2(p)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEM

‘.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

N

(m)

(n)

Available-for-sale financial assets

At initial recognition and each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition, available-for-
sale financial assets are measured at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recognised in equity,
until the investment is disposed of or determined
to be impaired (see note 2(p)), at which time, the
cumulative loss previously recognised in equity is
removed from equity and recognised in income
statement.

When the fair value of unlisted securities cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates
is significant for that investment or (b) the
probabilities of the various estimates within the
range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such securities are stated at

cost less any impairment losses.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in income
statement over the period of the borrowings,
together with any interest and fees payable, using
the effective interest method.

Creditors, deposits received and
accruals

Creditors, deposits received and accruals are
initially recognised at fair value. Except for financial
guarantee liabilities measured in accordance
with note 2(t)(i), creditors, deposits received and
accruals are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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NOTE

S TO THE FIN

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(o)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of
a business combination or an investment in
an associate or a jointly controlled entity over
the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to
cash-generating units and is tested annually
for impairment (see note 2(p)). In respect of
associates or jointly controlled entities, the
carrying amount of goodwill is included in the
carrying amount of the interest in the associate or

jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost
of a business combination or an investment in an
associate or a jointly controlled entity is recognised
immediately in income statement.

On disposal of a cash generating unit, an
associate or a jointly controlled entity during
the year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit
or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCI

M S
AL STATEM

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(p)

Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables

Investments in equity securities (other than
investments in subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities: see note
2(p)(ii)) and other current and non-
current receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost or are classified
as available-for-sale financial assets are
reviewed at each balance sheet date
to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about
one or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the

technological, market, economic

or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment in an

equity instrument below its cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEME

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(p)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables
(continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined and recognised as
follows:

— For unquoted equity securities
carried at cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at
the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material.
Impairment losses for equity
securities are not reversed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEM

‘.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(p) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables
(continued)

— For trade and other current
receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost,
the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made
collectively where financial assets
carried at amortised cost share
similar risk characteristics, such
as similar past due status and
have been individually assessed
as impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based
on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount
of an impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through income statement.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall
not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in
prior years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEME

\ ] 8

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(p) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables
(continued)

— For available-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss that
has been recognised directly in
equity is removed from equity and
is recognised in income statement.
The amount of the cumulative
loss that is recognised in income
statement is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net
of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised
in income statement.

Impairment losses recognised in
income statement in respect of
available-for-sale financial assets
are not reversed through income
statement. Any subsequent increase
in the fair value of such assets is
recognised in equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCI

o

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(p)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables
(continued)

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except
for impairment losses recognised in
respect of trade debtors whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses for doubtful
debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that
recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors directly and any amounts held
in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEME

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(p) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at each balance sheet date to
identify indications that the following assets
may be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

— property, plant and equipment;

— construction in progress;

— pre-paid interests in leasehold land
and classified as being held under
an operating lease;

— intangible assets;

— investment in subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled

entities; and

— goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4

2. EEEHHBR®

2. Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

BEEREE)

(p) Impairment of assets (continued) (p)

(i)  Impairment of other assets (continued) (i) RMBEERIHEMEE)
EERABRETRLE
R BEMNAWEEES
Pl o Lhoh > BNEI A
FERETR  SHENE

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, for goodwill, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or

price and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future

not there is any indication of impairment. FETRERMG -
Calculation of recoverable amount —  FETUKREERE
The recoverable amount of an EENTWREER
asset is the higher of its net selling BEEHBEFED

EHAEEPHNR
BE - HEERA

D¢
i cash flows are discounted to their BER > BHREK
k_g present value using a pre-tax ReREBEK
% discount rate that reflects current BRI IR RS ER
I market assessments of time value RE UWRRTE
of money and the risks specific to B Al ¥ £ 80
the asset. Where an asset does BENZEENSIE
not generate cash inflows largely BRI FEME o i F
independent of those from other HEEFMEEZR
assets, the recoverable amount is ERUYFERHLE
determined for the smallest group of VREMEENE
assets that generates cash inflows &R ARBIYE
independently (i.e. a cash-generating EHEEROERND—
unit). MEEMASE—
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2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(p)

Impairment of assets (continued)

MENTS B4

(ii)  Impairment of other assets (continued)

— Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised

in income statement whenever the

carrying amount of an asset, or

the cash-generating unit to which

it belongs, exceeds its recoverable

amount.

Impairment

losses

recognised in respect of cash-

generating units are allocated first

to reduce the carrying amount of

any goodwill allocated to the cash-

generating unit (or group of units)

and then, to reduce the carrying

amount of the other assets in the

unit (or group of units) on a pro rata

basis, except that the carrying value

of an asset will not be reduced below

its individual fair value less costs to

sell, or value in use, if determinable.

— Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than

goodwill,

an impairment loss

is reversed if there has been a

favourable change in the estimates

used to determine the recoverable

amount. An impairment loss in

respect of goodwill is not reversed.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(p)

(a)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)  Impairment of other assets (continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses
(continueq)

A reversal of impairment losses is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited
to income statement in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined on a
first-in, first-out basis and, in the case of work
in progress and finished goods, cost comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an attributable
proportion of production overheads.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt$5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF$R KMzt

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(r)

(s)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(s)

Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in share
option reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the Black-
Scholes model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the share
options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the
share options, the total estimated fair value
of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability
that the share options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to the income statement
for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share option reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of share options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve) except where forfeiture is
only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the share option reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account)
or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained profits).
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ANCIAL STATEME

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(s)

(iii)

Employee benefits (continued)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when
and only when the Group demonstrably
commits itself to terminate employment or
to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic probability of

withdrawal.

(t) Financial guarantees issued, provisions
and contingent liabilities

()

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that
require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to
make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial
guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee
(being the transaction price, unless the fair
value can otherwise be reliably estimated)
is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where
consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance
with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in income
statement on initial recognition of any

deferred income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCI

M S
AL STATEM

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(t) Financial guarantees issued, provisions
and contingent liabilities (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially
recognised as deferred income is amortised
in income statement over the term of
the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note
2(t)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call
upon the Group under the guarantee, and
(ii) the amount of that claim on the Group
is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in
respect of that guarantee, i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected
to settle the obligation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5iR KMz

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(t)

(u)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions

and contingent liabilities (continued)

(i)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow
is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefit is remote.

Income tax

Income tax charges represent the sum of the tax

currently payable and deferred tax charges.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable

profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from

net profit as reported in the income statement

because it excludes items of income and expense

that are taxable or deductible in other years, and it

further excludes income statement items that are

not taxable and deductible.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(u)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or
recoverable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability
method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary
difference can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill (or negative
goodwill) or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interest in a
jointly controlled entity, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax
is charged or credited in the income statement,
except when it relates to items charged or credited
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is
also dealt with in equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5iR KMz

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(v)

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a

party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)

(i)

(iv)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to
control the Group or exercise significant
influence over the Group in making financial
and operating policy decisions, or has joint
control over the Group;

the Group and the party are subject to
common control;

the party is an associate of the Group or
a joint venture in which the Group is a
venturer;

the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent, or a close family member of such an
individual, or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals;

the party is a close family member of a
party referred to in (i) or is an entity under
the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals; or
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NOTES TO THE FINANCI

o

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(v)

(w)

Related parties (continued)

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
Group or of any entity that is a related party
of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that individual in
their dealings with the entity.

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group’s business, the operations and cash flows
of which can be clearly distinguished from the rest
of the Group and which represents a separate
major line of business or geographical area of
operations or is part of a single co-ordinated plan
to dispose of a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is a subsidiary
acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
upon disposal or when the operation meets the
criteria to be classified as held for sale, if earlier. It
also occurs when the operation is abandoned.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(w) Discontinued operation (continued)

Where an operation is classified as discontinued,
a single amount is presented on the face of the
income statement, which comprises:

— the post-tax profit or loss of the
discontinued operation; and

— the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell,
or on the disposal, of the assets or disposal
group(s) constituting the discontinued
operation.

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the following new interpretations and amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA which are first effective
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company.

HK (IFRIC) — Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HK (IFRIC) — Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

HK (IFRIC) — Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and
their Interaction

Amendments to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reclassification
of Financial Assets

The adoptions of these new interpretations and
amendments have no material effects on the Group’s
results and financial position for the current or prior
accounting periods presented. Accordingly, no prior
period adjustment has been required.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Eﬁ%aﬁﬁﬂﬁ&

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

During the current accounting period, the Group has
early adopted HKFRS 8, Operating Segments (“HKFRS
8”), which is effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2009.

HKFRS 8 superseded HKAS 14, Segment Reporting,
and requires segment disclosure to be based on the way
that the Group’s chief operating decision maker regards
and manages the Group, with the amounts reported for
each reportable segment being the measures reported
to the Group’s chief operating decision maker for the
purposes of assessing segment performance and making
decisions about operating matters. This differs from the
presentation of segment information in prior years which
was based on a dis-aggregation of the Group’s financial
statements into segments based on related products
and services, and geographical areas. The adoption of
HKFRS 8 has resulted in the presentation of segment
information in a manner that is more consistent with
internal reporting provided to the Group’s chief operating
decision makers. The new accounting policy on adoption
of HKFRS 8 has been applied retrospectively with

comparatives restated.

The early adoption of HKFRS 8 results in new disclosures
in the financial statements and does not have impact on

the Group’s results of operations and financial position.

The Group has not early adopted the following new
standards, amendments and interpretations that have
been issued but are not yet effective. The Group is in the
process of making assessment of the impacts of these
new standards, amendments, and interpretations that are
expected to be in the period of initial application.

3.

¥ B & }@ﬂ’;‘nTE’]EfE
B3R5 20l )

AEFTHE  AEERERARR=-E
ENF-A-HRUERBENSTHE
FIRENNE BB REENFE SR —
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ERIE 1455 — DHEE - LERD W
BREFRAREZELCERRANMAE
ENREEAKECAERR  MEHNE
EWMEIHNHBREALBAETRESE
RENET D ERE - EEMEBRE
EENER LAIFENIBERER
FEEMBEHRRIZEEER RBERE
BFDHR BERAFENERE - KN
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF$R KMzt
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3. Application of New and Revised 3. %

Standards (continued)

A R EBINEE
Hong Kong Financial Reporting BtFsER 54

Bll )

Effective

for accounting
periods beginning
on or after

BTy &t HE SRR

HK(IFRIC) — INT 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
= (ERpEReRE  ENEBIRREETEY

ZE8) — 2B

1658
HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements
BBETERE 1R B RE > 24
(RAE3T)
HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs
EBETERE 235 BERA
(K53T)

HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Share-based Payment — Vesting Conditions and

EHBE TR MR 0 3 Cancellations
(EET ) UBHRAERATE — REFEGEREUE

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations
(Amendments) Arising on Liquidation

EREMEAERNR IMEHBTAREREESER
EBEIEAIE 1%
CHES

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27  Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly
(Amendments) Controlled Entity or Associate

ERPMBH/ELNFE 1% RHBLR HEZESEBIBE L AREZRE
RBEBETEAE 27
CCHEN)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments

BEUBRELAE T ymemTAYRE

(&RTA)

HK(IFRIC) — INT 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
B (BRVBHRERE BERMEZHSR

ZEE)REBEIGR

BEM

1 October 2008
—2EN\F+A-H

1 January 2009

—EENF-A—H

1 January 2009
—EENEF—-A—H

1 January 2009
—EFEhF—H—H

1 January 2009
—EZhF—HA—H

1 January 2009
—EEhF—A—H

1 January 2009
ZEENF-A—H

1 January 2009
“EENFE-A—H
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Application of New and Revised 3. EHA#RX
Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standards (continued)

Improvements to
HKFRSs, 2008

REBBYFRELEN
—BENF

Improvements to
HKFRSs, 2009

WEE SIS LR -
=

HKFRS 3 (Revised)
BARAMBEREERNEIR
(&18ET)

HKAS 27 (Revised)
BRETTERE27H
(84&35T)

HK(IFRIC) — INT 17
B8 (BB KR ERE
ZES)REBEITE

Improvements to HKFRSs, 2008
REBTRYKRBREEL  —ZFNEF

Improvements to HKFRSs, 2009
HEBTBUBR/EEL  —ZBBNF

Business Combinations

EBAH

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

RERBIBBERE

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

BAREDIKFREEE

* . " T - ; . :. " . .
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA¥53R3RMIE

BIETHEE
B3R5 20l )

Effective

for accounting
periods beginning
on or after

BTy & HE SRR

AR

1 January 2009
except for

HKFRS 5 on or after
1 July 2009

—2ErE-A-8
REBHRE
#8135 SRR
A=EEAFLA-A

1 January 2009,
1 July 2009 or
1 January 2010
as appropriate

BRER - BAR
—2BhE-—F-A
—2BRELA-A
f=B-BF—A—H

1 July 2009
—EEZNFtA—H

1 July 2009
—EENFtA—H

1 July 2009
—EZhFEA—-H



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF$R KMzt

3. Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

HKAS 39 (Amendments) Eligible Hedged ltems

BBETERE 95 BEREITIER

CCHEN)
HK(IFRIC) — INT 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers
5B (BB BHRERE REFEZEE

ZEB)RBE 18

4. Accounting Estimates and
Judgement

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management makes various estimates based on
past experiences, expectations of the future and other
information. The key sources of estimation uncertainty
that may significantly affect the amounts recognised in
the financial statements are disclosed below:

(a) Depreciation of fixed assets

Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking
into account of their estimated residual value. The
determination of the useful lives and residual value
involve management’s estimation.

3.

=
Y

AW REETHES
BATSER & % H| )

Effective

for accounting
periods beginning

on or after

BT EsH RS ER
aEN

1 July 2009
—EZNFtA—H

Effective for transfers of
assets from customers
received on or after 1

July 2009

BRARZZEEBNEF

tB—B=UE

wEFEERS

ZEE
et st R FUER
EETFEEMZ EEKR

RERAEESTTBERN  EEESR

BBENGER HRNRARAME
B FEHTRIMGET » et THREMDN
- PN lup S E ki ok ¢t
TREARE  ETXRE:

(a) EZEEENE

Bl EEEEMNBRE M RSER
® NESHERATERFH
SAEITE - I AFHRRERE
EWRESREEBHNMET
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4. Accounting Estimates and
Judgement (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Depreciation of fixed assets (continued)

The Group assesses annually the residual value
and the useful lives of the fixed assets and if the
expectation differs from the original estimate, such
a difference may impact the depreciation for the
year.

Impairment of fixed assets, goodwill and
other non-current assets

Determining whether fixed assets, goodwill and
other non-current assets are impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which the fixed assets, goodwill
and other non-current assets have been allocated.
The calculation of value in use requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating units and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present
value.

AT | EOTTPP S, Skt i
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

e

SRR

B

it RAE

st T EEE 2 T ERR(F)

(b)

BEEEENEHE)

rEEBFHEFEETEEN
FMpEERAUTEAFHY  BR8
MERWETAE > BEERY

ENELFEZNE -
EZLE  HE LIRRMHFT
BEERE

REBEEE B8 URHAM
FRBEERBREAMGITERE
EE BE URHEMIERBE
EFRORNRSEESE M-
BE FEEAEEREFER
SEAHANRERESEEEN
HARRREREMAERENS
BITRER -
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NOTEs TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf 53R RMisE

Accounting Estimates and
Judgement (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
(c) Income taxes

At 30 June 2009 and 2008, deferred tax assets
of HK$487,000 and HK$432,000 in relation to
unused tax losses were recognised respectively
as set out in note 13(a). No deferred tax asset was
recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses
of HK$315,281,000 (2008: HK$334,619,000) and
temporary differences of HK$194,459,000 (2008:
HK$227,396,000) arising from impairment of
certain fixed assets and leasehold lands provided
on 31 December 2001 due to the unpredictability
of future taxable profit streams. The realisability of
the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases
where the actual future profits generated are
less or more than expected, a material reversal
or further recognition of deferred tax assets may
arise, which would be recognised in the income
statement for the period in which such a reversal

or further recognition takes place.

Financial Instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
The Group is also exposed to equity risk arising from
its equity investments in other entities. These risks are
limited by the Group’s financial management policies and
practices described below.

st RS o

»
B

st T EEE 2 T ERR(F)

(c) FiF#
REZZZNFER-ZZNEFEARA

=+H8 RAKREEIEZHE
R ELERBEED A BE
487,000 7C & % ¥ 432,000 7T
WEBRHTFEE 13(2) HR - HR
TREFAFTAREANBE - HTE
I EE B B 315,281,000 7T
(ZZEZ\F : B% 334,619,000
7t ) & 8 #194,459,000 T (=
2\ F: B #227,396,000
) BR=ZZEE-—F+=A
=St+-HARIANEEEEREM
EENEETEEERELER
BEEFHER BEEHEEE
FTEHEHRREFREHBE
BHEZEREHESRESD - BE
RREBGFERZRTER - E
ERESESNRRE—SE
R EEBBRE-—SEIREN
ZHBEZ SR ER o

5. €T H

FEBEEFEEBRTHYEE R
BEL MNERERRAR - AKETHE
HEHMERFHREREMELENR
BERE - ARERNUT EMEZBE
A5 B SRR B b F R B
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEM

‘.

5. Financial Instruments (continveq)

(a)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
debtors, deposits and prepayments. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to
these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis. Credits are offered to customers following
financial assessments and established payment
records where applicable. Collaterals over
properties are obtained from certain customers.
Credit limits are set for all customers and these
are exceeded only with the approval of senior
company officers. Customers considered to
be with credit risk are traded on a cash basis.
General credit terms are payment by the end of
the month following the month in which sales took
place. Regular review and follow up actions are
carried out on overdue amounts to minimise the
Group’s exposure to credit risk. An ageing analysis
of the debtors is prepared on a regular basis and
is closely monitored to minimise any credit risk
associated with these debtors. The Group has
no significant concentrations of credit risk in view
of its large number of customers. The maximum
exposure to credit risk without taking account of
any collateral held is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the balance
sheet after deducting any impairment allowance.
The Group does not provide any guarantee which
would expose the Group to credit risk. Further
quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from debtors,
deposits and prepayments are set out in note 26.

SR
ENTS BAF5ERRMIcE

5. ®fTH =

(a)

S E b

FEENFEERRERREER
R BRERENAK - EEEF
VTREERE  UHEERELS
FERR - FEFEETINETH
BAEERERCELNNHG
BRAMBR) MEE - AE@S
RELEFEGSMEER - B
EFYRBFEERE  BEAF
BRAEHRERTTREAERER
Bo-EmRREFEFERR B
BBREETRS - —REERNH
ERLERNANTETEH - B
TEERIEERR  AEEE
HR T H R AT & B EREN R 3
T8 - AEEERRERE DT
LR BRIt SRR - !
EBRLEBEREURBEENE
ERkR - FERBAEEF X
EEYRABRENFESETRA
Bo-BEEBERLBEEHNERE
B9 AR [ (B 7 40 BRAE AR (B 22 5
® REAEEFRAZNEER
LR BRREBEANEM
Bif@ - AEETERMACLEE
ZEERBHOER KAEBERE
YRS  RERANRNEER
bz - HEARERNHEE261FE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %

5. Financial Instruments (continveq)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The Group closely monitors its liquidity and
financial resources to ensure that a healthy
financial position is maintained such that cash
inflows from operating activities together with un-
drawn committed banking facilities are sufficient to
meet the requirements for loan repayments, daily
operational needs, capital expenditure, as well as
potential business expansion and development.

The Group reviews its strategy from time to time
to ensure that cost-efficient funding is available to
cater for the unique operating environment of each
subsidiary.

The following table details the remaining
contractual maturities at the balance sheet date
of the Group’s and the Company’s non-derivative
financial liabilities which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or,
if floating, based on rates current at the balance
sheet date) and the earliest date the Group and
the Company can be required to pay:

R

5. ®fiTH =

(b)

BN A & b

AEBRYERHLRBDES M
MR EREEEXEBNREW
A EREABANRTERAE
B REUEMNEEEN AFE
B BXRAX UREREBHN

FEBTRHRNEMBEBE - B
NEEHEERFUSENRER
B UERMBLRBEINEE

B o

TREINAKERARRETE
EREBENEER ZRNBRENE
HA RBESNIHMEDREYN
ENRRAEREEBEMNANE
MEH(EFR)EEERBEADN
MERFAEZFEMAFR) UREE
BERADRBDARBRARZER
AHsTE :
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#53R=RMisE

5. Financial Instruments (continued) 5. &ftTH =
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) HENERREEE)
Group
441

2009 2008
“§E “BEE
Total Total
contractual Within ~ Morethan  More than contractual Within More than More than
undiscounted fyear  fyearbut  2yearshut undiscounted 1 year Tyearbut 2 years but
cash flow oron within within cash flow oron within within
Carrying  AUEER  demand 2years 5 years Carjng  BHEEE demand 2 years 5 years
amount  RERE  1ERRE (ENEE  2fNER amount BefiE  1EARA 1EMLE  oFMER
Fal ] in 25NR SENR §EE -4 I 2EUR SEUR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK8'000
BT AP BT ERTn ERTT A oA A oA i

Berkloens 58 R0 A58 405 = B Y I Y (R I Y1) - -
Creditors, depostts received and Efis Bl
accruels RERER 204083 204083 294083 - - 217,148 217148 217,148 - -
Amounts dug to associates EfBELT5E 23,093 23,093 23,093 - - 23,093 23,093 23,093 - -
Obligations under finance leases HEREEE 48 It 110 110 202 m 6 b7 204 319
358,004 358,126 367,814 110 202 452,958 454403 453,880 204 319
b
W
H
'3 Company
[0 $48
*F‘G'I’ 209 208

it £ %3 CEE)E
Total Total

contractual Within ~ Morethan  More than contractual Within More than More than
undiscounted fyear  1yearbut  2yearsbut undiscounted 1year Tyearbut  2yearsbut
cash flow or on within within cash flow oron within within
Carying  AHERH demand 2years 5 years Carjng  ANEEE demand 2 years 5 years
amount ReRE  1EARR  (ENLE  2ENLE amount RefE  1EARA 1ENLE  oFNER
Faf ] £ il 25 NR SENR i 8 384 2ER SEHR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS 000
Var A Y AN o AR B B BEFr BB

Bank loans B8R 12,500 12,506 12,506 - - 30,000 30,001 30,001 - -

Creditors, depostts received and EfER che
accrvels RE(ER 13876 13876 13,876 - - 972 972 972 - -
Obligations under finance leases HEEEEE - - - - - 9% 11 i 5 -
Amounts e fo subsidares EiHBLTRE 1640450 450 1,641,450 > - IS0 150 150 - -
1,667,835 1,667,841 1,667,841 - - 1,601,847 1,601,863 1,601,812 51 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEME

5. Financial Instruments (continved)
(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
bank loans.

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate
profile of the Group’s and the Company’s
interest earning financial assets and interest
bearing financial liabilities at the balance
sheet date:

NT

5.

Effective

interest

rate p.a

HIRFENE
%

Fixed rate financial 52

assets: MBEE :
Time deposits RITIER
Variable rate Z8
financial assets/ MBEE
(liabilities): (BafE):
Cash at bank RITIFR
Bank loans IRITEN

0.78

0.64

S BTSHRRMIE

2T H
(c) FIZEREAM

REBMOFRERERRERT
FRREK °

(i) FIZERER
TRHAINREEBLRER
ERANBEREERER
EBENRZERR

Group
AEE
2009 2008
—ETAE —ZEENE
Effective
interest
rate p.a
ERFR=E
HK$’000 % HK$’000
EBEFr BEF T
339,456 3.34 409,727
300,388 0.83 122,354
(40,500) 2.38 (212,000)

0.79
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5. Financial Instruments (continveq)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

(i)

Interest rate profile (continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

ey r

SRR

5. €T H =

(c) FIZEEE#E)

2009
—BEAE

Effective

interest

rate p.a.

HIRF =

Fixed rate financial E8

assets: MBEE :
Time deposits RITER
Variable rate Z2
financial assets/ MBEE
(liabilities): (BfK) :
Cash at banks IRITIFER
Bank loans IRITEN

Sensitivity analysis

At 30 June 2009, it is estimated that general
increase/decrease ranging from 25 to 75
basis points (2008: 50 to 150 basis points)
in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would increase/decrease the
Group’s profit after tax and revenue reserve
by approximately HK$905,000 (2008: HK$
3,432,000).

%

0.54

0.004

0.51

(i)  FIEBLR(E)
Company
AT
2008
—EENF
Effective
interest
rate p.a.
BRFRN=R
HK$°000 % HK$’000
BRFT BETF T

250,958

32,668
(12,500)

(i)

3.34 306,843

0.0023 48,092
1.40 (30,000)

HBEESHT

R-ZZEZRERA=T
H 585 fE2ELA
S THRBEBHF (=R
ENFE50FE1508F) >
THMWESEERTE
HERT » NEBEZBRE
%% & U = % 18 A5 1
hn /@ 2 # 7% # 905,000
T(ZEENE: B
3,432,0007T) °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %

5. Financial Instruments (continveq)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk (continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the balance
sheet date. The 25 to 75 basis points
(2008: 50 to 150 basis points) increase
or decrease represents management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes
in interest rates applicable to the relevant
currencies over the period until the next
annual balance sheet date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2008.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through sales, purchases, deposits and
borrowings that are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the
operations in which they relate. The currencies
giving rise to this risk are primarily Malaysia
Ringgits (“MYR”) and United States dollars
(“USD”). As HK$ is pegged to USD, the Group
considers the risk of movements in exchange
rates between HK$ and USD to be insignificant
for transactions denominated in USD which are
entered into by entities with a functional currency
of HK$.

R

5. ®fiTH =

(c)

(d)

Fl b (&)

(i) WEESHT(E)

LR D AT TR R A
REPREEHBRE 25
EBHTF(ZEENF
5021503 F) A BRMK X
EEEEREARERE
WHNZEHET —EE
FHEERNBEzAESR
B —ZEZNFUE-
BEEDH

&5 B

AEEARHUARTEEQTNI
REEWMUINERENHE
BB BROERREENIIER
B o SNE R B E R R B FRAE R
WhET - BRBTEETH
e WAEERHETRBLE
RAEARNEEZE - FALLE
WEEDRERNEEQRZET
RETEELERNINERR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEME

5. Financial Instruments (continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i) Exposure to currency risk
The following table details the Group’s and

the Company’s exposure at the balance
sheet date to currency risk arising from

NTS BAFSRZMIEE

5. €M I ”w®
(d) HEERE)
() AEBZIEEE
FERAREBRALTR

FEAUMERARYREE
WUNNEBTENS 'R

recognised assets or liabilities denominated EESEBERAZ ZINE
in a currency other than the functional BB ELFAD AT o
currency of the entity to which they relate.
Group
by
2008
“RINE
AUD HK$ MYR usb
B B BREDE in
‘000 '000 ‘000 '000
i i Fz r
Debtors, deposits and RS ek
prepayments AR 108 - 100 - 202 - 1,697
Cash and cash equivalents BERBEZHE 17,328 16,756 26,450 10,027 1,731 16,360 18,898
Creditors, deposits MRS Ble
received and accruals REGER (82) - (239) - (462) - (249)
Company
F479
2009 2008
“BTAE “EENE
MYR UsD AUD MYR usb
BRTEE £ Br ERARE ESD
’000 ‘000 000 000 000
FT ¥ F Fr Fr
Cash and cash BeRkBe
equivalents 28 16,756 22,588 10,027 16,360 18,525
Creditors, deposits FEATERER
received and e R
accruals EER - (239) - - (239)



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5RRMIsE

5. Financial Instruments continueq) 5. TR«
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) BERRKE)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) HEEDNT
The following table indicates the TRIHEEEBHAE
approximate change in the Group’s profit BEEARZENIIMNEESR
after tax (and revenue reserve) in response HIRAEE AT AL AV B (L B
to reasonably possible changes in the AEBZBRBEBER(R
foreign exchange rates to which the Group W EE) EEENBLN
has significant exposure at the balance BE o
sheet date.
Group
F5E

2009 2008
= L2 = S5
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)

in in

TTNEFR

Increase/ profit after Increase/ profit after

(decrease) tax and (decrease) tax and

in foreign revenue in foreign revenue

exchange reserve exchange reserve

rates  RBEEH rates  BRBBER

MEEE  RMERE HEER Rz
SVAQT IR ) VAG IO EH (TR 8/ (B2)

HK$’°000 HK$°000

Vol BT

AUD B - - 2.79% 2,106
(2.79%) (2,108)

MYR ERFETHE 1.60% 590 4.46% 1,742
(1.60%) (590) (4.46%) (1,742)

usb ES 0.51% 1,040 0.18% 286
(0.51%) (1,040) (0.18%) (286)
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5. Financial Instruments (continveq)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Currency risk (continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been
determined assuming that the change in
foreign exchange rates had occurred at the
balance sheet date and had been applied
to the Group’s exposure to currency risk
for financial instruments in existence at
that date, and that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant.

The stated changes represent changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until
the next annual balance sheet date. In this
respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate
between HK$ and USD would be materially
unaffected by any changes in movement in
value of USD against other currencies. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for
2008.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price change
arising from investments in equity securities.
As the carrying amount of such investments is
insignificant compared to the total assets of the
Group, the management considers the exposure
to equity price risk to be insignificant.

Fair value

All significant financial assets and liabilities are
carried at amounts not materially different from
their fair values as at 30 June 2008 and 2009.
The carrying amounts of non-trade balances
with holding companies and fellow subsidiaries
approximate the fair value due to the relatively
short-term maturity of these financial assets and
liabilities.

NOTES TO TE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf 53R RMizE

5. 2T R =
d) EMERE)
(i)  BEERE)

HREDNIDEHMTE
BRERBETENER
T BRMEEZRZHR
HHEBARYE YO KZE
BEARAEERERER
ERRBRAEZERITAMN
EECEXRRERMEE

BB RIMEERE
BEET-EBFHEEAH
B8 - AitiBriax
TRBMAEREBERT
EREBEARFEEETHEA
HEEHERZE - —F
ZENFERUE-EEESD
#r e

(e) Mx{EREPR

AEERIREZFHSRENKRE
ZBHE BHNZSRENEKE
ERESAEENEERELIE
R EEHERRFEEEZHR
BRI THEE -

) AR{EE

FEEXREREEREENRE
EEYRAR-_ZFZENERZ
ZENEARAAZ+TENAAEBE
TEEAEE - ARER2AR
EIZRMEARNFE ZERENF
WEHRE Bt BESHEE
EREENREESRX AEERE

4
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Segment Reporting

The Group’s businesses are presented in the following

segments in a manner consistent with the way in which

information is reported internally to the Group’s chief

operating decision makers for the purposes of resource

allocation and performance assessment:

Food: the manufacture and sale of a broad range
of food products including flour and edible
oils.

Detergent:  the manufacture and sale of household and
institutional cleaning products.

(a) Segments Results, Assets and Liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s chief operating decision
makers monitor the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
“profit from operations”. To arrive at “profit from
operations”, the Group’s earnings are further
adjusted for items not specifically attributed
to individual segments, such as head office or

corporate administration costs.

Segment assets include all tangible assets,
intangible assets and current assets with the
exception of interests in associates, interest in a
jointly controlled entity, deferred tax assets and
other corporate assets. Segment liabilities include
all trade creditors and accruals attributable to the
manufacturing and sales activities of the individual
segments, bank loans managed directly by the
segments, and other current liabilities with the
exception of deferred tax liabilities and other
corporate liabilities.
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REBXEBRT I MIR - BEEHR
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ERIENREEERMANES

B HERDE-—RIEM
BEAEH R R
BEAm: RERIERARIER

(a)

BR2AR -

PEIELE - SERERE
RGO BRERE I TE2E
FRREBMS  AEEXEZER
RABRBETYEEEREEER
EoWBrEE EERARE:

ARBED BRI ZRTFES
[R&RF |- BT HHIEER
A AEBZBFHIL EBHE
FRER 22 E B (AR F
FEETHAE)FHE—FH

o

PHMEERREEHBENEE &
WEERRBEE  HEBHEQT
e - HAEEGERE RS BT
REEERAMEEEERIN -
IHMEBEEFE2BENS 2%
EREETDREZEZEMNIR
REESHER  2HEREEZ

RITEFN - URHMRBEE
HEEREEERAMEXEE
BRIb o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCI

6. Segment Reporting (continueq)

(a) Segments Results, Assets and Liabilities
(continued)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable
segments as provided to the Group’s chief
operating decision makers is set out below.

2009
“EEAE

Food  Detergent

R ARA
HK$’000  HK$’000
BRTT  ERTT

Revenue from BIMR

&)

ENTS BATSRRM

&

6. DEEFE @)

(a)

Segment
Total
SRt
HK$°000
BT

SMEE  HAERERA)

BMERLBEBRRARBZEFR
EDEERMT

2008
“B2ENF
Segment
Food Detergent Total

R ERHm 7t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ERTT EETT ERTT

external BFZ
customers WA 1,790,444 275,819 2,066,263 1,852,678 234,132 2,086,810
Inter-segment D EE
revenue KA = = - - - -
Reportable segment EEf&E 282
revenue WA 1,790,444 275,819 2,066,263 1,852,678 234,132 2,086,810
Reportable segment E4E
profit from HENHZ
operations KRR 122,964 25,283 148,247 128,018 9,812 137,830
Interest income V9N 3,548 254 3,802 1,367 178 1,545
Finance costs AERK (2,770) (3) (2,773) (5,711) 3) (5,714)
Depreciationand ~ FE
amortisation for ~ HER
the year B (43,522) (1,049) (44,571) (42,351) (976) (48,327)
Share of profit ofa  JEf5
jointly controlled  HE 2 4I{AEE
entity HRF 3,344 - 3,344 3,347 - 3,347
Other material profit EttEE
or loss items: BEER
—ER
— Exchange (B#8)
(loss)/gain / Wiz (1,913) (166) (2,079) 31,386 2,459 33,845
— Provision for
doubtful — ®ER
debts EfE (9,025) (102) (9,127) (338) (77) (15)
Income tax charge  B{IEL H (18,310) (5,797) (19,107) (8,023) (1,745) (9,768)
Reportable segment EfE#i%
assets P EE 1,152,990 140,897 1,293,887 1,134,201 112,464 1,246,665
Reportable SRS
segment liabilities Az BE (317,173) (56,877) (374,050) (431,172) (37,695) (468,867)
Additions to non- &y
current segment Ay
assets during the 736
year FREBEE 50,132 14 50,273 33,234 1,221 34,455




NOTEs TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf 53R RMisE

6. Segment Reporting (continued) 6. NEPEFE=
(b) Reconciliations of Reportable Segment (b) HTEHREDPBUAN - B2 -
Revenue, Profit or Loss, Assets and BERBEBEZHANR
Liabilities
2009 2008
“EThE —EREN\E
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Revenue KA
Reportable segment revenue EEREDIBZWA 2,066,263 2,086,810
Service and rental income RERBELSWA 6,185 7,560
Consolidated turnover mEE¥ER 2,072,448 2,094,370
Profit aFl
Reportable segment profit from FTEIFRE D2
operations Feg—dregd| 148,247 137,830
Share of profit of a jointly FE{R HRI=
controlled entity 1 B2 B9 = A 3,344 3,347
Finance costs BE AR (3,339) (5,885)
Unallocated exchange (loss)/gain k2B E X (F18) Wz (20,070) 1,670 o
Unallocated head office and AAOBZBATR o
corporate expenses TEER (30,864) (24,478) ﬂ;
Consolidated profit before mE ﬁ
taxation BB AR R 97,318 112,484 I
Assets BE g
Reportable segment assets EEREDHB2EE 1,293,887 1,246,665 m
Elimination of inter-segment DR EU TR 2 i
receivables b (30,858) (50,638) 0
Ko
1,263,029 1,196,027 =
Interests in associates i d N P 24,581 24,581 E
Interest in a jointly controlled HEEFERE
entity R 58,313 63,268 3
Amount due from a jointly Ut R SIE R &
controlled entity I8 10,461 50,575 £
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE 1,523 8,953 e
Unallocated head office and RABZBATR e
corporate assets THEEE 324,408 394,258 S
c
c
Consolidated total assets mEEEE 1,682,315 1,737,662 <
T
Liabilities BfE £
Reportable segment liabilities ~ EEHRES 2 EE (374,050) (468,867) E
Elimination of inter-segment DEEEA T Z -
payables 6] 30,858 50,638 g’
4
(343,192) (418,229) =2
5
Deferred tax liabilties EERES (& - (1,044) <
Unallocated head office and RAWMZBLATR S
corporate liabilities ==L (32,024) (46,589) n
S
Consolidated total liabilities meHEas (375,216) (465,862) 3

—i
\‘



TTNEFR

a Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2009 FliE (F#) BRAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCI

o

6. Segment Reporting (continued)

(c)

Geographical Information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue
from external customers and (ii) the Group’s non-
current assets. The geographical location of
customers is based on the location at which the
services were provided or the goods delivered.
The geographical location of the fixed assets and
leasehold land is based on the physical location
of the asset, in the case of goodwill, the location
of the operation to which they are allocated, in
the case of interest in associates and interest in a
jointly controlled entity, the location of operations.

2009
—BELE

Hong
PRC
SREKPE
HK$’000
ERFiT

Kong
FgE
HK$°000
BT

Revenue from B 4hR

external 2Rz

customers 'ON 477,880
Non-current  ZERE

assets EE 119,115 512,387

During the year, the single largest external
customer of the Group accounted for less than
10% (2008: less than 10%) of the total turnover of
the Group.

AL STATEMENTS

6.

Total

A
[=)C]

HK$°000
EETFT

631,502

s &
y

BATE SRR

DEPEE @

(c)

TREIWHEBECEERBIE()
REBEBEMREF ZWA 5 K (i)
REBMZERBDEE - BEFHA
BHEDRBERBREHRIENE
EeHMEE - BIEEERE
ETHNAEEERREREH
ME - BENFEEEREHR
WOMBNE B TE o B
NEESE R EEGER RS
FiBitEREAEE M ME

1,588,383 2,066,263

2008
—EBENEF

Hong
Kong PRC Total
B8  HEKE &&f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BEFT BEFT
364,413 1,722,397 2,086,810
125,043 509,877 634,920

FR - AEENRANIRE-—F
FPAEAREENBEEERR10%
(ZZFZ2NF  DR10%) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEME

For the year ended 30 June 2009

B Z 2009 6 530 HIEFE
7. Turnover 7. BEEH
The Company is an investment holding company and APFA—HEREEZERKRLAT  HRBELA
the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out on AMNEEEKFIINEIOEEE 175
pages 169 to 175. Ho
Turnover represents the net invoiced value of goods EEBANRNRETFEHIIEFNERNBE
supplied to external customers as well as service and FEHMBERESBA - KREBMNEE
rental income. An analysis of the Group’s turnover is set AT
out below:
2009 2008
—BTAE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BEFor BT T
Continuing operations BEEEER
Sales of goods HERMR 2,066,263 2,086,810 ﬁ
Service and rental income RERASWA 6,185 7,560 #
=
B
2,072,448 2,094,370 HI’
|
Discontinued operation BRILEEER
Sales of goods HERm - 482,460
Service and rental income RERESWA - 889
- 483,349

—
E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2009 lE (F#)HRAT
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
BiFE 2009 6 A 30 H1LFZF

8. Other Income

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATE

NTS BAFSRZMIEE

8. HfttlgA

2009 2008
—ETAE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Continuing operations FHBEGEER
Negative goodwill recognised on #iE—=x
acquisition of additional equity B A B R R
interest in a subsidiary BRANERE 2,968 -
Management fee income BEEWA 2,690 2,690
Sales of scrapped material o SRR 2,155 2,736
Net exchange gain RN 5 Uk 2 - 35,5156
Gain on disposal of fixed assets HEBREEERSE 4,287 8,423
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries EEMBATWE - 2,009
Interest income FMEWA 11,198 5,969
Miscellaneous Hitb 1,356 4,361
24,654 61,703
Discontinued operation B ILEEER
Sales of scrapped material HERER - 95
Net exchange gain FOMESTE Sk - 6,923
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEBEEERX = (315)
Interest income FE WA - 963
Miscellaneous Hith - 893
— 8,559




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5RRMIsE

For the year ended 30 June 2009

B Z 2009 6 530 HIEFE
9. Finance Costs 9. FAERZE
2009 2008
—ETAE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Continuing operations FHEGEER
Interest on bank loans and NEFREIHEEZ
overdrafts wholly repayable ZIRITERR
within five years FEXHRE (3,327) (5,869)
Interest on finance leases REHRENFIEXH (12) (16)
(3,339) (5,885)
Discontinued operation EERILEEER
Interest on bank loans and REFREIEE ﬁ
overdrafts wholly repayable ZIRITERE W
within five years BEXWNFIE - (2,549) E
i
1
The Group’s effective borrowing interest rate for the year EEXAEENERBETFEEXA24%
was approximately 2.4% (2008: 3.6%) per annum. (ZEZ)\FE :3.6%) °

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2009 lE (F#)HRAT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCI

For the year ended 30 June 2009

B Z 2009 6 530 HIEFE
10. Profit Before Taxation 10. Pa¥BianimFl
2009 2008
—EThE —ETNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BEEFIT BT T
Continuing operations FHEGEER

Profit before taxation is arrived at R AT H)
after charging/(crediting): 2R (GTA) -

Staff costs (including directors’ BRI (BREESHS

remuneration — note 11) — M)
— Wages, salaries and allowances — I & -~ $&Rki28, 144,274 128,451
— Equity settled share based — UBRAEREEY
transaction X5 - 358
— Pension costs — BIRE A
— Defined contribution — EERMER
retirement plans BRIRET S 9,697 8,220
153,971 137,029
Auditors’ remuneration ZEETEN & 821 1,084
Depreciation of fixed assets BEEEENE 44,276 42,633
Amortisation of leasehold land FHE + high sy 2,986 2,791
Net exchange loss/(gain) FINEEREER (k) 22,149 (35,515)
Provision for doubtful debts RIBIRAE 9,127 385
Operating lease rental of properties E&EHEEYEMNBLER 2,525 2,048
Cost of inventories (note 25(b)) TFERAR(HEF25(b) 1,659,834 1,767,532
Net proceeds from disposal of fixed HEREEEE M TS IIE
assets HER (6,817) (11,120)
Less: Carrying value of fixed assets & - EEEEREE 2,530 2,697
Gain on disposal of fixed assets HEBEEEN R (4,287) (8,423)
Rental income less outgoings AW ARBEX (6,185) (7,554)




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf 53R Rzt
For the year ended 30 June 2009
B2 2009 %6 H30 HIiFE

10. Profit Before Taxation (continueq) 10. BRFiEnER =)

2009 2008
—eErE —2ENE
HK$°000 HK$000
BEFT BBFT

Discontinued operation BRILEEER

Profit before taxation is arrived at R AT H)
after charging/(crediting): 2R (GTA) -

Staff costs (including directors’ BRI (BREESHS

remuneration — note 11) — M)
— Wages, salaries and allowances — I & -~ & Ri28L - 46,919
— Pension costs — BIREHA
— Defined contribution — EEEMHEK
retirement plans =&l = 805
— Defined benefit retirement — EFBAEK ﬁ
plans HE - 1,224 o
- 48,948 8
"
Auditors’ remuneration ZEAMEN £ - 273 &
z
mx
Depreciation of fixed assets EEEERE - 13,751 T
4o
Amortisation of leasehold land AE T - 67 o
g
Net exchange gain TR ONESE H Uk - (6,923)
2
Provision for doubtful debts RIFREE - 506 £
g
Operating lease rental of properties K& HEEYENHELEH - 76 S
2
Cost of inventories (note 25(b)) BFERAK(KZ250b)) - 449,604 =
°
Net proceeds from disposal of fixed HEREEEE M TS IIE E
assets EEE - (69) S
c
Less: Carrying value of fixed assets & - BElE & EREE - 384 S
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEBEEENEBX - 315 g’
L
c
Rental income less outgoings AL YN - (694) 3
n
£
©
-l
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
BiFE 2009 6 A 30 H1LFZF

11. Directors’ and Senior
Executives’ Emoluments

(a)  The directors’ emoluments of the Company and its
subsidiaries calculated in accordance with Section

11. EERS
BN &

ITBAE

() REBBLDGHE—EANT—
W E 2 AAAREKNEL D0

161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are EEMESEFENT
as follows:
Group
48
Retirement
Basic salary/ schemes
Directors’ fees contributions
e/ Bonus BIER 2009
EEL T HEE “I0E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BRTT BRTT BRFT BRFT
Executive director BiTES
LEUNG Wai Fung Pl 1,980 495 198 3,429
Non-executive directors FafrEE
WHANG Sun Tze BELE 180 - - 180
KWEK Leng Hai iy 220 - - 220
TAN Lim Heng R 180 - - 180
TSANG Cho Tai 2E% 220 - - 220
Independent non-executive directors B EHTES
LO Kwong Chi, Clement BEL 255 - - 255
DING Wai Chuen T 235 - - 235
LO Kai Yiu, Anthony (Note (i) ERBR(WE () 99 - - 99
IRIE Yasuaki (Note (i) NIRBHEE (i) 81 - - 81
Year ended ZBEIAE
30 June 2009 NAZTHLEE 3,450 495 198 4,899




11. Directors’ and Senior

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BT ERFRMisE

For the year ended 30 June 2009
BiFE 20094 6 A 30 H1LFZF

11. %%&%%&ﬁ&)\é

Executives’ Emoluments (continueq) ()
Vi
(continued) (@ &)
Group
r5E
Basic salary/ Retirement Share-
Directors’ schemes based
fees contributions Housing  payments
¥/ Bonus  BAREF  benefits  MARGA 2008
B5He A FEIER REEN E@em o s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 /&l
BEFr  BETT  BEFn BT BEFL |
Executive director BTEE
LEUNG Wai Fung PR 1,950 793 195 746 258 3,942
Non-executive directors HUTES
WHANG Sun Tze BELE 120 - - - - 120
KWEK Leng Hai 355 180 - - - - 180
TAN Lim Heng BRARE 120 - - - - 120
TSANG Cho Tai ga% 160 - - - - 160
Independent non-executive BIFHITES
directors
LO Kwong Chi, Clement EEE 195 - - - - 195
DING Wai Chuen TER 175 - - - - 175
IRIE Yasuaki NSTHE(H3 fi) 120 - - - - 120
Year ended —BE\E
30 June 2008 ANAZTHLEE 3,020 793 195 746 258 5,012

TTNEFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCI

o

For the year ended 30 June 2009
BiFE 2009 6 A 30 H1LFZF

11. Directors’ and Senior
Executives’ Emoluments (continuea)

(a)

(b)

(continued)

Notes:

U]

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

Mr. Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony was appointed as
independent non-executive director of the
Company on 12 December 2008.

Mr. Irie Yasuaki resigned as independent non-
executive director of the Company on 12
December 2008.

Basic salary/directors’ fees — The amounts
paid and payable to non-executive directors are
directors’ fees. The amounts paid and payable to
executive director are basic salaries.

Bonuses paid/payable for the year are
performance related.

There was no arrangement under which a
director had waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments.

The five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals included one

(2008:

one) director, details of whose remuneration

are set out above. The remaining employees’

emoluments are analysed as follows:

AL STATEMENTS

v
Y

BATE SRR

1. EERGRITHRAS

(a)

(b)

(#&)

(#)

wit -

U

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

ERMBELEB-ZEZENF
T-TAT-RREBHEALRT
BUFHITES -

MNIZHEEB=ZZZNEF
TZA+ZHEREADH
BYFHTES -

BN/ ERfzHE EEH
T — FYTESUESESE
FRAEE - BTESUAHE
75 IER

REEZEN /EBNREAD
REEEE

BEWEEMEH R -

IEEERANES

IERRBANESRE—RE
E(ZEENF: —F) HEW
HBECIRNLEX - R TERENH
EHBFWT -

2009 2008
—EBEAE —EEN\E
HK$’000 HK$’000
T BT T
Salaries, bonus, e 14 EEREA
housing benefits and share-based R EABRD AEM >
payments (Note) SRR HTEE) 6,802 11,385
Retirement schemes contributions Bk &zt &Itk 244 123
7,046 11,508
Note: Brat -

The amount in prior year included a pension payment
of HK$4.5 million paid to a senior executive who retired
from the Group in February 2008.

LEESHEE 28T -ER=-2
ENFE_ARRNSRITHRAEZS
#% 4,500,000 TTRIKE ©
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
BiFE 2009 6 A 30 H1LFZF

11. Directors’ and Senior 11. EEREFRTHAS
Executives’ Emoluments (continueq) il & =)

(b) The five highest paid individuals (continued) (b) AHABREWVMANIES#E)

The number of employees whose remuneration fell MEBTIHIRENEEHE W
within the following bands was: T:

2009 2008

HK$ B —ETAEF —EEINE
1,000,001 — 1,500,000 1,000,001 — 1,500,000 1 -
1,500,001 — 2,000,000 1,500,001 — 2,000,000 2 2
2,000,001 — 2,500,000 2,000,001 — 2,500,000 1 1
6,000,001 — 6,500,000 6,000,001 — 6,500,000 - 1
4 4

The remuneration of certain individuals represents
remuneration received in respect of services
rendered to the Company and its Hong Kong and
overseas subsidiaries.

12. Taxation

(@)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at
the rate of 16.5% (2008: 16.5%) on the respective
estimated assessable profits of the companies
within the Group operating in Hong Kong during
the year.

Overseas taxation represents income tax charge
on the estimated taxable profits of certain
subsidiaries operating in Mainland China,
calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective
regions.

During the year, certain subsidiaries operating
in Mainland China were granted exemption from
income tax with effect from 1 January 2008.
As a result of the change, income tax of these
subsidiaries for the period from 1 January 2008
to 30 June 2008 was written back during the
year. In addition, deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities of HK$8,178,000 and HK$808,000
respectively recognised in prior years were de-
recognised because there will not be any taxable
profits against which the related deductible
temporary differences can be utilised in the
foreseeable future.

Other subsidiaries operating in Mainland China are
subject to income tax rates ranging from 10% to
25% (2008: 18% to 25%) for the year.

ETRENMERRERBALTIRE
DNEEBRREINE LML

12. FilE

(a)

AEBREBEEZATAZAE
HEFTDRIBEF NG ERBE
BT E165%(ZZENF :
16.5%)5T&

BONBREIERTEBRRNEE 2E
T B 8 2 B Bk 5T PR BR B A
BREMERIBRTENRIES
$ oo

REAFER YEBRKEZS
FTHEBARBE-_ZENFE—F—
ARERRHMES - Bt 2%
MEBARR=-ZZEENF—HA—H
ETEENERAZTHHEMN
FIEHERFERER - 1L A
PATE W] B R SR 4B FE AR FURE A T
HIELER B BREREEZEEN
W HILRA R EERRNIEL
HIBEEBNS,178,000 T & IE
FEFL B &8 %5 808,000 T E fE
|§| o

RAEBEALE 2HMK B
A FRAFAEHBERBI0%
BE%(ZEENF 18%E
25%) °

TENFEFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCI

For the year ended 30 June 2009

B Z 2009 6 530 HIEFE
12. Taxation (continued) 12. mIE(ﬁ%E)

(b)  The income tax charge represents the sum of by FIESXHEREHESHERE
the tax currently payable and deferred taxation R IE T HAVEEE - FIE ZHR
charges as follows: mT

2009 2008
—EBEAE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETFIT BT T
Continuing operations HEGEER
Current tax: NEFIE -
Hong Kong taxation BBHIE (5,406) (2,781)
Over/(under)-provision in respect  BLARTEE ZHB5E,/
of prior years (TR)B1E 145 (1,227)
R (5.261) (4,008)
o Overseas taxation BINEIE (8,344) (7,557)
ﬁ Tax paid in prior year DRI FES A
£ written back BE =R (A
% (note 12(a)) 12(a)) 1,174 -
| Under-provision in respect of prior MAIFEZRE
I years s - (278)
i’l{
B2 7,170 7,835
R oo 7858
% Deferred taxation (note 13(a)): IESERLIE (KfF 13(a)) -
@ Current year REE 1,002 623
T Amount recognised in prior years BT FERA L
. de-recognised (note 12(a)) =135 (ffaE 12(a)) (7,370) —
o
o
. G368 623
08; ____________________________________
E (18,799) (11,220)
©
=2
E Discontinued operation BRIEEEERE
E Current tax: AERIA
£ Overseas taxation B IMLIA — (967)
% Under-provision in respect of prior MHUAIFEZRE
s years B - (224)
14
(o]
g — (1,191)
% Deferred taxation (note 13(a)): EERIR (HEE 13(a)) -
S Current year KEE - 2,015
& e . N D00
g — 824
-l



For the year ended 30 June 2009
BiFE 20094 6 A 30 H1LFZF

12. Taxation (continued)

()

e

12. #ilE =)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to

the profit before taxation per income statement as

follows:

(©

Wz R P ERBL AT R R AR F 2

BIES HFAENT

2009 2008
—EBTAE —EENE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Profit before taxation R F5 A% A
From continuing operations BEREER 97,318 112,484
From a discontinued operation BRIEEEETE - 4,861
97,318 117,345
Notional tax on profit before RERAR
taxation, calculated at the rates B EHEZ
applicable to profits in the FRELATE R 2
countries concerned FiiE 19,345 12,944
Tax effect of non-deductible by e N B 01
expenses 2B E 7,947 1,126
Tax effect of non-taxable BERF VWA BBIIS
revenue 4 (8,992) (3,200)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RFUBR 2 ARFER
recognised BEBoHELE 3,771 4,825
Tax effect of utilisation FERARURIFEETR T
of tax losses not previously BRZBEEEZH
recognised K (7,342) (5,236)
Tax effect of profit attributable to a  FE4G L [F]45 #i{& 82 #5%
jointly controlled entity FzHKxse (552) (552)
10% surcharge on unappropriated & EKHB AT ZARDE
earnings of Taiwan subsidiaries EERINE10% B = 82
Change in tax rate HEEH = (1,4306)
(Over)/under-provision in prior DATEE 2 (B5E),
years TREE (145) 1,729
Tax paid in prior year written back  LABTH E O 44 FrS 5 @5 (1,174) -
Net deferred tax assets recognised Bl LA EERR 2B
in prior years de-recognised FERLIE 7,370 —
Others Hth (1,429) 114
Tax charge for the year REEMEBHREH 18,799 10,396
Tax charge attributable to BHEREER
continuing operations PEEE 18,799 11,220
Tax credit attributable to a RIS ERMER
discontinued operation A - (824)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIA

For the year ended 30 June 2009

o

13. Deferred Taxation

13. EEHIA

L STATE NT BAF5ERFRMisE

(a) Group (a) #FEE
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities EHREEEEBRPERNWEL
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and HEEE) EERERAEE
the movements thereon during the current and FURIEEZZBMT :
prior years are as follows:
Future
Accelerated  Impairment benefit of Land
tax of fixed Tax expenses  appreciation
depreciation assets  Provisions losses BRRR tax Others Total
MERBNRE BREEEE B RBBE  AANIE  DHEER £ At
HK$'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$1000 [ LRk
BETr BETL BETL BETL BETr BETL BETL AEFT
A1 July 2007 ZERLELR-R 9,53 (8.413) (1,930) (7483 2108) 7572 (897) (3,729)
Charged/(credited) to income REERAZD/ (1)
statement (note 12(b) (W 12(0) 1,001 3632) 1) (527) (1042) - 1100 (2,698)
Disposal of packaging business LERLERER (819) - 595 7901 3,043 (7.823) (201) 2,696
Exchange differences Ei@E (2,586) (1,675) - (323) 107 251 - (4,226)
At 30 June 2008 ut - I 7Y R 7132 (13,720) (873) (432) - - 2 (7,891)
At1 July 2008 ZERN\ELA-R 7132 (13,720) (873) 432) - - 2 (7.891)
Charged/(credited) to income REERAZED/ (1)
statement (note 12(b)) (H12() (6,880) 13,720 (415) (55) - - 2 6,368
At 30 June 2009 k- - 78 ok 252 - (1,288) (487) - - - (1,523)
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax NTHEERBESR ST AR
balances for financial reporting purposes: BREFIERATA :
2009 2008
—BTAE —FENE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Deferred tax liabilities FEEHEEE — (1,044)
Deferred tax assets REERKEEE 1,523 8,935
1,523 7,891
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13. Deferred Taxation (continued)

(a) Group (continued)

ANCIAL STATE

ENTS ﬂ#iﬁi‘%

e

Pt e

13. IBEHIE @)

(a)

The Group is liable to withholding tax on

dividends to be distributed from subsidiaries in

the Mainland China in respect of their profits

generated on or after 1 January 2008. At 30

June 2009, temporary differences relating to the

undistributed profits of the Group’s subsidiaries in
the Mainland China amounted to HK$81,309,000
(2008: HK$26,549,000). Deferred tax liabilities
have not been recognised in respect of the tax

that would be payable on the distribution of these

retained profits as the Company controls the

dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has

been determined that it is probable that profits

will not be distributed by these subsidiaries in the

foreseeable future.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had
unused tax losses of HK$318,230,000 (2008:
HK$337,313,000) available for offset against
future taxable profits. A deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of HK$2,949,000
(2008: HK$2,694,000) for such losses. No
deferred tax assets have been recognised in
respect of the remaining HK$315,281,000 (2008:
HK$334,619,000) due to the unpredictability
of future taxable profit streams. Included

in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$7,077,000 that will expire within five years
(2008: HK$9,052,000 and HK$524,000 that
will expire within five years and three years

respectively). Other losses can be carried forward

indefinitely.

xEE#E

AEBEFHEBEALE ZHBED
AERSIR=—_ZFEENFE—A—
HEMASHABEHSNHH -
R-ZEENAEA~A=+H &
BRAEERTEERAZHE D
ARSEFANBEANSEAMEEZERES
7B 81,300,000(Z B E N\ & :
26,549,000) ° B2 A 7)1
ZEMBARNRERX 12
ARERATRRRZEMB L TR
AEERTEDIRRF > HiLib Kk
DR 5% 55 A A FE A 2 N
BERELEHIEAE -

CEEREBRAER  ~EEF
7 #318,230,000 t(Z EE N
& . 78 ¥ 337,313,000 ) #9 7]
FAR K 30 R 3R FE 3R B 0% I (49 Bi A%
BB EPRZERERTEY
2,949,000 (=B ZENF: &
#2,694,0007T ) WIEE R 1H &
E o F&RH B 315,281,0007T
(ZZZNF : B% 334,619,000
TOMATEINEER BRRRE
EAH A AERM S TR
RERIAAELEHBEE - 3
N ABANBEERPER
W7077000c BB KRR
FREH-—ZEZENF: B
9,052,000 7t & 524,000 7T % B!
REFR=ZFRNTH) HittE
B AER At AR o
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13. IBEHIE @)

13. Deferred Taxation (continued)

TTNEFR
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(a) Group (continued) (a) AEERE#E)
At the balance sheet date, the Group had R-EZE-F+=-A=+—8"
temporary differences of HK$194,459,000 (2008: rEEAETEEEERHAEL
HK$227,396,000) arising from impairment of WAERERE ZSBENREE
certain fixed assets and leasehold lands provided EEREEHAEEELEBRY
on 31 December 2001. No deferred tax asset has 194,459,000t (= & & )\ F :
been recognised in respect of these temporary Wk 007 396,000 7T ) B B B 1t
differences (2008: HK$54,879,000) because ZER - ARAEAXARENHFRITHE
there will be no taxable profits against which the B I EMZERRRE
deductible temporary difference can be utilised in EBREBEEE(ZZTZENGE A%
the foreseeable future. 54,879,000 7T) °
Temporary differences arising in connection with HEEE AT MERZEHERBER
interests in associates and a jointly controlled HENEREEETTEK -
entity are insignificant.

(b) Company (b) AEAT

The components of deferred tax (assets)/
liabilities recognised in the balance sheet and the
movements thereon during the current and prior

years are as follows:

Accelerated

HEEBBERTERINIELHE
(BE) BEREAFERNUA
FENEBHMT

tax
depreciation Tax losses Total
IEBFEITEE BBEsE &%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BT BT T
At 1 July 2007 —EZtFtHA—H 124 — 124
Credited to income RRERA
statement st A (32) (92) (124)
At 30 June 2008 —EENFRA=TH 92 (92) -
At 1 July 2008 —EENFtA—H 92 (92) -
Charged/(credited) Rk ERAZE
to income statement (§FX) 16 (16) -
At 30 June 2009 —EEAERA=+H 108 (108) =
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14. Discontinued Operation

The Company entered into a disposal agreement to sell
its entire interest in packaging business of the Group. The
disposal was completed on 28 February 2008. Detailed
information of the disposal was set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 18 February 2008.

The results of packaging business included in the year
ended 30 June 2008 up to the date of disposal were as

14. BERILIEEETE

RRAFRFUMBHEBREREK - B
BHESHECR-ZEZTNF-A=-TN
AZM - AEHESENFREHER
ARBZEENF_R+TNHNLE
& o

BHEREER=-ZZENERNA=TH
FRNEEHEOHBNEENT ¢

follows:
Period ended
28 February
2008
BE-_FTN\E
—AR=+N\H
JEHAME
Notes HK$’000
it BT T
Turnover —E 3 7 483,349
Cost of sales SHE R A 25(b) (449,604)
Gross profit EF) 33,745
Other income Hibg A 8 8,559
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (11,191)
Administrative expenses THEHR (21,574)
Other operating expenses Hihez & A (2,129)
Operating profit R 7,410
Finance costs BKER 9 (2,549)
Profit before taxation BRF A& A 10 4,861
Taxation credit FriEBiUR A 12(b) 824
Profit for the year from a discontinued B&IEEEEK
operation FIE 5,685
Net gain on disposal of a discontinued HEBKILEEEK
operation FAR 8,803
Total profit from a discontinued ERIREERESE
operation Pl 14,488
The net cash flow incurred by the EHEMBARZ
disposed subsidiaries are as follows: BEERWT :
Operating activities REXKEH (43,037)
Investing activities RETE 313,908
Financing activities RESEE (3,104)
Net cash inflow FHERA 267,767
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15. Profit Attributable to
Shareholders of the Company

Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
included a loss of HK$23,488,000 (2008: HK$21,108,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of
the Company.

ey r

NTS BAFSRZMIEE

15. AT IRREG =T

RRAFRREEBANEBEFERER
F B RS ERER A B 23,488,000 T E B
(ZZZ)N\F 1 B%21,108,0007T) °

16. Dividends 16. IZ82
2009 2008
—EBENE —EEN\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BEFor BT T
2008: Final dividend of HK$0.09 —EENE  FRESKRER
per share paid during the year B &ERE¥0.09T(=ZEZt
(2007: HK$0.08 per share) F GRBY0.087T) 21,777 19,357
2009: Interim dividend of HK$0.06 Z=ZZh&F : FRSTHHRKR
per share paid during the year B &EREB%0.06 T(ZFFN
(2008: HK$0.06 per share) F gRBY0.067T) 14,517 14,517
36,294 33,874
2009: Final dividend proposed “EENF  AEABERIRE
after balance sheet date of ZAREBESRBE0.09 T
HK$0.09 per share (2008: (ZEENF
HK$0.09 per share) FRBE¥0.097T) 21,902 21,902
The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date HEEABREBIREZRERE > WRERN

has not been recognised as liabilities at the balance
sheet date.

FERIR/AMBESE -
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17. Earnings per Share

(a)

Basic

The calculation of basic earnings per share is
based on the profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company of HK$78,519,000 (2008:
HK$118,099,000) for the year and the weighted
average of 241,961,000 (2008: 241,961,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year, calculated

P o8 [l e \ ; : J’ ‘, : PR
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF$R KMzt

17. BIREF

(a)

¥

BREXEMNTDIREBEAATRR
FE{RE R B % 78,519,000 T (=
TE)N\F : B 118,099,000) &
REAFENSHITEBERZME
F 19 #241,961,000 R (= =2 &
J\EE 241,961,000 8%) @ sH&

as follows: T
2008
—EENF
000
?:
Issued ordinary shares at FARER
beginning and end of year ERTERR 243,354 243,354
Shares repurchased in prior DRFEEREEER
years (note 32) (Bt 32) (1,393) (1,393)
Weighted average number of FEZERRZINE
ordinary shares for the year FEHE 241,961 241,961
Profit attributable to shareholders of the KGR EEAL ST
Company
Attributable to: BEN
2009 2008
—ETAE —EENE
HK$’000 HK$'000
EBETIT BT
Continuing operations BHEREETL 78,519 101,469
Discontinued operation CRIEEEER - 16,630
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
BiFE 2009 6 A 30 H1LFZF

17. Earnings Per Share (continued)

(b)

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended
30 June 2009 is not presented as there were no
dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding at 30
June 2009.

For the year ended 30 June 2008, the calculation
of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to shareholders of the Company of
HK$118,099,000 for the year and the weighted
average number of 241,977,000 ordinary shares in
issue during the year after adjusting for the effect
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, calculated
as follows:

AL STATEMENTS

s &
y

BATE SRR

17. BIRER

(b)

EE

HREZZEZAEAA=+AHY
BMABETHEERAZEBR B
It BE—ZEZNFEARA=TH
LEE UREINREREBER
A o

BE-ZENFRA=ZTHL
FE SREXBIADRER
ARRRZFEEMNGAE
#118,009,000T & R & F E
RNERTEBERZMEFTH
241,977,00008% » LB E B
EEBFRACERARTURAE
AEWT :

2008
—2ENF
‘000
7:
Weighted average number of EE2EBERZINE
ordinary shares for the year FIE - 241,961
Effect of deemed issue of BARTEREE
shares under the Company’s RES BT
share option scheme at nil HESEAT
consideration (note 33) ZERNEE = 16
Weighted average number of FEz2(#HE)
ordinary shares (diluted) for EZERZ
the year IR E - 241,977
Profit attributable to shareholders of the KL FRFESEF
Company
Attributable to: BEERN:
2009 2008
—ETAE —EENFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETiT BT
Continuing operations BEREER 78,519 101,469
Discontinued operation CRIEREER - 16,630
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18. Fixed Assets

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEME

] ,'

NTS BAF5ERRMI5E

18. BEEE

(a) Group (a) ZFEE
Medium term
leasehold ~ Medium term
buildings leasehold Plant,
in Hong Kong buildings equipment,
and leasehold outside furniture and
improvements Hong Kong  Construction  motor vehicles
By e in progress BE R Total
BFREE b £ EEIR RRRAE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFr BEFT BEFr BT BT
Cost or valuation: P e
At 1 July 2008 “EZNELA-A 19,838 626,726 29,665 610,841 1,287,070
Exchange adjustments EiE - (934) 6 (1,333) (2,261)
Additions b 235 282 45,145 6,708 52,370
Disposals tE - (3,358 - (7,596) (10,954)
At 30 June 2009 “EENERBETH 20,073 622,716 74,816 608,620 1,326,225
Representing: f%:
Cost HAE 9,208 622,716 74,816 608,620 1,315,360
Valuation — 2000 fhfi — —5%%5% 10,865 - - - 10,865
At 30 June 2009 “FENERBETH 20,073 622,716 74,816 608,620 1,326,225
Accumulated depreciation: RithE:
At 1 July 2008 “EZN\EtA-A 4,858 261,139 - 382,497 648,494
Exchange adjustments Ejiig - (727) - (784) (1,511)
Charge for the year KEENE 1,456 17,284 - 25,536 44,276
Written back on disposals HEARR - (2,347) - (6,077) (8,424)
At 30 June 2009 Z8EAERAZTE 6,314 275,349 - 401,172 682,835
Impairment; R
At 1 July 2008 and “¥T\EtR-BR
_____ 30 June 2009 :%57!.55/'7_5 =tH - 142,082 - - 142,082
Net book value: REFE:
At 30 June 2009 “EENERBETE 13,759 205,285 74,816 207,448 501,308
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
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18. EE&EE =

18. Fixed Assets (continued)

(a) Group (continued) (a) #FEEE)
Medium term
leasehold Longterm  Medium term
buildings Freehold leasehold leasehold Plant,
in Hong Kong properties buildings buildings equipment,
and leasehold outside outside outside furniture and
improvements Hong Kong Hong Kong Hong Kong  Construction motor vehicles
EETHRY KA HNRY HBOFH  in progress BE R Total
BEREE Rz b £ ik £ HBIE  fRHAERE it
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFr BEFr BEFR BEFT BETR BEFR BEFr
Cost or valuation: BB E :
At 1 July 2007 ZEStELR-H 15,024 266,602 339 716,683 - 1,084,123 2,072,111
Exchange adjustments Ejije - 8,501 - 41212 3,589 nnr 125,019
Additions £ 4814 136 - 740 26,076 11,218 42,984
Disposals & - - (339) (4,967) - (14,663) (19,969)
Relating to disposal of BEEBRERER
packaging business BE - (265,239) - (126,942) - (541,554) (938,735)
[ At 30 June 2008 “E50\ERR=1E 19,838 - - 626,726 29,665 610,841 1,287,070
1
W Representing: f%:
~ Cost I 8973 - - 626,726 29,666 610841 1,276,205
@ Valution — 2000 - -288% 10865 - - - - - 10,865
11
At 30 June 2008 Z¥T\EAASTE 19,838 - - 626,26 29,665 610,841 1,287,070
o
N - N
o Accumulated depreciation: Bitif :
.ﬁ: At 1 July 2007 ZE5tEtA-A 3,763 96,506 189 263,694 - 695,649 1,049,801
@ Exchange adjustments Ejige - 3,231 - 27974 - 45,244 76,449
il@ Charge for the year TEERE 1,095 1,894 8 17,028 - 36,359 56,384
= Written back on disposals ~ HEARE - - (197) (3,366) - (13,325) (16,888)
E Relating to disposal of REERLERER
packaging business 5B - (101,631) - (34,191) - (381,430) (517,252)
o
o
< At 30 June 2008 ZZ%\ExA=HH 4,858 - - 261,139 - 382,497 648,494
T TR
8. Impairment: W
cqc) At 1 July 2007 “EStELR-A - 6,220 - 220,621 - 102,186 329,027
= Exchange adjustments ERHE - 206 - 6,435 - 4775 11,416
2 Relating to disposal of REEALEERER
5; packaging business BE - (6,426) - (84,974) - (106,961) (198,361)
2 Mdunenes  CROERASHE - S - tew - - tem
E
| Net book value: FRESME:
’g? At 30 June 2008 “F50\ERR=1H 14,980 - - 223,505 29,665 228,344 496,494
o
4
4
2 At 30 June 2009, the net book value of fixed R-ZBEENFEAA=1TH  UBMEAR
E assets held under finance leases amounted to ERENECEEREFEABY
3 HK$496,000 (2008: HK$878,000). 496,000 T (= ZF )\ F : B#¥ 878,000
£ %) o
|
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B Z 2009 6 530 HIEFE
18. Fixed Assets (continued) 18. EE%EC@)
(b) Company (b) &EAT
Office equipment,
furniture and
motor vehicles
WAERE
R RRE
HK$’000
BT
Cost: RAE :
At 1 July 2007 —E2E2+FtH—H 9,104
Additions IR 425
 At30dJune2008  =FBN\FAA=tE 9,529
Accumulated depreciation: ZEHinE
At 1 July 2007 —E2E2+FEtH—H 7,996
Charge for the year KEERE 479 B
o
_Al30June2008  Z®B)\FAA=tA 845
Net book value: ARTERE - 'IE*T
At 30 June 2008 —EENEXA=1+H 1,054
E‘
Cost: BAME : mX
At 1 July 2008 —ET/N\FtA—H 9,529 e
Additions 1R 758 ﬁ
Disposals HeE (383) —
o
1
At 30 June 2009 —EERREARA=1H 9,904
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ .
o
o
Accumulated depreciation: REHinE : N
At 1 July 2008 —EENEFE+tH—H 8,475 8_
Charge for the year KEERE 424 2
Written back on disposals HeE (152) El
c
c
_At30June2000  —®®AFFAStE 8747
T
Q
Net book value: AREFE : E
At 30 June 2009 —EFAERA=T+H 1,157 |
2
2
At 30 June 2009, the net book value of fixed REZZZNAFAA=1TH LEUME 2
assets held under finance leases amounted to HEBENEEEE(ZZEENE B ;E_
HK$NIL (2008: HK$191,000). %£191,0007T) ° &
®
£
©
-l



TTNEFR

—h
E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2009 lE (F#) HRAT

. ‘ ... : ‘. o I"'b
NOTES TO THE FINANCIA

For the year ended 30 June 2009
BiFE 2009 6 A 30 H1LFZF

19. Leasehold Land

STATEMNTS BAF5ERRMisE

10. fiE i

Group
XEE
2009 2008
—ETAE —EENFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETIT BT
At 1 July RtB—H 51,193 54,729
Exchange difference ERREEEL (92) 5,320
Amortisation k] (2,986) (2,858)
Disposal of packaging business HEBREREY = (5,998)
At 30 June RARA=1H 48,115 51,193
Current portion (included RENERD (BIE
in debtors, deposits and REWERR - Zek
prepayments — note 26) FERRR — #fEE 26) (2,990) (2,791)
Non-current portion EREMEE D 45,125 48,402
The Group’s leasehold land comprises: AEBZAE T hEIE -
Group
F%H
2009 2008
—ETAE —EENFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETIT BT
Leasehold land in Hong Kong: BEZHE T :
Medium-term lease RHAFE A 14,296 14,672
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong: @4 28 i :
Medium-term lease FREAFR A 33,819 36,521
48,115 51,193
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ANCIAL STATEMENTS B4

20. Intangible Assets

TEiRRMEE

20. ML EE

Group
AEE
Goodwill Trademarks Total
[ ik =iE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T BETFIT
Cost or valuation: RAESfGE :
At 1 July 2007, —ZEELFtA—H-
30 June 2008 and —EENERAZTER
. 80June2009 —EFENFARA=TR 14m4 88,809 1 93,923
Representing: KF:
Cost MAE 14,714 36,809 51,523
At directors’ valuation BER-NEtZFEHN
in 1972 &8 — 2,000 2,000
At 30 June 2008 and —EENERAZ+HHER
30 June 2009 —EFEAESRA=TH 14,714 38,809 53,523
Accumulated
amortisation: Rt -
At 1 July 2007, —E¥t5tA—A8 -
30 June 2008 and —EFN\ERAZ+THER
~80June2009 =¥¥rEXA=E - 88809 38,809
Impairment: BiE :
At 1 July 2007, —EFFtEtHA—H8 -
30 June 2008 “EFNERAZ+HHER
_ at30June2009 —E¥FAFAA=ETH 12689 —_ 12,539
Net book value: BRTEE(E :
At 30 June 2008 and —FEENERAZ+HER
30 June 2009 —EENERA=1+AH 2,175 — 2,175
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20.

21.

Intangible Assets (continued)

Impairment test for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill is allocated to edible
oil operations. The recoverable amount of the respective
cash-generating unit (CGU) is determined based on
a value in use calculation. This calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management. The key assumptions for the value in
use calculation are those relating to the discount rate,
forecast growth rates and the expected changes to
selling prices and direct costs during the period. The
discount rate used for the value in use calculation is
based on the prevailing bank’s borrowing rate offered
by major financial institutions which reflects the current
market assessment of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the CGU. The growth rates are based
on industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices
and direct costs are based on past practices and
expectations of future changes in the market.

20.

NOTES TO TE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf 53R RMizE

B EEw

BEMBZRSEAEMZAER
&l

BECZRESELMERMDE - HE
ReELEANTRORESEIREME
REEHE ZEBEERAZRERER
AERRBREEBMENTRAERENE -
AEHERABEERNIERRA/ITRE
BRER HANEEHEEERANERE
- EEAEENTRRERRER
T RMAB IR f 2 IRITE A REE M %
MERRUARMMEENHERKBEE
kZREEEEN 2 BRRRZBITH
o BMRERERNEREAAE - EE
REERANZCAZBEELRER
MERRBLEMEE -

Interests in Subsidiaries 21. B A S HELE
Company
EAT]

2009 2008
—EBEAE —EEN\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Unlisted shares, at cost FLETRAEAE 1,457,016 1,457,016
Impairment loss RIEEE (203,220) (203,220)
Investments in subsidiaries MBARIKRE 1,253,796 1,253,796
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURFH B A B FkIE 1,248,728 1,171,594
2,502,524 2,425,390
Amounts due to subsidiaries S B~ B RE (1,641,459) (1,562,024)
861,065 863,366

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are interest-free,

unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Details of the subsidiaries are listed on pages 169 to 175.

Y EAMBLARRBLHARE - &
ERRRBEEEERR

EMBARNERFEIINEI0RES
1758 °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEME

22. Interests in Associates 22, BtE AT
Group
AEH
2009 2008
=t £ HES —EEN\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
EEFiT BT T
Share of net assets EBEFEE 24,581 24,581
Details of the associates are as follows: BE NRNERFEIOT
Place of incorporation Percentage of
Name of company and operation equity holding Principal activities
AT &HE S EE I RIERFEDE TEER
Group Company
%M £V s
X
lﬂ'
Omeron Profits Limited” British Virgin Islands 50 — Dormant IETV
KBERRES Emex 4
1
Tepac Profits Limited* British Virgin Islands 50 — Dormant E
N
RBERRES mex 3
oy
* Companies not audited by PKF * ZENTFBAAERER(FBR) ST ﬁ
B E T % =
=
Financial Position BAFS AR -
]
A
2009 2008 S
= 2 E —EBNF -
HK$°000 HK$°000 §
BEFTT BT T g
2
Total assets BEE 49,163 49,163 E
Total liabilities mEE (1) (1) -
4
2
Net assets FEE 49,162 49,162 o
8
Net assets attributable to the Group ~ BERAEEZ FEE 24,581 24,581 €
3
£
©
|
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22.

23.

Interests in Associates (continuea)
Results

During the year, there was no (2008: no) turnover nor
profit or loss attributable to the Group.

Interest in a Jointly Controlled
Entity

e -

TS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN

SRR

22, BB ASIHERE @

3
RAFER > ZERALE(ZZEZEN

F R HESEEREERNHER

23. HFEEHEREER

Group
XEE
2009 2008
—EBTAE —EENE
HK$°000 HK$’000
EEFIT BT T
Share of net assets EiFEE 58,313 63,268
Amount due from a jointly FEUR B = 5I{E 88
controlled entity FIE 10,461 50,575

The amount due from a jointly controlled entity is interest-
free, unsecured and repayable on demand.

Details of the jointly controlled entity are as follows:

ZEWLARZEGHERRERRE - BIE
ARFRERNEEE -

HEZGERHENFINT

Percentage of

Place of
incorporation/
Name of company

AE &

operation

EE AR R,

FAEESE

equity holding
indirectly

i

Principal activities

EEER

Evergreen QOils & Fats Limited*  Cayman Islands/

(“Evergreen”) Hong Kong

RERMARLF RS &

Company not audited by PKF

50 Blending and distribution of
edible oils, vegetable fats,
and shortenings

BRERDHRM  EYEBR
SE::

. ZABRFHARBEREBR(FE)EE
EBAERK




23. Interest in a Jointly Controlled

Entlty (continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the

Group’s jointly controlled entity is set out below:

Financial Position

e ; ‘ \ G - d e .
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

S B%

P

23. HFEEHERER @

FERAEEzHREZEHER 2 HEE

BRE25IMT :

BA AR

2009 2008
“EBTAE —EEN\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETFIT JBEETF T
Non-current assets FREBEE 14,754 16,239
Current assets REEE 266,767 354,335
Total assets WEE 281,521 370,574
Current liabilities k= (162,851) (241,958)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (2,044) (2,080)
Total liabilites weem (164,895) ~ (244,038)
Net assets FEE 116,626 126,536
Net assets attributable to the Group BRBRAEEZFEE 58,313 63,268
Results E 3
2009 2008
“EBTAE —EENE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BEETF T
Turnover B 729,172 761,793
Profit for the year RNEREREF] 6,688 6,694
Profit for the year attributable BERAEEZAFE
to the Group eyl 3,344 3,347

TTNEFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCI

23. Interest in a Jointly Controlled

24.

o

Entlty (continued)

Results (continued)

.‘ =

AL STATMNT %%E%%MH

On 25 February 2009, the Group entered into a
Supplemental Agreement with Hop Hing Group. Pursuant

to the Supplemental Agreement, the edible oil joint

venture company, Evergreen, will continue until 31

December 2023 unless terminated on 31 December 2013

or 31 December 2018 by either party giving notice in

writing of not less than twelve months but not more than

twenty-four months prior to the date of termination.

Available-for-sale Financial
Assets

23.

L = I;

HFEEHERER @

3 € )
REZZZAF-A-THA FAEEHE
FESERTHAHSE BRRZWR

I

& RAALRZEGHER RERM
BRAGNEEHBTEEEZE T _=

T-A=+—8 RIEFRM—FRLL
BHAIZETALDATZBAEERSZR
“tHEANEEBHN  R=T—=

+ZA=+—-RA=8=F-NF+=A
=t—H&LEE -

24. ST ENMBEE
Group Company
AEH AAT

2009
=t L 2E
HK$°000
EEFT

2008 2009 2008
Sl s EELJt
HK$'000 Flia{ele]o) HK$'000
il 2trr Wik

Listed equity securities, L%
at market value Hi{E
— in Hong Kong — &E 15 24 15 24
— outside Hong Kong — B4 132 226 132 226
147 250 147 250
Unlisted equity FEEHESH
securities, at cost A 24,262 24,262 24,262 24,262
Impairment loss BERsE (24,262) (24,262) (24,262) (24,262)
Club debentures, at cost EFfEHH A 787 787 - —
Impairment loss BiEES1E (280) (280) = -
e | s07 807 T -
654 757 147 250




25. Inventories

(a)

(b)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BT IR FRpisE

1
25. &
Inventories in consolidated balance (a NEEEERBERZHEES
sheet comprise: &
Group
F&EE
2009 2008
—BTAE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETFIT BT T
Raw materials FEdrE 86,435 135,820
Work in progress ¥ &R 14,805 16,139
Finished goods S m 72,917 109,581
Inventories in transit EREmR 498 509
Packing materials sBHEE 8,558 10,788
Spare parts B 518 788
183,731 273,625
The analysis of amount of inventories (b)

recognised as an expense is as follows:

Continuing operations

ERAXHZEERESN

T -

RS RT

2009 2008
—EBTAE —EENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT T

Carrying amount of inventories EHEFEEZ
sold IREE 1,658,449 1,766,961
Write-down of inventories FEREAE 1,385 571
1,659,834 1,767,532

TTNEFR

—
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEME

25. Inventories (continued)

(b) The analysis of amount of inventories
recognised as an expense is as follows:

(continued)

Discontinued operation

L

NTS BAF5ERRMI5E

25. & @)

ERAXHZEEEHEINW
T - (E)

(b)

ERILAEZRETS

2009 2008
—ETAE —EENE
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETIT BT

Carrying amount of inventories EHEEZ
sold BRTEE - 449,099
Write-down of inventories FERE - 505
— 449,604

26. Debtors, Deposits and
Prepayments

All of the debtors, deposits and prepayments are

expected to be recovered within one year.

4]

26. 55“&&5%& RERTER

FBRWERR - RERFAEMNRIGHETE
—FRARE o

Group Company

FEE AAT

2009 2008 2009 2008
—eea5 EEIICH-Seas EEENN:
HK$’000 HK$'000 Fzli¢{ololo) HK$’000
#err uagdll %77 Wi

Total trade debtors BB ZERFAAEE 137,797 143,346 = -
Less: Allowance for doubtful j&f - FIBEIREME
debts (note 26 (b)) (W13 26(b)) (1,902) (1,828) - —
135,895 141,518 - —
Other debtors, deposits and HAtEWERR * &R
prepayments AR 75,715 92,460 935 872
Current portion of leasehold & tih — REIMI D
land (note 19) (e 19) 2,990 2,791 - —
214,600 236,769 935 872




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEME

26. Debtors, Deposits and

- :

NT

S B%

P

26. [EUBRR « IR R

Prepayments (continueq) EINE ),
(a) Aging Analysis (a) BREASHT
The aging of trade debtors (net of allowance for BWE SRR (R RIBRER)
doubtful debts) as of the balance sheet date is as REERZREBIWOT :
follows:
Group Company
XEE AAT
2009 2008 2009 2008
=Ly TR NF iy CEENF
HK$°000 HK$’'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BETIT BT | itin BETT
0 - 3 months TE2={EA 135,049 140,804 — —
4 — 6 months Mz <1EA 846 714 - —
Total trade debtors FEWE 5 IR 135,895 141,518 - -
The Group’s credit policy is set out in note 5(a). AEB2FEREXERM T
5(a) °
(b) Impairment of Trade Debtors (b) FEWBESRMZBEESE

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are
recorded using an allowance account unless the
Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount
is remote, in which case the impairment loss is
written off against trade debtors directly (see note

2(p)(0)).

FEWE ZRREBESE  —R
EEBREREBTHE - HA
EERAESHEITRENEER
o EREBRT - HEREESE
SEEPREWRE S RR(RH
FE2(p)(0) °

TTNEFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIA

&

26. Debtors, Deposits and
Prepayments (continueq)

(b)

Impairment of Trade Debtors (continued)

The movements in the allowance for doubtful
debts during the year, including both specific and
collective loss components, are as follows:

STATEMNTS BAF5ER R MisE

L

26. [EUBRRR « IR RFAM

FA (&)
(b) FEWE BRI {ERSE ()

FEREREREREBAMRE

HHRIBIREBEBOT ¢
Group Company
AEE AATF

2009 2008 2009 2008
—ssns EEICA-=%ns BNt
HK$’000 HK$'000 Fli{ele]o) HK$'000
zerr Wiandll 277 Kidia

1 July +HB—AH (1,828) (4,066) — —
Impairment loss ®R

recognised HEEE (9,152) (991) = —
Reversal of impairment  RZE

loss RIEEE 25 100 - —
Disposal of packaging HE

business BEERER - 3,266 = -
Uncollectible amounts 6

written off A E £ 58 8,883 401 - —
Exchange adjustments ERTIEES 170 (538) - —
30 June ~A=+H (1,902) (1,828) - —

At 30 June 2009, specific allowance for doubtful
debt amounted to HK$1,902,000 (2008:

HK$668,000).

R-ZZEZEAFEFA~NA=Z+HRH-
BRERZERBBESEABYE
1,902,000 T (ZEZN\F : B
668,0007T) °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %

26. Debtors, Deposits and

26.

Prepayments (continueq)

(c)

Trade Debtors that are not Impaired

The aging analysis of trade debtors that are

RN
FEWERER - %6 B A

X a)

(c) RAEFEREGEZEKES

AREX

TR R EEITREE

neither individually nor collectively considered to WEEEWEWE 5 IR RE
be impaired are as follows: DT :

Group Company

AEE AAT

2009

—EThEF
HK$°000
EETFIT

2008 2009 2008
el = B
CX0lO HKS$ 000 HK$'000
BETT LR EETT

Neither past due nor REE R AMERE
impaired =5 132,496 139,499 — —
Past due for less than BEADR
3 months =@A 3,399 2,019 - —
135,895 141,518 — —

Trade debtors that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a wide range of customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Trade debtors that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group and the

5K 5B I AR L4 2 FE W B
% 1R ERA BRI &
BES o

3B 8B A 1E R B 25 8 2 BB W AR
R BREZBEAREBRFE
HACEHEF o BUELER B
REFEEXRLBEANKRE -
EEEREERIELRRES
2 FTRR/ABLEERFEATE
HWE - AEBRAQNAFA L
FEUR B 2 BRR A R 5 B 1

Company held the following collaterals over these MU
balances:
Group Company
AEE AATF
2009 2008 2009 2008
—=es s BT -sehs BT
HK$°000 Iz CX0lO HKS$’000 HK$’000
EEFiT BT ot BT T
Properties LYES 355 339 - —

TTNEFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCI

27.

28.

e

AL STATEMENTS BAF5$R3RbIsE

Cash and Cash Equivalents 27. RERIEEEH
Group Company
XEE AAT
2009 2008 2009 2008
e LD TR N\E e L VS 2R\ F
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETFIT BT Gotidean | BT T
Cash on hand and at banks RE&RIBITER 300,388 122,354 32,674 48,092
Time deposits EHER 339,456 409,727 250,958 306,843
639,844 532,081 283,632 354,935
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 2009 which are RZBBEAEANA=1+AH kXEEE
denominated in currencies other than the functional BB EYAENNESERRE
currencies of the Group entities are mainly denominated CEBEITERUEIARERATRAES
in USD and MYR. fiL o
Cash at banks carries interest at floating rates based on BITERRBERSARTERNERGTE
daily bank deposits rates. Time deposits are matured ZEBANERDAE - EHERIR=
within three months and earn interest at the respective BAREH  WEEEZERFERA=E
short term deposit rates. BREUFI . o
%=1
Bank Loans 28. ;RITER
Group Company
FEE KAF

2009 2008 2009 2008
Effective = LU —zons S LIRS —spns
interest rate HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
-tk #rerr Wi 2x7r WELids

Unsecured bank 3K

loans RITER 0.51% — 1.08% 40,500 212,000 12,500 30,000
The borrowings are repayable on demand or within one ERERERS—FREE-
year.
The Group’s bank loans are all denominated in HK$. FEAREB2RITEREUBERE
i o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF$R Rz

'y

4= 1
28. Bank Loans (continueq) 28. QE‘fTé%(,%)
The Group’s bank loans carry variable rate of interest AEBZRTERBZBANEER » &
ranging from Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (HIBOR) NFPEBRTEAEREMFERNZE0.43%
plus 0.43% to 1.00% (2008: HIBOR minus 0.50% to plus EMFEREA100%(ZZZENF: FE
0.50%) per annum. RITRAZEREMEFZE0.50% ZRER

L0.50%)5TE

29. Creditors, Deposits Received 29. @i’]‘ﬂﬁéﬁ BliRER

and Accruals FEst

The aging analysis of trade creditors is as follows: R E S ERARRDTAOT ¢
Group Company
AEE AAT

2009 2008 2009 2008
b L VE 2T\ F RS BT \F
GLEHN  HK$'000 BELEHINON  HK$ 000

DX

25T Bkeal Z%5Fr BELARG i

H

N

0 - 3 months EZE={EA 179,619 146,887 - — ﬁ

4 — 6 months MZENEB 1,496 683 - — 1
Over 6 months NMEB L 1,154 465 - —
Total trade creditors B E SRR AEE 182,269 148,035 = —

Other creditors, deposits HMEMERR - 2

received and accruals RERETER 111,814 69,113 13,876 9,724
294,083 217,148 13,876 9,724
Creditors, deposit received and accruals which are FAEEEBEFTBNINEERAENN
denominated in currencies other than the functional EBAER  CWZREREFEATER
currencies of the Group entities are mainly denominated PAETTHEN -
in USD.

E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2009 & (Fi#&) HRAT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BfF5RRMIsE

30. Other Current Liabilities 30. HEihimHEE
Group Company
s FAF

2009
—BEAE
HK$°000
BEFT

2008 2009 2008

—zEns B s

HK$'000 Fzli€e]o)o) HK$’000
BT W lbiany B TT

Amounts due to associates FE{TEEE A T FIE 23,093 23,093 = —
Employee benefit EERF
obligations afE 6,052 4,831 — —
Obligations under finance  BEHEEM
leases =V 109 208 - 54
29,254 28,132 — 54

The amounts due to associates are interest-free,
unsecured and repayable on demand.

The Employee benefit obligations represent provision of
unclaimed annual leaves.

BNBELRARERRE - BEAKT
BRERIGEE -

BERMNEER/GTEFRES -

31. Other Non-current Liabilities 31. HbIERENERE
Group Company
x50 xAT

2009

S
HK$’000
BEFT

Obligations under finance  BEHEEM

2008 2009 2008

SISl -7 B Lt

HK$'000 Fli{ele]o) HK$’000
BETFT Wit BETT

lease payable af&
— After one year but — —F#%ZE
within two years MERNEE 109 191 = 45
— After two years but — MEERZE
within five years TFEREERE 200 318 - —
309 509 — 45




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &%

32. Share Capital

(a)

(b)

Authorised and Issued Share Capital

R

32. k&

(a)

Number of shares

EERBITRE

Nominal value

BHEE BB EE
‘000 HK$’000
Fig BT T
Authorised: EERA
At 30 June 2008 and at 30 June R-ZBEENFEARA=T
2009 ordinary shares of HK$1 AR=-ZFZEhERA
each =+HEREERE
¥t 300,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITREHEZRA
At 30 June 2008 and at 30 June RZBEENFEAA=T
2009 ordinary shares of HK$1 AR=—ZFZhERA
each =+HEREBERE
¥t 243,354 243,354

As at 30 June 2009, there were 1,393,000 (2008:
1,398,000) ordinary shares acquired and held by
the Group to reserve for the purpose of satisfying
the exercise of share options granted under the
Group’s share option scheme. As at 30 June
2009, all share options granted under the share
option scheme were lapsed and no options had
been exercised (note 33).

Capital Management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the
level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

(b)

RZEEAEA~A=+AH K
£EE 8 A 1,393,000 I I # IR
(2008 £ : 1,393,000 ) K
MEBETFEEREEZRHR
BEZITE  FARERBEE
ZREBEB - -R-_ZEZEAFARA=T
B IEREIBTEZTEE
KEWHECE  WERIBEWTE
(Ff#3E33) ©

EXEHE

FEEEREANIERRRE
RIEESBRENFELSE M
BARREHEBERAEMFH
EERIFE  URABKFERBS
EmRBREEE  UREBRES
BENBERA

TTNEFR
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32. Share Capltal (continued)

(b)

Capital Management (continued)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure by
reviewing its equity-debt ratio and cashflow
requirements, taking into account of its future
financial obligations and commitments. For this
purpose, the Group defines equity-debt ratio as
the ratio of the equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company to net debt. Net debt comprises
total borrowing less cash and short term funds.

The equity-debt ratios at 30 June 2009 and 2008
are as follows:

Bank loans and overdrafts — & RE B NIRRT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4%5

32. &)

(b)

Group
AEH

2009

—EThEF
HK$’000
EEFT

2008
—ETNF
HK$'000
BT T

EXEHE(F)

FEBMEBRERHEREER
MREREER  MEBRSKRRE
HBIERT TREFE2ESEEK
FRRERENERIRAFRNES
RREzEMETE  LEERE
BRENSCHERERBELR
o

AEEUEXEBLER - BRER
BEREZRSRNYBRERE
FREXREREARB - ER
o SESERAFEELRAE
RAATRRELEREFEE
MR- FREEEAERR X
B FHESKRTHERBER
%o

—EZENR-ZZEZTAFERA
=tHZEXRBLERNT:

Company
AAT]

2009 2008
—STAF e
CLEHOIIN  HK$000
et Wik

repayable within 1 year EBRREX 40,500 212,000 12,500 30,000
Less: Cash and cash o BRER
equivalents REEHE (639,844) (532,081) (283,632) (354,935)
Net liquid funds FRBES (599,344)  (320,081)  (271,132)  (324,935)
Equity attributable to ¥ NN
shareholders of the RERFEML
Company EH 1,296,248 1,254,912 1,120,560 1,180,654
Equity-debt ratio EXEaEt=E 100:0 100:0 100:0 100:0




33. Equity Settled Share-based

Transactions

The current share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders on 23 May
2008 and subsequently amended and approved by the
shareholders on 18 April 2006. Pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme, the directors of the Company may invite
(i) any employee and director (including non-executive
director and independent non-executive director) of any
company of the Group; and (ii) any employee of any
associated company (the “Eligible Employee”) to take
up options to subscribe for shares of HK$1 each in the
capital of the Company.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to motivate
the Eligible Employee and to allow them to participate in
the growth of the Company.

The exercise price per share is determined by the
directors and being not less than the highest of (a) the
average closing price of a share as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the day of offer
of such option; (b) the closing price of a share as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the day
of offer of such option, which must be a business day;
and (c) the nominal value of a share.

The total number of shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme is 24,335,416 which represents
10% of the issued share capital of the Company at the
date of the approval of the Share Option Scheme. The
maximum entitlement for any Eligible Employee (not
being a substantial shareholder or independent non-
executive director) is that the total number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of options granted
and to be granted in any 12 months period does not
exceed one per cent of the relevant class of shares in
issue. In the event that a grant of option is made to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company or any of their associate, each
of their entitlement of the underlying shares shall not,
in 12-month period up to and including the date of
grant, (i) exceeds 0.1% in nominal value of the shares;
and (i) having an aggregate value in excess of HK$5
million; unless approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting.

33. %Hﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁm‘*%%Zi‘

BRNBRESTI(BRETE DR
ZZ=FRA-T+ZHERREBR X
REZZERFEOATNBRETEER
REB - REBRETE  A2AES
ARBO)AEEEAQRZEARER
EE(BRFITESRBYUFHTE
B) RiEABEQRA2EARE(SE
ERES DURARBARARAHE
R — Uz RAD KA IRAE -

ZEREGFISEHBEERES &
RERSDELDTMNERE -

ERROABEHESSET - RS
FOLRUUABREEARE) (o BERLZE
REBAEEAEXABIA S AR
BRATZERBHFHRTE )
HZEREEA(MEREER)BXN
ZEBARMERTTI2ERROBTER
(c)ZRMEE -

REBZERESETFRITZRAES
ZIBREAE H2433541608% 0 588
REGTEERMNBBNEAQATACERITR
B210% - FAEERESE(ETERR
RBLIHITEERINZEE &S
AETEREZERE - ARLBREES
BEEA+-—ERHEEREZ2EBR
> MERTRETHITROZEE
FTHEBEDCBITHBEIRDZ1% -
MBRERHEFETERRLBILFEHNIT
EERHEBBEAR tZBREREAR
At-EAZZEREREBHE H
AERITEBEREMES 2 ARRGBET
() BBARKRMEEZOA% ;5 (i)
E{E B8 % 5,000,0007T ; MEQ T
IREARE L HEAERRSS

TENEER
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33. Equity Settled Share-based

Transactions (continued)

Upon acceptance of the option, the grantees shall inform
the Company together with a remittance in favour of the
Company of HK$1 by way of consideration for the grant
within 21 days from the date of offer of option.

There is no minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a
period of 10 years commencing on 23 May 2003 to 22
May 2013.

As at 1 July 2008, the following options granted to a
director and other employees pursuant to Share Option
Scheme were outstanding. During the year, these options
lapsed as the vesting conditions in accordance with the

sl it
ENTS BAF5ERRMIcE

33. LI BERER 2K

(#)

BERARBHBREBFE-T-XA
BARRBUARZNBE-—TTFAQE
EREMBREZNE -

BRETEZANTELAFENREN
fR ©

ZRERETTEERBAETE PH=Z
E=FRA-+=RE=E—=FFHAH
—+=Hi -

REZZZENFLA B UTERER
BT RESREGBETINBER
RIARITE REAFE  BLEBRER
RAMERERTHRRAAZBBEKREM

terms of grant had not been met:

R e

Number of
options
outstanding
at 1 July 2008 Number of
and lapsed options
during the year outstanding at
R-ZZEN\E 30 June 2009
tHA—BE#T R-BTAE
REEE ~A=+H Exercise price
Date of grant  Grantees Ly 2 S ) & AR 1T I per share
i ds =B BERA EiERE 2R ERE BRITHEE
HK$
B
25 July 2006 LEUNG Wai Fung (Director) 2,200,000 — 4.50
—EZRE RREE(EE)
AAZt+EHH
Other employees of the
Group
EEHMES 1,500,000 — 4.50
3,700,000

No options were granted pursuant to the Share Option

Scheme during the year. Accordingly, there were no

outstanding options as at 30 June 2009.

RAFE  WERBBERESERLE

fRiE - Bt R=F

EAEXNA=1+H

I 1 RATE 2 BB IRAE -
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34. Reserves

34. &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA753RFRMizE

(a) Group (a) =AKHE
Investment
revaluation ESOP Share
Share Surplus reserve reserve option  Exchange General Revenue
pemium  reserves  REAER  BIRRE reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
RiEE  BEREE BiE  PREE BRERE  EREE 0 -REE  GGER it
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK8'000 HK$'000
EFr BEFn B BT BRI BEEL BEFr BT | i
At 1 July 2008 ZZZ)\EtR-A 429423 28783 183 (6,829) 927 51,062 50,000 463,069 1,011,558
Change infair value of THEER
avalable-for-sale financial ~ BEEEZ
assets MEEZES - - (103) - - - - - (103)
Released on lapse of share ~ JEMREE
options KHmBE - - - - 97 - - 97 -
Adjustment of surplus -FHBLREE
reserves by a subsiiary BEAGE - (6) - - - - - 6 -
Exchange differences arising ~ #7&
on tranglation of financlal  SAERA
statements of foreign BIREM
operations EEZERER - - - - - (786) - - (786)
Profit attibutable to 9%
shareholders of the K&
Company BN - - - - - - - 78519 78519
2007108 f{=22t/20%
final dividend paid AERE - - - - - - - prom )
Current year interim dividend ~ AREE
péld T - - - - - - N T R
At 30 June 2009 ZEEAEAB=TH 429423 28721 80 (6,829) - 50,266 50,000 506,227 1,052,894
Attributable to: BER
Company and subsidiaries ~ ARARENELT 429423 2,721 80 (6,829) - 51238 50,000 456,229 1,002,868
Associates B2lq - - - - - o79) - 34,249 33217
Jointly controlled entity LFEHER - - - - - - - 16,749 16,749
At 30 June 2009 ZETNEARZTH 429423 28721 80 (6,829) - 50,266 50,000 506,227 1,052,804
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E FINANCIAL STATE

34. Reserves (continued)

ENTS BARSiREMLE

34. fiEfE =

Group (continued) (a) AEKRE(#E)
Property Investment
revaluation revaluation ~ ESOP  Share
Share  Capital ~ Surplus  reserve  reserve  reserve  option Exchange  General  Revenue
premium  reserve reseves  MIEE(Y REEG SIRRE  reseve  reseve  reseve  reserve Total
RiERE AAHE EREE fite fiE  PREE BREHE EREE -BEE GGER it
HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS'000 WX
BETL BEFL BEFn BETn BETn BETn BT BEFn BEFRL BETL i
At 1 July 2007 ZESLELA-R 429423 20,121 - 2817 167 (6,829) 569 (9554 50,000 365,676 868,356
Change in fair value THEER
of avalleble-for-sele HBEEZ
financial assets MBEZE - - - - 16 - - - - - 16
Equity setled share-based  MRHBERLER
fransactions 5 - - - - - - 38 - - - 358
Released on disposal of ~ BE
packaging business ARERERZER - (18124 - (2887 - - - 146% Tl 14698
Released on liquidation of &
asubsidiary -FHEL A EE - 003 - - - - - 91 - - (1,05
Transfer from revenue HEAF
reserve to surplus HEBRERA
reserves by subsidiaries  REAFE - - 2373 - - - - - - (8713 -
Exchange differences e}
aisng on ranslation of ~ ISHERA
financial statements of ~ BERER
foreign operations EEZERER - - - - - - - 4 - - 440
Profit attributable to A2
shareholders of the k&
Company 5 - - - - - - - - - 118099 118,099
2008/07 fi=2%/1/2tE
fnel dhidend pid 78R8 - - - - - - - - ~ (9% (19357)
Current year interim NEEE
dividend paid rERE - - - - - - - - - (14517 (1451)
At 30 June 2008 ZETN\ERBZTR 49403 - 28733 - 183 (6,829) 91 51,002 50000 463,069 1,011,558
Attrbutable fo FER:
Company and subsiclaries  AAFREKELR 429423 - 273 - 183 (6,829) 97 52004 50000 415415 964,876
Associates BE0R - - - - - - - [©72) - 249 3321
Jointly controlled entity St 5I{EE - - - - - - - - - 13405 13405
At 30 June 2008 ZETN\ERAZTR 49403 - BB - 183 (6,829) 97 51002 50000 463,069 1,011,558
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34. #E =

34. Reserves (continued)

(b) Company (b) &EAT
Investment Share
Share General  revaluation option Revenue
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
EhiERE -hiFE REEGRE BRERRE Wi fith ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFR BEFT BETT BT B8R Vil b
At 1 July 2007 “ERtELR-H 429,423 50,000 166 569 511,945 992,103
Change in fair value of avallable-for- T HENBSBEE 2
sale financial assets MEEED - - 16 - - 16
Equity settled share-based RABEBLEEH
transaction % - - - 358 - 358
ﬁ
Loss for the year KEERB - - - - (21,108) (21,108) #
=
[0
2006/07 H=2%5/8tE IFGI'
final dividend paid FEARE - - - - (19,468) (19,468)
1)
«
Current year interim dividend pald ~~ HAFEHHRE - - - - (14,601) (14,601) %
, #0
At 30 June 2008 —ES0\E5A=1A 429,423 50,000 182 927 456,768 937,300 1Ko
g
At 1 July 2008 ZEEN\Etf-A 429,423 50,000 182 27 456,768 937,300 &
S
&
Change in fair value of avallable-for- T HENHBEEZ +
sale financial assets MEEEY - - (103) - - (103) §_
02
©
Released on lapse of share options ~ BREXUMEE - - - (927) 927 - 2
<
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - (23,488) (23,488) 3
E
2007/08 {-28t/ENE 5
final divicend paid RERE - - - - (21,902 (21,902) 5
4
2
Current year interim dividend paid ~~ HAEERHRE - - - - (14,601) (14,601) 2
5
At 30 June 2009 “EEAERAZ1A 429,423 50,000 79 - 397,704 877,206 8
&
|
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34. Reserves (continued)

Nature and Purpose of Reserves:

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account
is governed by Sections 48B of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises mainly the
cumulative retention of income according to the
Taiwan regulations.

Surplus reserves

Surplus reserves include statutory surplus reserve
and statutory public welfare fund.

In accordance with Accounting Regulations
for Business Enterprises, foreign investment
enterprises in Mainland China are required to
transfer at least 10% of their profit after taxation,
as determined under accounting principles
generally accepted in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC GAAP”) to the statutory surplus
reserve until the balance of the reserve is equal
to 50% of their registered capital. During the year
ended 30 June 2008, appropriations were made
by the subsidiaries to the reserves as determined
under PRC GAAP.

Property revaluation reserve
The revaluation reserve has been set up and is

dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies adopted for fixed assets in note 2(f).

NOTES TO TE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf%5

34. #E =

Bz HEERRAR -

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Rt E

BEERERDZEB(D
BRGNS A8BIRFTEEE ©

BEXfHfE

EXRBEIBZARBEEEEMNR
BREER -

BERER

BRRERELIERKLEER

EEDHEE °

RIBCEESFHHE)  EPEKX
BENAERECEYAR(PE
ARENEEFERIER DR
10% MRB BR R AL E R
#fE BEZRBENESRESER
HEMEARNS0% BIE - RZFF
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EIR(PEARAMBEEER])
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34. Reserves (continued)

Nature and Purpose of Reserves: (continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises
the cumulative net change in the fair value of
the available-for-sale financial assets held at the
balance sheet date and is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies in note 2().

ESOP reserve

The ESOP reserve represents the purchase
consideration for issued shares of the Company
acquired for the purpose of satisfying the exercise
of share options granted under the Company’s
Share Option Scheme. The application of the
ESOP reserve is governed by Sections 49H of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Share option reserve

Share option reserve comprises the fair value
of equity settled share based transactions and
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies in note 2(s)(ii).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 2(d).

General reserve
The general reserve has been set up by transfer

of revenue reserve in previous years according to
resolutions of the Board of directors.

ANCIAL STATEMENTS
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34. #E =

REZHEERAR : (&)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

REEHE

REEMRBEERGEERRTHE
MAREEMBEEZAREE
SENRIIFE - WARBMIEE2()
sz st BERMmEE o

BET/ERESRFR

ETBRREFIRFEEE/SRR
BERET  ATEBREMR
BRESEBARQRACHTR
NZBRERE ZREZEAR
BB(R T RG) FEAHR AT B

o

FBIR R

BRERBRERTEIZBR
BOREE ZREREBEME
2(s)(i) FrE 2 BT BER MR

B
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EERBEM T 200) TR 2 EETH
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34. Reserves (continued)

' A

AL STATEMENTS

Nature and Purpose of Reserves: (continued)

(x)

35. Capital Commitments

(a)

Revenue reserve

The distributable reserve of the Company at
30 June 2009 amounted to HK$397,704,000
(2008: HK$456,768,000). After the balance sheet
date the directors proposed a final dividend of
HK$0.09 per ordinary share (2008: HK$0.09 per
ordinary share), amounting to HK$21,902,000
(2008: HK$21,902,000). The dividend has not
been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet

date.

The Group had the following commitments not

e 5

SRR

34. @&

Bz HERRAR : (&)

(x)

W2 fit

KARR=-_ZZNREFERA=TH
2 W i 17 1 & 78 ¥ 397,704,000
T 2BENE OB K
456,768,000 7T) - REHEH%E -
BEEERMB2AREREASE
BREBRBEOT(ZEEN
F SREBERBY0.09T)
& B B #21,902,0007T
(ZEZENF : B ¥%21,902,000
L) ZBRAARNEEBER
F=V i

35. %iEIRE

(a)

FEBEEAEARUTAEIRS

provided for in the financial statements at the ARRETEHRERS :
balance sheet date:
Group
XEE
2009 2008
—EBTAE —ETAF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BEFr BT T
Authorised capital expenditure BE#LELSETHZE AR
and contracted for 553 30,480 68,645
Authorised capital expenditure  BH#EBRETH 2 ER
but not contracted for B 7,271 11,319
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35.

36.

Capital Commitments
(a) (continued)

These mainly represented the balance of the
capital expenditure for the additional flour mill
plant being built in Qingzhou City, Shandong,
the PRC. Total capital expenditure for the project
is expected to be HK$110.1 million of which
HK$72.9 million had been spent. The construction
is expected to be completed and production is
expected to commence in the third quarter of
2009.

(b) At 30 June 2009, the Group has several
non-cancelable purchase orders for certain
materials with its suppliers with an amount of
HK$79,808,000 (2008: HK$196,548,000).

Contingent Liabilites

During the year, the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Department (the “IRD”) initiated a tax audit on certain
group companies for the years of assessment from
2002/03 to 2007/08 and has issued protective tax
assessments totalling HK$4,960,000 against certain
subsidiaries of the Group for the year of assessment
2002/03 (the “Assessments”). Following objection
made by the Group, the IRD held over HK$4,032,000
of the Assessments unconditionally and the Group paid
HK$928,000 to the IRD for the Assessments pending the
outcome of the tax audit.

The directors of the Company, after taking professional
advice from its tax adviser, are of the opinion that
as the review is at its initial stage, it is premature to
form an opinion on the likely outcome of the tax audit.
Accordingly, no additional provision for taxation has been
made in the financial statements.

ANCIAL STATEMENTS
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36.
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HIEIEE @)
(@  (#)
SETERBE R ELEE BN

B2 2 FRAD R FRS B B AR
o BEFENBRERELZEER
A% %110,100,000 7T & &
FB#E 72,900,000 T E X AT o T2
BRIRREBHBREARA=-ZZEN
FHE=F-

by RZETEAFA~NA=+AH XK
SEHEMERIT I RT TR
HEHHRBIIE SEABY
79,808,000 TL(=Z T )\ : B¥
196,548,000 7T) °

RAEIR

FR BBEEER(RAENIN=-ZZ
—E=FEETL EN\EER
BREE BEREEETARRHERBERE
T URAEEHBIHBEARNN-ZEF
Z/EEZFERBEE BHRE
B RE RT 4 (Tl 1) 78 % 4,960,000
T REAEERENES  REEEY
B E B E 4,032,000t 0 MTE
MEREEERUA  AEBRTMEE
HEMS T &% 928,000t ©

HBERBEBNEXESRNUER - A2
AESERR  ERZRENERDLSHE
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.

37. Related Party Transactions

The Group had the following material transactions with its
related parties during the year:

Nature of transactions

XoMHE

Related party
ARAEAL

AL STATMNT i‘%%ls’zi%wi

. L = I;

37. ARAEATHRS

FEERAKERUTEZENEREAL

Jointly controlled entity
HEZEFER

Purchases of small package oil

BENEERM

Sales of aroma oil

BB HE

Bottling and refinery income for
small package oil

MR RMEERBREA

Management fee income

EEBEWA

Royalties received for the use
of trademarks

ERE A REERA

Sales of cleaning products

AERAREE

GIMC Management fee expenses

EEEH

GOMC/GGMC Management fee expenses

EEEXH

MRS :
Notes 2009 2008
ior=d —ETAE —EENE
HK$’°000 HK$’000
BT BT T
(i) 3,259 5,787
(ii) 77,414 135,940
(iii) 33,174 37,593
(iif) 2,000 2,000
(iv) 13,716 13,211
(v) 5,108 3,611
(vi) - 4,417
(vii) 3,537 -

Other related party transactions are also disclosed in

Notes 11, 23, and 30.

Notes:

(i) Purchases of small package oil from a jointly controlled
entity were at cost plus a percentage of profit mark-up.

(ii) Sales of aroma oil to a jointly controlled entity were

made with reference to the market price.

FIzE11 28 RO EHEHMEBE
ALTHRE -

EE

() WENEEHENURANFEEH
BB o

(ii) EHOHHEERRBHISERET -
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37. Related Party Transactions

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

Bottling and refinery income for small package oil and
management fee income from a jointly controlled entity
were determined by reference to the cost and the
amount of services performed by the Group.

Under the trademark license agreement, the royalties
received from a jointly controlled entity for the use of the
trademarks are calculated based on a percentage, as
may be agreed between the parties from time to time, of
the gross sales value of licensed products sold by jointly
controlled entity within Hong Kong and Macau.

Sales of cleaning products to a jointly controlled entity
were made with reference to the market price.

A service agreement and a supplemental service
agreement (together, the “GIMC Services Agreement”)
were entered into between the Company and GIMC
Limited (“GIMC”), a subsidiary of Hong Leong Company
(Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM”) on 27 June 2003 and 17
January 2006 respectively, for provision of management
services to the Group by GIMC for a term of three years
from 1 July 2005. The agreement expired on 30 June
2008.

A master service agreement (the “Master Service
Agreement”) was entered into between the Company
and GuolLine Group Management Co. Limited (“GGMC”)
together with GOMC Limited (“GOMC”) (collectively
known as the “Service Providers”), subsidiaries
of HLCM, on 30 June 2008 for the provision of
management services to the Group by the Service
Providers for a term of three years from 1 July 2008.

In the event that the aggregate service fees payable by
the Company to the Service Providers and any of the
subsidiaries and associated companies of HLCM for the
provision of similar services, if any, exceeds the annual
cap of HK$13,000,000 during any of the three financial
years ended/ending 30 June 2009, 30 June 2010 and
30 June 2011, the Company would be required to re-
comply with the Listing Rules as appropriate.

Details of the Master Service Agreement were disclosed
in the announcement dated 4 July 2008.

37. AAEANTHX B =)

BisE - ()

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

PMEERREEREREAREESE
WA ST AR B AR AN I A SR B P R £ Y
BRFE M EE o

BEEAREBRARRESEZAA
ER UBEFERAEEEBRIBME
ETFHEFEE:E’J‘@%E%E?EE?T

DEBY - WEFT B RAEES
HETEE@EE& °

BEAREERERMISERET -

R-ZBEFE=F A=+ tARK=E
EXNFE-A++tH ADE-R
HLCM® ff B 2 B GIMC Limited
(TGIMCD) » BT T —HREH
ER MR HEEEIGIMCIRHE

W&l MGMCHR=—ZZEZERE+LA
—Eli%zliﬁi,%'{ ﬁﬁﬂzﬁzmﬁ
R %5 o &t & ENFERA
=t+ARL-

RZBEENFXRA=Z+H: XA

7 B = ZRHong Leong Company
(Malaysia) Berhad (THLCM.|) #9Ff} S
A7) » Guoline Group Management
Co. Limited ([GGMCJ) K GOMC
Limited (fGOMC) (THR # @t FE
Bl BREHERR-ZENEL
B—HRATEEREABR=F2%
TERRFE - 5T — 10 AR A 1 & ([ AR A% 15
& e

WEARARARBE-_SZLEXRA
=tH-=ZZ—-ZEFRA=t+HEKZ=
E——FEXA=tHIL=ZEMBREE
MR —F - [ AR ER R M
HLCM KB B A B R B & D TR 8L
Mo 2 R EMAREERBR
FE [R%E%13,000,0007 © &4
AR EEHBETHBELTRA -
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38.

39.

40.

Post Balance Sheet Event

On 28 July 2009, the Group entered into an agreement
with Jiangsu Su Nan Flour Mill Company Limited (“Su
Nan”), an independent third party, to acquire land,
buildings, plant and machineries and other assets from
Su Nan for the operation of a flour mill in Jiangsu, the
PRC. The consideration for the acquisition amounted
to RMB100 million (approximately HK$113.7 million).
The acquisition is expected to complete by the end of
September 2009.

Detailed information of the acquisition was set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 28 July 2009.

Comparative Figures

As a result of the early adoption of HKFRS 8, Operating
Segments, certain comparative figures have been
adjusted to conform to current year’s presentation of
segment reporting and to provide comparative amounts
in respect of items disclosed for the first time in 2009.

Further details of these developments are disclosed in
note 3.

Ultimate Holding Company

The directors consider the ultimate holding company as
at 30 June 2009 to be Hong Leong Company (Malaysia)
Berhad, a company incorporated in Malaysia.

.. e ‘llf' I._..

ENTS BATS3RRM

&

38. HHBHEEE

REZZZAFLAZTNR F5EHHE
BYBE=N1&#&HENHERTH
(&P BEEWHE WELH - 2
- BE - BEREMEE  UARS
BUIHEEEHDE - WBERARSE
— BT (N # % 113,700,0007T) ° W k&
EREANR-ZEZNFNLARTK °

FREWBzHBEIER-_ZZNFLA
e AN $u:): SN PN

PLBiE =

HREFRMNEBUBRELERESR
—REH METHEREAFEHAEU
HEAFEIBBREZ2Y ARMA=
ZRNFERBEERE ZLREHE -

39.

BREBEZHBIENHEES -

40. RRER AT

EERAN-_ZTENFERA=THE
K= A 8 BHong Leong Company
(Malaysia) Berhad * —RBIRE R AR
ML 2 AT °
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At 30 June 2009
200946 530 H

The following list contains particulars of subsidiaries at 30 June

2009:

Issued and fully

Place of

incorporation/

R-IBEEANFEARA=ZTHSHEBLARAREEN
T

Effective

paid up capital establishment percentage of
Name of company EETR and operation equity holding Principal activity Notes
AT EH HRZBE AR REE I REFFT AL TEER JiF3

Group Company
rE£E8  Fi4g

Asian Dragon Limited HK$2 Hong Kong 100 —  Licensee of factory

BT e canteen

IBREHRREE

Bio Trading Limited Us$1 British Virgin Islands 100 —  Trading of edible oils

EV REBEBARES RARES
Chen Hing Hong Limited HK$100,200 Hong Kong 100 —  Dormant
ERTERAT B¥100200T BB EEEx
F.P. Trading Limited HK$1 British Virgin Islands 100 —  Dormant

BT RBAARES Emex
Flourtech International Holdings ~ HK$36,000,000 British Virgin Islands 100 100 Investment holding

Limited #B#36,000000T REEBRES REER
Gladko Industries Limited HK$2 Hong Kong 100 — Investment holding
ERBEBRAR BT EB REZR
Global Flour Trader Limited HK$10,000 Hong Kong 100 —  Trading of flour products
RRENESERAT 10,0007 EB BHERES
Guangzhou Lam Soon Food HK$10,000,000 People’s Republic of 66 — Inliquidation (@)+(c)
Products Limited ##10,000,000t  China EBH

BENEERRERAT

REARANE
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At 30 June 2009
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SUBSIDIARIES KB E]

Issued and fully

Place of

incorporation/ Effective

paid up capital establishment percentage of
Name of company BETR and operation equity holding Principal activity Notes
A &H BRZRAE AR EE I RERFENIL TEEH il
Group Company
%8 F47
Guangzhou Lam Soon Homecare  HK$21,000,000 People’s Republic of 100 —  Manufacturing and (d)
Products Limited #% 21,000,000t China trading of cleaning
BMNEIEEZAREBRAE FEARLNE products
HERERERES
Hong Kong Flourtech Limited HK$1,000,000 Hong Kong 100 —  Trading of flour and
ERRMERAT 1,000,000 BB agency products
WHESRERKE
Hong Kong Flour Mills Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 —  Trading of bran, provision
ERENRERAA HK$100,000 B of trucks rental service
Deferred shares and investment holding
HK$10,000,000 ERES EEHERR
HER 2R
7##100,000 7T
ERER
710,000,000 7T
Jiangsu Lam Soon Flour Mills US$5,000,000 People’s Republic of 100 —  Manufacturing and (d)
Company Limited 5,000,000 % Tt China trading of flour
IHMIEENERAT FEARSNE products
HBREREERES
Koon Bow Limited HK$2 Hong Kong 100 —  Property holding
BEERAA BT BB NERE
Kwok Wah Hong Flour Company ~ HK$1,000,000 Hong Kong 98 —  Dormant
Limited #B#1,000000 EHB gEex

BEENTAERRA
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SUBSIDIARIES FiBAS]

At 30 June 2009
200946 530 H

Place of

Issued and fully  incorporation/ Effective

paid up capital establishment percentage of
Name of company BETR and operation equity holding Principal activity Notes
AT &R BRZBE AR REEE BRERFEAIL TEEH Hiat
Group Company
1% F47
Lam Soon (China) Holdings Us$1 British Virgin Islands 100 — Investment holding
Company Limited 157 RBERARHE REER
Lam Soon Ceroil Limited HK$2 Hong Kong 100 — Investment holding
BIERAERA R B2 BB REER
Lam Soon Cleaning & Caring US$1 British Virgin Islands 100 — Investment holding
Laboratories Company Limited 1%t RBEERRHEE REER
HIEE2EEHEARAH
ﬁ
Lam Soon Cleaning & Caring HK$2 Hong Kong 100 —  Trading of cleaning H
Laboratories (Hong Kong) BT 5E products E{,
Company Limited BREMES llEklf
MIEEZEEME (FE)BRAR i
A
=
Lam Soon Distribution Agency HK$2 Hong Kong 100 —  Dormant &
Limited BT & S ﬁ
HIEREREERAF =
=
Lam Soon Edible Oils Company ~ US$1 British Virgin Islands 100 — Investment holding b2
- -+ —J s, o
Limited 1%7 RBERRES REER o
]
o
Lam Soon Edible Oils HK$2 Hong Kong 100 — Investment holding o
©
(Guangdong) Limited BT BB REZR 2
(=
FIEHPE (BR)BERA A <
©
2L
Lam Soon Food Industries (BVI) ~ HK$11,858,415 British Virgin Islands 100 — Investment holding £
-
Limited BHE11,858,415 T REBEFRHE REER B
G
X
o
(=
o
<
c
o
o
n
£
©
|



SUBSIDIARIES fiBAE]

At 30 June 2009
R 2009%F6H30H
Place of
Issued and fully  incorporation/ Effective
paid up capital establishment percentage of
Name of company BETR and operation equity holding Principal activity Notes
AT &R BRZBF AR REEE BRERFEAIL TEEH Hiat
Group Company
1% F47
Lam Soon Food Industries Ordinary shares Bermuda/Hong Kong 100 100 Investment holding (b)
Limited HK83,228,315 EHFE/EH REER
Convertible
preference shares
HK$25,000,000
EER
B 83,228,315 7T
RRELR
7 25,000,000 7T
ﬁ
W Lam Soon Food Supply Ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 —  Provision of warehousing
@ Company Limited HK$1,000 BE and logistics services
i BEAREAERAT Deferred shares RURERDAES
F HK$500,000
§ LER )
T 1,000 T
#a BER
o : _
g 7% 500,000 7T
=
Q Lam Soon Food Supply (Macau) ~ MOP$25,000 Macau 100 —  Trading of flour, oil and
§ Company Limited BPI¥E25,000t R cleaning products
§ HIRRmAECRM)BRAR % RRMREZER
- g5
®
=
£
< Lam Soon Intellectual Property Us$1 Cook Islands 100 100 Dormant
3 Limited 1% MR#S EReX
E
|
S Lam Soon International Limited US$1 British Virgin Islands 100 — Investment holding
[ =
S E REEARES REER
o
[=
o
<
c
o
o
n
£
©
|



At 30 June 2009
200946 530 H

SUBSIDIARIES KB E]

\ '

Issued and fully

Place of

incorporation/

Effective

paid up capital establishment percentage of
Name of company BETR and operation equity holding Principal activity Notes
A &H BRZR*E AR EE I RERFENIL TEEH il
Group Company
%8 F47

Lam Soon International Trading HK$2 Hong Kong 100 —  Dormant

Limited BE2R B EReX
HIEERE S BRAR
Lam Soon Management Services  HK$2,000 Hong Kong 100 100 Dormant

Company Limited 12,0007 BE Emex
Lam Soon (Pan Yu) Industries HK$2 Hong Kong 100 — Investment holding

Company Limited B2 T BE REER
BIR(ESR) IEERAA
Lam Soon Properties Investments  HK$2 Hong Kong 100 100 Investment holding

Limited BT E REZR
Lam Soon Realty Limited HK$2 Hong Kong 100 —  Property holding
HIELERRAR B2 E VESSE]
Lam Soon (Shandong) Food US$5,113,100 People’s Republic of 100 —  Manufacturing and (a)+(d)

Company Limited 5,113,100% ¢ China trading of flour
MIE(LR)RRERAF hEARLNE products

BREREERES

Lam Soon Silos Investments HK$2 Hong Kong 100 — Investment holding

Limited B2 i RERES
HEERREERAT
Lam Soon Systems Limited HK$2 Hong Kong 100 —  Provision of internet
HIERGZERAF BT ) marketing services

REEHBRYE

TTNEFR

a Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2009 & (F#) HRAT
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SUBSIDIARIES
At 30 June 2009
20096 530H

HEBAS

Issued and fully

Place of

incorporation/

Effective

paid up capital establishment percentage of
Name of company BETR and operation equity holding Principal activity Notes
A &H BRZR*E AR EE I RERFENIL TEEH il
Group Company
%8 F47
Lam Soon Trademark Limited Us$2 Cook Islands 100 —  Trademark holding
2ER MR#S BREA
Lam Soon Trading Company, HK$500,000 Hong Kong 100 100 Investment holding
Limited B#500,000T  HE RERES
HIREZBRAR
L S Food Investments Limited HK$2 Hong Kong 100 —  Dormant
B2 &8 TEEX
LS Golden Oils & Fats Limited ‘A’ ordinary shares British Virgin Islands 100 — Investment holding
HK$185,000,000 RE£BRES REER
‘B’ ordinary shares
HK$9,900,000
‘C' ordinary shares
HK$5,100,000
[AREBR
71 185,000,000 7T
[BIEER
##9,000,0007T
[CIEBR
75,100,000 7T
LSO Investments Limited HK$85,600,000 British Virgin Islands 100 —  Dormant
B#85,600,000T HEEBERRHES S
M.C. Packaging (B.V.l.) Limited HK$2 British Virgin Islands 97 — Investment holding
B2 RBERRES RERR
M.C. Packaging Offshore Limited ~ HK$8,400 British Virgin Islands 97 97 Investment holding
BH# 84007 RBEBRES RERR
Ravensgate International Limited ~ HK$200 Hong Kong 97 —  Dormant
B 200 T BB EmEx



At 30 June 2009
20096530 H

BSIDIARIES i BAT]

Issued and fully

Place of

incorporation/

Effective

paid up capital establishment percentage of
Name of company BETR and operation equity holding Principal activity Notes
AT &R BRZBE dMREEME BRERFENIL TEEH Hiat
Group Company
t£5E5 F47
Richly Choice Development (PTC) US$1 British Virgin Islands 100 100 Provision of trustee
Limited Ey KBHEREE services
RUETRS
Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills US$27,500,000 People’s Republic of 100 —  Manufacturing and (@)
Company Limited 27,500,000 €T China trading of flour
EORIBERERLAT hEARLNE products
BHEREERES
ﬁ
Shekou Lam Soon Silo Company  US$9,500,000 People’s Republic of 100 —  Provision of silo facilites  (d) L.
Limited 9,500,000 %t China RUEERRS ﬁy
EORERRBRAR hEARRAE lIHJI’
lﬁ:‘
Shenzhen Lam Soon Edible Oils ~ US$12,000,000 People’s Republic of 100 —  Manufacturing and (@) ag
Company, Limited 12,000,000 % 7T China trading of edible oils l?r
A REERA R hEARLHNE RALERES %
e
Swamex Food Service Limited HK$400,000 Hong Kong 100 100  Trading of edible oils &=
BEERRERAF B 400,000 7T Ee) products g
N . Q
RHERES N
o
&
Notes: Vorzam o
E
(a) Companies not audited by PKF. (a) ZELTNHFAKRERER(BB)STHER £
PR o “
(b) The place of operation of this company is in Hong Kong. (b) ZATINEXEMBEAEES - 2
(c) The subsidiaries are registered as equity joint ventures under (c) HENTARPEARIANBERZUEGELSE “E’
PRC Laws. hEZEREM- |
(d) The subsidiaries are registered as wholly-owned-foreign (d) ZENTBEPEARILNMBEEUEZEFBI )
companies under PRC Laws. B AT EEEM o é
o
(=
o
<
c
o
0
n
£
©
|
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5-YEAR FINANCIAL SU

The summaries of results, assets and liabilities of the Group for

MMARY &

.‘ =

FRSEE

FEMBEREMBEE HMBNEXE  EE

the last five financial years/period are as follows: REEBEHENT :
(Note a)
(Bt a)
1.7.2008 1.7.2007 1.7.2006 1.7.2005 1.1.2004
to to & to & to & to &
<Gl 30.6.2008 30.6.2007  30.6.2006  30.6.2005
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT T BT T BT T
Results E 3+
Turnover EHER 2,072,448 2,577,719 2,298,205 2,237,058 3,054,627
Operating profit before k&
interest, taxation, FEXH -
depreciation and BE - ERES
amortisation R EEF 133,377 174,742 170,519 197,360 232,675
Profit attributable to R
shareholders FEEER 78,519 118,099 109,882 102,989 85,125
Assets and liabilities ZBEREAEE
Non-current assets FIRBEE 633,679 644,612 846,702 869,109 908,870
Net current assets ERBEE 673,729 628,741 361,687 258,037 166,856
Minority interests DY EER (10,851) (16,888) (85,517) (85,385) (79,508)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (309) (1,553) (11,162) (15,707) (56,152)
Shareholders’ equity IR R AE 1,296,248 1,254,912 1,111,710 1,026,054 940,071
Notes: o=

(a) On 3 December 2004, the Board of Directors of the Company (a)
passed an ordinary resolution to change the financial year
end date of the Company from 31 December to 30 June
commencing from the financial year 2004. As a result, the
financial period covered the period from 1 January 2004 to 30

June 2005.

REZZZENFE+=A=ZH ARAZESE
BE-—HEBERBR ARAZHREE
HERBA-EENECURFELEHAT=A
=Z+t—HHABARA=TE - At XBEF
EvBEPBH-"2ZNF-A-—RE=Z
ZRFEARA=TH-
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